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H. R. 361 - H. R. 500 - H. R. 540 - H. R. 906

H. R. 1960 - H. R. 2162 - H. R. 7880

TO ESTABLISH ON PUBLIC LANDS OF THE UNITED STATES

A NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESERVATION SYSTEM FOR THE
PERMANENT GOOD OF THE WHOLE PEOPLE, TO PROVIDE FOR
THE PROTECTION AND ADMINISTRATION OF AREAS WITHIN
THIS SYSTEM BY EXISTING FEDERAL AGENCIES AND FOR
THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION TO

INCREASE THE KNOWLEDGE AND APPRECIATION OF WILDER-
NESS FOR ITS APPROPRIATE USE AND ENJOYMENT BY THE
PEOPLE, TO ESTABLISH A NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESER-
VATION COUNCIL, AND' FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

FRIDAY, JUNE 21, 1957

House of Representatives,

Subcommittee on Public Lands
of the Committee on Interior
and Insular Affairs,

Washington, D. C.

The subcommittee met at 10 a. m., pursuant to adjournment,

in Room 1324, New House Office Building, the Honorable Gracie

Pfost (chairman of the subcommittee)presiding.

Mrs. Pfost. The subcommittee on Public Lands will now come

to order for further consideration of H.R. 361 and other re-

lated bills.

The House is going to meet this morning at 11 o'clock,

and of necessity we will have to divide the time equally

between the proponents and the opponents. It is now 10.10.

Therefore, that allows 25 minutes for the proponents to be
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heard and 25 minutes for those persons here in opposition to

the bill.

Mr. Aspinall. Let the record show that the gentlewoman

from Idaho and the gentleman from Colorado tried to got per-

mission to sit while the House is in session this afternoon.

The Speaker did not desire to give uspermission because

the rules of the House are contrary.

Mrs. Pfost. I thank the gentleman for his explanation.

We did desire to sit this afternoon and give a greater length

of time to those who wish to appear hero, both for and against

this bill, but in view of the fact that general debate was

concluded yesterday on the bill that was before the House --

Mr. Saylor. I would like to get into the record I know

that the chairlady went to see the Speaker in that regard and

was refused. I think the people here, for or against the

bill, should appreciate the fact that the chairlady did at-

Stempt to get time so that we could sit this afternoon.

Mr. Engle. May I suggest that in view of the fact that

so many people came such distances to be hero that some of us

Should be willing to sit a while tomorrow morning if necessary

in order to give these people an opportunity to be heard. If

it is possible to secure the attendance of one Republican and

the chairlady, we can proceed, I think. I am simply suggest-

ing that. I would be glad to spend some time here. It is un-

fortunate. ;e have lcst two hours. We cannot help it. The

situation on the floor is such that although occasionally we
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can sit during general debate, it is pohibited under the

conditions of the legislation on the floor now. I do feel

for the people who have come here a long way and do not get

a chance to state their case.

Mrs. Post. I would like to say to the gentleman I havel

already contacted some of the members of the committee to see

if sufficient committee members can be present in the morning

but timehAs not permitted enough contacts to where I feel there

would be a representative number. I think this is important

legislation and I feel that at least three members on each

side should sit and hear the proponents and the opponents of

4 the bill. I thought at a later hour this morning when the

other committee members appear we would see if we could get a

representative number so that we might sit for two hours to-

morrow morning.

Mr. Engle. I am now going to the Appropriations Commit-

tee of the Senate to try to save some money. My leaving

does not indicate any lack of interest in these proceedings.

Mr. Aspinall. Will the gentleman be here in the morning?

Mr. Engle. Indeed I will.

Mrs. Pfost. The first witness we have scheduled for this

i1iorning to give an over-all presentation of the bill is Dr.

Olaus Murie, Director of the Wilderness Society. However,

Mr. Zahniser tells me he would like to introduce at this time

the various witnesses who have come from a distance to tne

committee members and have their statements made a part of

SRP00816



40

the record. Then at a later time, if there is time, we will

hear from those witnesses. Do you wish to proceed in that

order, Mr. Zahniser?

STATEMENT OF MR. HOWARD ZAHNISER,WASHINGTON REPRESENTA-
TIVE OF THE TRUSTEES FOR CONSERVATION

Mr. Zahniser. I would be very glad to follow that sug-

gestion.

Mrs. Pfost. I thought there was a request from the wit-

nesses that that was a schedule that you people had-determined.

Is that true?

Mr. Zahniser. That has been agreed to by the ones who

are here.

Mrs. Pfost. If you would like to introduce the people

Swho are in the audience this morning very briefly and offer

their statements for the record you may do so. I would sug-

gest, however, those who wish to make brief oral statements

should be given the time at the time of their inroduction.

I will leave it to your discretion as to how you wish to in-

troduce them.

Mr. Zahniser. I will just say at this time, Madam

SChairman, that my name is.Howard Zahniser. My address is

6222 43rd Avenue, Hyattsville, Maryland, and I am representing

here this morning the trustees for conservation and other

groups, as explained in a prepared statement which I will be

glad to submit for appearance in the record as though read

at this time, and say n othing further myself now.
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Mrs. Post. Does anyone have any questions?

Mr. Zahniser. At the conclusion of the prepared remarks

there are some requests for inclusion of material in the reco d

which I earlier wrote. I know the committee may wish to post-

pone until after this presentation by others the decision

with regard to that, and then for a similar presentation of

other statements I would like to introduce those who are

here and after that introduction and presentation of state-i

ments I would suggest that the chairlady call on those who

have come from a distance to make such oral statements as

the committee would have time to hear.

Mr. Aspinall. The statement of Mr. Zahniser has not

been accepted for the record as yet.

Mr. Saylor. I ask unanimous consent that the statement

of Mr. Zahniser as presented be accepted and inserted-in the----

record at this point as though read.

Mrs. Pfost. Is there any objection? Hearing none, it

is so ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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I have, howerr, also been requested to expres support for the Wilernecs 31

in bhalf of riends of the Forest Preserve, an orgaentation with headquarters at 8t.

Davids Laneo Sheneotady, Sew York for which I am National Representative. Mr. Paul

Sobefer, of 8cheneotady, president of Friends of the Forest Preserve, has sent am

the following telegram:

PLEASE REPRESENT FRIEND OF FPCRET PREIERVB INC WITH MEMBERSHIP

IN H Y STATE EMRACING LEADERS OF MORE THAN 1,000 ORGANIZATIONS

FAVCRINO ENATEB 176 HOUSE 500 WILDERNESS BILL AS OUR NATIONAL

REPRESENTATIVE WILL YOU PLEASE DO ALL YOU CAN TO IMPLEMENT

SUCCESS FUL ACTION ON THIS MEASURE

PAUL 3CHAEFER
ST AVIDS LANE

Mr. D. K. Bradley, chairman of the American White Water Affiliation's conserva-

tion committee, has also asked me to speak in his behalf in support of the Wilderness

Bill, I am glad to do so, but I note by way of a carbon copy that Mr. Bradley has

addressed to you, Madam Chairman, a letter dated June 19, 1957, and so I believe it

is enough for me merely to refer here to Mr. Bradley's request and to the support of

the Wilderness Bill by the American White Water Affiliation.

We who are situated here at the capital are glad, of course, to serve thus in

behalf of the various groups throughout the country who have no headquarters here.

On this occasion it is for us another welcome demonstration of the wide interest

and support engendered by the proposed Wilderness Bill.

Madam Chairman, our approach to this legislation has been as cooperative and

constructive as ve could make it. We have not been critical in an adverse or

fault-finding way of any agency, group, or interest. We have not disparaged our

predecessors, nor have we bewailed any of the forces that today make wilderness
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ateaer tioa difficult. On the contrary, while realizing and emphasising that the

oirumstanes in tir ve live are such as to thraten any area of wilderess, we

have been ot appreciative of the foat that there is still remaining such a marvel-

ue resource of wilderness. Our effort has been to make sure that we duly cherish

and protect what we have, thankful to those who have so far protected these areas

and who have tbus given us our opportunity.

In cooperating closely with the sponsors of the Wilderness Bill in both Senate

and House, we have sought to develop a program that could be supported by those who

are concerned vith natural resources for csamodity purposes. There is, for example,

vitiin our proposed system of wilderness areas no area that is nov available for

lumbering. Giving these areas firm legal sanction and protection should thus be a

measure that can be supported by any lumber interest. That is one example.

We have sought to develop a program that could be supported by the administra-

tors of the lands that are involved. We propose no change of Jurisdiction. We

propose no new land administration. We respect the uses for which these lands are

now being administered. Continuing to administer them in such a vay as to preserve

their wilderness character should certainly prove to be a convenient undertaking

for the administrators, who will indeed find the:'r hands strengthened in carrying

on the programs they have developed.

The sponsors of this legislation and we who have been cooperating with them,

have sought to obtain the cooperation, criticisms, and suggestions of all who are

involved and to modify, clarify, and correct the bill in accordance with the

contents received. Successive drafts before even the bill was introduced incor-

porated the resulting changes. Copies of the bill were widely distributed last

summer and fall, and the bills introduced in the 85th Congress have incorporated a

graat many results of the cco ments received.

Since the introduction of the bill, we have continued to note criticisms.

Those making constructive suggestions have been embraced. Criticisms in opposition
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hIe p" e 6d a k 'ad tollw d by attempts to adapt the Vil so as to met the

twe 6aot roeoir d between the introdutio a the Bous bills early in

I January ae4 t introduction ao 8.1176 in the Senate on ebruary 11, 1957, were

torpoeratd in the Senate bill. Representative Charles 0. Porter's H R. 7880

introduced o June 3, 1957 is identical vith this Senate bill and thus incorporates

the various uiesatl~n stiAulated by the January intrototions.

We are no ready to suggest additional changes that are a response to the

coaents received more recently. I should like to introduce into the record at this

point & copy of H. R. 500 with the changes incorporated. They greatly reduce its

length.

Here then is the bill as we should now like to recoaend it.

---- INSERT HEW TEXT OF BILL ---

One critician has been against inclusion of a long list of specific areas. We

had wondered ourselves whether or not to name specific areas and had concluded to do

so for two reasons: It would kindle the imagination cf our supporters and show

inspiringly the extent of our preservation opportunity; for those who might be

suspicious u intentions stated in general terms, naming areas would show precisely

what we meant. But, these purposes having been served, we are certainly now glad to

substitute inclusive language and omit listings.

For example, with regard to national forests, in subsection (2) of Section 2

on Page 4 of H. R. 500 beginning at line 23 we might well say:

(a) The System shall include the areas within the national

forests classified on June 1, 1957, by the Department of Agri-

culture or the Forest Service ae wilderness, wild, primitive, or

roadless.
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:thi wol d ae it po ible to take out the rest of Page 4 and 3al at Pges

S5 6, 7, O a8 i 9 doa to ine 8, except that on Page 6 at line 7, e should ay

Ad4itioal areas for inclusion in the System may

be designated within national forests by the Secretary of

Agriculture.

Another oriticsm has been that the Forest Service (and other agencies that

administer lands in the System) vould became responsible to the Council vhich this

bill ouald establish. That, in part, we conclude has been based on a isunderstand-

ing of the intention in providing that additions or changes in an area of wilderness

should be reported to the secretary of the Council, and by him forwarded to Congress.

This provision is in the sentence that starts with line 9 on Page 6, and also is in

simlar language in lines 20 to 22 on Page 9. It would be Just as well to delete

these provisions, and, as vill be pointed out presently, provide for the direct

submission of reports to Congress.

To ake these alterations of subsection (a) ocuplete, the vord "primitive"

should be inserted in line 9 on Page 9 after "vild".

As regards the National Park System areas, similar change can vell be made.

In subsection (b) of Section 2 on Page 10, the list of areas can be omitted and

the first paragraph be changed to read as follows, beginning at line 2 on Page 10:

(b) At the times and in the manner hereinafter provided

for, the System shall include each park, monument, and sea-

shore recreation area in the National Park Syatem on June 1,

1957, embracing a continuous area of 5,000 acres or more

without roads.

Then there is no need for a listing of specific areas in the National Park

System.
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To Oatlete this alteration, the word "included" should be substituted for the

vwrds "maed for inclusion" in line 22 on Pge 11.

Clarifying the role intended for the Ratioosl Wilderness Preservation Ouncil

has suggested other changes. B. R. 500 itself includes one addition for this pur-

pose; namely, the explilct provision in lines 8, 9, and 10 on Page 19 that the

Ccumil "shall have no administrative Jurisdiction over any unit in the System nor

over any agency that does have such Jurisdiction." further change can vell be

aade to avoid any misunderstanding which might give a supervisory interpretation to

the Council's purpose.

In subsection (f) of Section 2, which begins at the bottom of Page 16, it can

be uLda plain that the Council is not to cooe between the executive departments and

the Congress in any supervisory vay. We can do this by providing for the direct

submission to Congress of the reports referred to, with a provision for submission

of copies to the Council, for tLe System files.

This can be done by deleting front pages 16 and 17 the first six lines of

subaeotion (f) end substituting the following:

(t) Any proposed addition to, modification ca, or

elimination froa the areas of the National Wilderness

Preservation System established in accordance with

subsections (a) and (e) of this section hall be

reported to Congress by the Secretary of Agriculture,

the Secretary of the Interior, or other official or

officials having Jurisdiction over the lands involved

and shall take effect upon the expiration of the

The following sentence should then be inserted in line 10 on Page 17:

A copy of each such report submitted to Congress shall

at the same time be forwarded to the secretary of the National

Wilderness Preservation Council.
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In aeoordance ith these chanpgs, the sentence beginning in line 23 aon pa

22 should be deleted.

A f tther cbhs to rave the impreslons that this Coucil is intended to

have super-bure powers mlght be the elimination frmc lines 13 to 15 on Pag 23 at

the words "the President, the Secretaries of Interior and Ariculture, aa other."

Pinally, to remove any linsrin suspicion that this Council aight be intended

to override the Federal land aanaement agencies, we would suggest a change in the

aske-up at the Council.

As provided in H. R. 500 this Council comprised fifteen mueaber, four ot vhom

would be legislators, four of whoa bureau heads, one the Secretary of the Smithsonian

Institution, and six aotisens.

We should nov like to suggest that the number of citizens be reduced to three,

that there be no legislators in this Executive Department Council, that the Director v

of the Bureau of Land sbnagement be added. Thus the Council vould coprise

five bureau heads, the Smithsonian Secretary, and three citizens. We are confident

that it will tius serve vell its true purposes and that the land-administering

agencies vill need fear no overriding. The first sentence of Section 4 (a),

beginning in line 19 of Page 21 should then read as follows:

Section 4 (a) - A National Wilderness Preservation

Council is hereby created to consist ex officio of the

persons at the time designated as the Chief of the United

States Forest Service, the Director of the National Park

Service, the Director ao the Bureau of Sport Fisheries and

Wildlife, the Cmeissioner of Indian Affairs, the Director

of the Bureau of Land Management, the Secretary of the

Smithsonian Institution, and also three citizen members known

to be informed regarding, and interested in the preservation
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of, wilderness, one of whom shalU be named initially for a

term of two years, one for a tepm of four years, and one for

a term of six years, by the Preqident.

As to the Council it is not the intention that it should be an agency that

would threaten to control or override the land-administering bureaus. This should
now be very certainly clear.

Thus, Mr. Cbharman, have we who hhve been intimately associated with the de-

velopeent of this proposed legislation continued in our efforts to be cooperative

and constructive and to take advantage of all criticisms and suggestions.

There is another suggestion that I should like to make along this line. It

was made to us by Mr. Eugh Woodward of New Mexico, one of the leaders of the

National Wildlife Federation and a southwestern conservationist long interested in

wilderness. It would mean changing the period at the end of Page 18 to a cooma and

adding the following -

and the areas within the System shall be so managed

as to protect and preserve the soil and the vegetation

thereon beneficial to wildlife.

Mr. Chairman, there are many things that I might say in pleading the needs for

wilderness areas, and the needs for wilderness preservation legislation. There are

many things I might say in interpretation of the Wilderness Bill, which we urge

should be clarified, corrected as necessary, and enacted. But others, either in

their remarks or in materials submitted for your examination, have explained the

bill, its purposes, and the needs for it so fully that I hesitate to anticipate

your further interest and instead might better at this time conclude my remarks in

hopes that questions may reveal any further contribution I might make at this time.

I should like to have a few items included in the record at this point and, if

desired, I should be glad to prepare an extension of my remarks to include detailed

information about the proposed System and the areas within it.
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1. On March 1, 1949, I prepared a meorandua for the Legislative Reference

8ervioe in response to a questionnaire on wilderness preservation, answering ten

questions. his meatrandu, I believe, would be of value to all vbo vill be con-

sulting the record of this hearing, and I should like to include it here. It is

entitled "A Statement on Wilderness Preservation in Reply to a Qaeticnaire'.

2. On May 24, 1955, before a meeting of the National Citizens Planning

Conference on Parks and Open Spaces, I spoke on " he Need for Wilderness Areas".

In a somewhat edited form this paper appears in the Winter-Spring 1956-57 issue ao

The Living Wilderness, and I should like to suggest that in that form it be in-

eluded here.

3. & 4. On February 1, 1956, in connection with the resolution of the con-

troversy over the proposed Echo Park dam and in response to a letter from Repre-

sentatives Wayne H. Aspinall and William A. Davson, I wrote a letter stating the

purposes and cooperative attitude of The Wilderness Society, which I should like

to have appear at this point, along with the editorial on this same matter which

I wrote for the Winter-Spring 1955-56 issue of The Living Wilderness.

5. & 6. Finally, Madam Chairman, I have in two papers discussed the Wilderness

Bill in greater detail than the present occasion warrants, and I should like to have

these extensions, as it were, of my present remarks entered in the record at this

point. The first of these, entitled "The Wilderness Bill and Foresters", I pre-

sented at a meeting of the Society of American Foresters on March 14, 1957, as vice

chairman of the Citivens Committee on Natural Resources. The other is an article

which I prepared as executive secretary of The Wilderness Society for the April-June,

1957, issue of National Parks Magazine entitled "The Wilderness Bill and National

Parks".

C n n ,-f t--ha Hag ^ -_Y;Q_--AS.A- --, .0 ,, f Wh O

C^ 4 ^
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f, At th r eqWuot of pweoentative John P. aylo of remrylvana I

m s-a-d in a letew to Nr, a8ler dated JmanM 30, 1570 ea questie

tat INm. Ns Am 10tt of Portland, Oroen, ma raised abeut the

W14 8 Bi05111. I should likM to heav this lettserappear ia the eoor

at this p t as aa final sugplment to o ena tOst Au .

8. -A m haluran, tshi occasion today is in a sense a eulntains1U to

d etof events that began on June , 14948 when the Menarbe Raym nd 1.

Auke of Ohio, then obaiman of the House of opreoentatives Subooemite

a Maseoration of wildlife Resoureo, requested the Legislative RefMre

SOIrVis of the Library of CoPgreOss, to undertake a study that was issue

as a committee print on September 8, 1949, with the title "The Prosoerva

tiem of dild2orss Areas (An Analysis of Opinlon on the Problea, b

Q. Frank Keoyer, Regional gEonomist, Legislative Heference Servioe,

Libary of Congress.)* Only a few copies of this report were printed,

and are now available. Because of the basio importance of this

study and the value of the factual information which it includes I

should like to suggest that the Committee may wish to incorporate It in

the record at of these hearings at an appropriate place, and X as glad

to append for this purpose one of the very few now available. I am not

requesting that it appear at this point, and I know that you ay wish to

consider very carefully its inclusion in the record because of its length.

I wish only to suggest your consideration of this and comment that it

does include factual information that is not otherwise available in one

place and was collected b y the Legislative Reference erviooe of the

Library of Congress in the course of an extended study.
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im ^," he Ar nel e e t 1,1 a etir otTly Sev

to urtasi was issued as a ea mittee print on s 199,

with the title 'tIe at Wildersenes AMlys o Optinon on the

PrableM, by 0. Friak ecsera onal re , Leagislative itferenae Serrioe,

Library at Conresas.)" F oe a Ct rep t were printed, and noa are

nowi availbl * oa the basic a portano s tudy and the value at the

f orCatio which it includes I should like to that it be incor-

ed at this point in the record of these hearings, and I aa n append for

the very few noh available.

Madam Chairman, the American people at today and their posterity will long be

appreoiative of the interest that you and the other members ct this cmaittee and

your colleagues in this 85th Congress are taking in the heritage ot wilderness

which is still ours to cherish and preserve. To participate in this effort to

secure a living wilderness for America present and future I count the greatest

privilege that has cme to me as a worker in the field oat conservation, and I do

indeed appreciate your allowing me to share in these historic hearings. Thank you

very much.

(Au)
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Mr. Zahniser. I would like not to introduce Mr. J. W.

Penfold, Conservation Director, the Izaak Walton League of

America.

STATEMENT OF MR. J. W. PENFOLD, CONSERVATION DIRECTOR,
THE IZAAK WALTON LEAGUE OF AMERICA

Mr. Penfold. I have a statement that I would like to

submit for the record as though read.

Mr. Saylor. I ask that the statement of Mr. Penfold be

inserted in the record at this point as though read.

Mrs. Pfost. You have heard the unanimous consent

request. Is there any objection? Hearing none, it is so

ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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31 N, State St.,
Chicago 2, Illinois

COMHHIrS OF TH IZAAK IALTON LAUR OF AERICA IT11 RP.FSPCT TO

WILDI)ENESS I3RSIRVATICO

The Izaak Walton League of America, Inc, has had a deep, sincere and

continuing interest in the wilderness resources of the Nation since its

organization over 35 years ago, It can be said that threats to the roadless

lake country of northern Minnesota, the Quetico-Superior, furnished consid-

erable motivation for the founding of the League. Certainly the threat of

senseless roads, destructive power dams, ill-advised logging proposals and,

most recently, encroachment by aircraft have kept succeeding generations of

Waltonians busy in striving to preserve that last great wilderness canoe

country.

I am sure the Comnittee is familiar with the land purchase program

through which the League has assisted in the elimination of within holdings

which have constituted one of the nost serious threats to the primitive

character of the area.

The League has involved itself in most every threat to wilderness

preservation - and they have been endless in number and variety, and in

every part of the country. For this we make no apology, as we firmly be-

lieve that wilderness is an essential, logical and desirable aspect of the

Nation's over all land, water and resource use pattern,

We have, over the years, worked closely and cooperatively with the

several Federal land management agencies which have wilderness preservation

as operating policy and program (State agencies, as well) lie have not al-

ways seen eye to eye with them on specific problems, nor they with us- Yet,

our differences, for the nost part, have been minor in relation to the

broad picture and illustrate, more than anything else. how little any of

us know about protecting intanii'ble values in the face of prodigiously
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expanding population, industry, mechanization and all the other material

facets of our social and economic complex.

It is important to recognize at the start that wilderness is not

something separate and apart front the rest of our world, I've suggested

before that "wilderness begins at home" Ify this I mean, among other things,

that in both the materialistic and resource-using sense and in the human

experience sense, wilderness values may be preserved only as we preserve

other values to the utmost,

For example, it seems obvious that the better job we do in managing

timber resources located elsewhere, the less will be our material need

for timber within wilderness, The better job we do with respect to water

development outside wilderness, the less need to exploit dam sites within

wilderness, The better conservation job we do with minerals available out-

side, the less need to exploit those within.

We all look forward to the day when all renewable resources will be

managed on the optimum sustained yield principle, and when all non-renewable

resources are husbanded realistically. We shall eventually be forced to do

so to meet the demands of a vastly increased population and to continue as

a strong people able successfully to maintain a free world

In the process, we shall see great changes in the face of the landscape.

The changes due to intensified agriculture are becoming more and more

apparent, Water development in the West is well on the way to doing so, while

increased demands for water supply in the more hunid regions foretells the

same.. Intensified management of forest lands for timber and pulp will be

universal before long-

I predict that within a half century most of what we now call "wild

land" will be managed in a manner that more nearly resembles an agricultural

operation Je shall grow more timber and pulp, utilizing close to 100 of

material harvested; noro grass and forage; in all liklihood, more wildlife
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Multiple use, which today in too many instances is merely superimposing

several uses one upon the other and then trying to resolve the inevitable

conflicts, will come of age, All uses will be coordinated and where one

use must be dominant because of its paramount value in that place, other

uses will be permitted and coordinated in terms of the paramount use, Thus

the moral objective of "the greatest good to the greatest number in the

long mn" will be measured Nation-widerather than locally as if each
independent of . '

locality were / 'V '" "' the rest of the country.

It is very probable that lands and waters so managed will produce

far more recreation for the public in the aggregate. It is just as pro-

bable that the scope of recreation opportunity will contract and thereby
in human experience.

tend toward uniformity and loss of quality/ For example, the opportunity

to picnic in a city park is of inestimable value and one which should be

expanded throughout the country. Yet, picnicking in one city park is
the

little different from picnicking in another. It seems to me that/ultinate

value in any outdoor recreation activity is gained from the possession

of the whole range of outdoor recreation opportunity, experienced before

or anticipated. The fishing trip conversation around the campfire sooms

-about equally divided between reminiscences of experiences that were

poor and those that were good, highlighted by hopes of someday getting

to the lakes and streams lying beyond the next range.

Lands and waters so managed will produce more recreation, but will

not provide the opportunity for wilderness adventure, because the lands

will no longer be wild. Wild lands will remain to us and to future generations

only as we specifically provide for them in selected areas whore wilderness

opportunity is the dominant use

dhile pondering these things one night, during a cross country flight.

I picked up a science fiction paper-back, and wiled away an hour or two

It contained sone colorful language which illustrates the points
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"Old earth was in better shape than ever before, Ier cities were

bright with plastic and stainless steel. Her remaining forests were

carefully tended bite of greenery where one might picnic in perfect

safety, since all beasts and insects had been renooved to sanitary zoos,

which reproduced their living conditions with admirable skill, Iven the

climate of Harth had been mastered, Farmers received their quota of rain

between three and three-thirty in the morning, People gathered at stadium

to watch a program of sunsets, and a tornado was produced once a year in

a special arena as part of the World Peace Day Celebration."

Silly? Sure Fanciful? Perhaps, because when we consider scientific

advances made during the past few decades, I, for one, find it difficult

to discount even more fantastic possibilities. The plot of the science

fiction yarn concerned the leading character's frustration in satisfying

his simple and fundamental urges which science and technology had sing-

ularly failed to provide in the antiseptic world it had produced. We

shall need to preserve opportunity as well as to provide it, if future

generations are to have thcir heritage based on incentive, initiative
for individual growth,

and the opportunity/ " in respect to outdoor recreation as to

every other aspect of our civilization, in

If wilderness begins at home, then it constitutes a variety of con-

ditions - from the natural area in which there is no human use or modifi-

cation for any purpose, except the scientist in the interest of knowledge,

to the heavy use areas where the public concentrates, There is today a

considerable number of "degrees" of wilderness, springing front patterns

of relatively uncontrolled human use, recreation as well as other. 'de

need to know more about these factors as we plot our course for the

ure .1e have learned from city and netropolitan zoning,based on all

noods and ambitions, that it can produce groat.er and noro enduring values

for everyone. oven though each may lose a little omontarily The principle
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holds equally for long range planning on what we now call our wild lands,

The Isaak Wlalton League sees in the legislation before yop two

principle objectives. The first: to obtain fron Congress itself recognition

that wilderness preservation is a sound, sensible and logical aspect of the

over all land, water and resource management pattern, We endorse that

objective, The second: to seek through Congress itself some means whereby

the linited remaining areas of wilderness may better withstand the pressures

which would destroy them, pending development of policies, patterns and

programs which will preserve wilderness in all its phases as sound operating

principle. We endorse this objective.

We commend the sponsors of the legislation who through a specific pro-

posal have brought the problems involved out where they may be fully and

carefully examined and studied by all citizens. We hope that the Committees

will be able to continue these hearings in the field, close to where

wilderness exists, so as to extend to more citizens and interests the

opportunity to look at it closely and express their viewpoints-

We connend the Committee for its interest and its dedication to

finding proper solutions And we connend the legion of people both within

and outside of government whose efforts have retained for all of us some

of America's unspoiled beauty. May we be successful in retaining that

heritage for the future.

Presented by J .V.Ponfold, Conservation Director, Izaak /alton League of Americi
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Mn Zahniser. I would now like to present Dr. Olaus J.

Murie, Director of the Wilderness Society.

STATEMENT OF DR. OLAUS J. MURIE, PRESIDENT AND DIRECTOR
OF THE WILDERNESS SOCIETY

Dr. Murie. I have a statement and some conclusions. I

would like to make a few remarks if I may.

Mrs. Pfost. We will call on you at the end of the pre-

sentation of the proponents who are here this morning. If

there is time left we will call on you for your personal

remarks.

Mr. Saylor. I ask that the statement or Mr. Murie be

inserted in the record at this point as though read.

Mrs. Pfost. Is there objection? Hearing none, it is so

Ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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THE WIIDERESS BILL

A statement by Olaue J. )urie, President and Director of
The Wilderness Society, a national, non-profit conservation
organization with headquarters at 2144 P Street, N. W.,
Washington 7, D. C., on a bill to establish on public lands
of the United States a National Wilderness Preservation System.

Prepared for presentation to the Subcommittee on Public
Lands of the Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs of the
House of Representatives, at bearings on June 20 and 21, 1957.
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My name is Olaus J. Vurio, and I have come here from my headquarters in Moe,

Wyoming, to represent The Wilderness Society, of which I am the Director. Gentle-

men, in the Wilderness Bill now before you, we are dealing with an historical

American trend that has caught the imagination of the world. I should like to

discuss this trend, since it has a direct bearing on this proposed legislation.

I have had occasion to visit various Congressmen and Senators in their offices

-and have been impressed with the great burden of work each must carry. Numerous

matters need your attention to meet a need of the moment, some obvious current pro-

blem. But at times there comes before you something which has a long-time important

significance in our way of life. I feel that this wilderness preservation bill is

one of these.

The value of the out-of-doors to human beings was spoken of almost as long

ago as we have written records, for example, in the Book of Isaiah. Our people

came to this continent in the early Pilgrim days when it was only sparsely in-

habited by its first immigrants, the Indians. There followed the pioneer era,

when people had a taste of what life could be when they could travel in big

country and enjoy the freedom which comes to those who have the opportunity to

be individuals.

I want to stress that these were Europeans, who came from long-filled lands,

where such a degree of individual freedom was impossible. They came to a new con-

tinent at a period in human history when appreciation of such an environment was

possible to them. As we pushed our settlement from one coast to another, a great

number of active, virile Americans did not want to see this nation entirely lose

this invigorating frontier atmosphere. Our early American literature was enhanced by

such writings as those of Emerson, Thoreau, John Muir and many others. Imbued with

the pioneer spirit, many began to urge that we so plan for the use of our land that

future citizens night have some bit of experience of the kind enjoyed in such full

measure by our earlier forebears. You all know that our first national park, the
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Yellowstone, wee established in 1872. This was done largely in response to an un-

selfish decision of a group of humble men who camped there, whose action is a bit

of American history we are proud of. But it was not until 1916 that our Congress

took the necessary step to create a National Park Service. Perhaps it was not so

necessary up to that time.

The same far-seeing American imagination began to look into the question of

saving the big trees of California. We should grant the highest honor to those

public-spirited owners of forest tracts who donated large areas of redwood forests

for this noble purpose, for all the people.

.I also want to mention a state across the continent, New York, which had

the foresight to put into its constitution early in its history, a provision for

maintaining the Adirondacks "forever wild."

In the meantime other nations began following America's example. Japan now

has about four percent of its land in national parks. New Zealand has six percent

of its land in national parks. Russia has national parks. There are large ones

in Africa, and other nations are trying to find some areas suitable for that pur-

pose. As in our country, the rational parks in New Zealand had no controlling

administrative body until recently, when a National Parks Authority was created,

similar to our National Park Service.

In more recent years a new development took place. People began to want

certain parts of our national forests dedicated as pure wilderness, a direct attempt

to provide for all people of the future an opportunity to see and to have experience

in, those bits of America as Nature had created it.

As this desire for the wholesome outdoors grew, we found that to preserve our

wildlife it was necessary to dedicate refuges for those fellow creatures, places in

which they can live. Now, when our commercial pressures have become more intense,

we have had to plan more carefully, and we find that a number of those refuges, under

the administration of the Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife, can serve a double
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purpose by having some portions of them devoted to wilderness preservation as well.

There are also some wilderness areas which in the past have been so designated, on

Indian Reservations.

On April 18, 1957, Hon. Wayne Horse of Oregon had read, in the Senate, a

speech by Hon. John P. Saylor of Pennsylvania, in which Mr. Saylor said: "We owe

the leaders of the National Park Service a great debt for the way in which they

have fostered the wilderness idea, but we must recognize that the wilderness con-

cept is compatible with, not identical to, the national park idea - an enrichment

certainly of the national park purpose but not the genesis."

As Mr. Saylor also pointed out, the national forests also have some areas of

wilderness, and thus the forests as a whole serve many purposes.

Similarly, the Okefenokee National Wildlife Refuge also affords a unique type

of wilderness; the Charles Sheldon Antelope Range in Nevada has some beautiful can-

yon and sage wilderness sections, with their bird and majmal inhabitants, offering

a rich experience to people; and some of the Aleutian Islands afford outstanding

refuges for seabird rookeries, and at the same time furnish a possible wild country

experience in a unique northern ocean setting.

Thus, over the years, the people throughout the world have come to cherish

those areas of wilderness which we still have left. And throughout this develop-

ment, America has provided leadership. This is a leadership of truly humanitarian

proportions. And I would stress that this is the highest form of leadership - not

by propaganda, but by example. We have undertaken to provide for our own people

the opportunity to experience a way of life that is invigorating, and certainly

will tend to maintain a strong culture in our land. Other countries have been

applying the same idea in their lands. And we have been told, in books by writers

of other lands, in effect: "You in America have something precious! Hang on to

it!"

L. ^
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We now have numerous organizations in America devoted to the cause of wilder-

ness preservation. And we have the "International Union for the Conservation of

Nature." Truly this is an important unselfish effort on the part of mankind to

keep certain parts of the earth for our re-creation, in the true sense of that

term.

But we are having difficulties. The wilderness quality may be found in various

situations, and under different administrative controls. This diversity of adminis-

tration, for diverse purposes, is all to the good. But there is a great complexity

of interests and our administrators are under heavy pressures. What wilderness

we have on public lands, for use by all people, is being maintained by administra-

tive decisions. As one forester put it: "A forester is kept upright by pressures

on all sides."

The many thousands of Americans who have sincerely nurtured the wilderness

concept through the years, who have been loyally defending certain areas under the

administration of federal agencies, were greatly heartened by the fact that so

many Congressmen, in both Houses, and in both parties, so enthusiastically sponsored

the bills now before the Congress.

We feel, gentlemen, that this American wilderness tradition, developed through

a period of about a century, now deserves the backing of our Congress, so as to

give this wholesome idea a national standing, a national policy. As a former

president of The Wilderness Society expressed it;.we need "...to put wilderness

legally on the map of the United States." I believe everyone agrees that the

specific areas should remain in the jurisdiction they now have. But these bills

would strengthen the agencies and strengthen the efforts of all who are now devoting

their energies to cooperate with those agencies. Just as Congress took action in

1916 to establish the National Park Service, so as to give a firm foundation to the

emerging National Park concept, so now I honestly believe it is time for Congress
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to give similar attention to the broad principle of retaining wilderness areas for

public use. The bills now before you serve that purpose.

This past winter I met with many groups in the western states, on their invita-

tion, to discuss the wilderness program. These included dude ranchers, scientific

organizations, foresters, educators, Audubon Societies, among others. They are all

in accord with this proposed legislation. I have just now returned from an inspir-

ing trip in many parts of Alaska, on the invitation of sportsmen's gro. ', and

women's clubs, to discuss what we should do about designating as wildlife range under

wilderness conditions certain portions of northeast Alaska. What I found in the

thinking of Alaskans, men and women, from one end of the country to the other, was

indeed heartening. Everywhere today, throughout our continent, there is a wholesome

interest, a growing one, in what we know as wilderness. There is widespread grati-

tude to those of you who have observed this trend and sponsored the present bills.

In the history of our country certain events stand out as landmarks which we

revere as marking progress in our American civilization. A few years ago Congress-

min Samuel B. Pettengill expressed his poetic concept in "The Song of the Capitol

Dome" in which are these lines:

"I have not yet found the cadence
Of the song of the Capitol's Dome
It is a long slow measure;
The swing of the decades is in it
And its best is the timing of generations."

Last year Senator John F. Kennedy published a book, "Profiles in Courage" in

which he relates the convictions and actions of certain members of our Congress

through the years, men who had sincere convictions on matters that were important

in the development of our culture. I feel, as many do, that this wilderness

preservation legislation, is another landmark, perhaps a more subtle one, which

has a profound importance in shaping the course of our development as an American

society.

S3,\Itlf V IYVOI .V.NS 1tL IV (134.)l(10(dM
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At the annual meeting of the Council of The Wilderness Society last September

in northern Minnesota, the following resolution was adopted:

"We of The Wilderness Society, organized in 1935 to promote the concept
that wilderness environment provides for people esthetic experience,
wholesome serenity, and scientific and recreational opportunities of
a high type, have seen the public need and general approval of these
principles growing over the years. The membership of our society
has grown, and we have seen many other organizations adopting as an
important part of their concern the national need for wilderness. So
widespread has this public desire to defend our national parks and
other wilderness areas become that in recent years there has been much
public support of wilderness at various hearings that have been held
on proposals to invade with inappropriate commercial developments cer-
tain national parks and other scenic country, and such proposals have
been widely opposed. So great has become the public concern with this
wilderness program that a number of Representatives and Senators have
become much interested, and bills have been introduced in both houses
of Congress to give congressional approval and protection for our
national wilderness system, in order to provide greater stability for
this natural resource.

We feel that these bills, supported as they are by forward-looking
people in our Congress, are in line with the w~rk of The Wilderness
Society. A reading of the bills as now drawn up reveals that they
are concerned with the permanence of the esthetic, recreational,
scientific, and educational values in our American out-of-doors,
objectives which are being promoted by our quarterly magazine and
by our staff and members.

"Therefore, we are convinced that in the course of our work in pro-
moting appreciation and increased knowledge, of our wilderness
heritage, we the members of the Council of The Wilderness Society,
endorse these bills that have been drawn up and urge our members
and our staff to support this proposed legislation as being in the
highest public interest. We urge that both sides of any differences
of opinion be examined fairly, but we feel that as a society we have
high ideals for which we are striving and that we are obligated to
work for these. We feel that those high ideals, for which we have
stood as a Society for more than twenty years, make it mandatory
that we give our unqualified support to these forward-looking
measures."

On behalf of the numerous members of The Wilderness Society, and the many

S other people who believe as they do, I earnestly urge that you give favorable

consideration to the wilderness preservation legislation now before you for con-

sideration.

I

!

* t
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MHa I add that I was privileged, on April 14, 15, and 16, 1953, to deliver

a series of lectures in the eighth annual series of Isaac Hillman Lectureships in

the Social Sciences at Pacific University in Forest Grove, Oregon, These lectures,

entitled respectively "God Bless America--And Let's Save Some of It", "Wild

Country Round the World," and "Beauty and the Dollar Sign," were reprinted as a

special issue of THE LIVING WILDERNEM, Sumner 1953, published by The Wilderness

Society, under the general title of "Wild Country As A National Aset." I hold a

copy of this special number in my hand, and ask permission to have it included

in the record as a part of my statement.

!v
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Mr. Zahntser. I would now like to present Mr. Brower,

Executive Director, Sierra Club,

STATEMENT OF MR. DAVID R. BROWER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF
THE SIERRA CLUB

Mr. Brower. I have a statement that I would like to

submit for the record as though read.

Mr. Saylor. I ask unanimous consent that the statement

of Mr. Brower be inserted in the record at this point as

though read.

Mrs. Pfost. Is there any objection?

Mr. Aspinall. Reserving the right to object, I make a

reservation that I be permitted to look at the statement.

Mr. Brower. If it is in order at this point within the

statement there are separate requests for inclusion in the

record subject to the committee's consent, all of which ap-

pears there.

Mr. Metcalf. Perhaps we can proceed with some other

statements while the committee has an opportunity to examine

this one.

Mrs. Pfost. That is a good suggestion. You may proceed,

Mr. Zahniser.

Mr. Zahnisor. I would like to present Mr. Richard W.

Westwood of the American Nature Association.

STATEMENT OF MR. RICHARD W. WESTWOOD, PRESIDENT OF THE
AMERICAN NATURE ASSOCIATION

Mr. ;estwood. I have no statement. It would be merely

repetitive of all the statements my colleagues are making.
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I would like to record myself in favor-of-this bill.

Mr. Zahniser, I would now like to introduce Mr. Michael

Nadel.

STATEMENT OF MR. MICHAEL NADEL, OF THE NEW YORK STATE
CONSERVATION COUNCIL

Mr. Nadel. I have a statement on behalf of the New

York State Conservation Council that I would like to submit

for the record, together with an exhibit, and I have also a

statement in behalf of the Appalachian Mountains Club, to-

gether with an exhibit, that I would like to submit for the

record, with your permission.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection, the statement of Mr.

Michael Nadel will be made a part of the record as though

read.

(Thestatement referred to is as follows:)

- J
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A statement by Michael Hadel, in behalf ct the
New York State Conservation Council, on a bill to
establish on public lands of the United Otates a
National Wildernass Preervation System. For pre
sentation to the Suboifttee on Publio lands f
the house somittee on Interior and Insular
Affairs, at hearings on June 20 and 21, 1957.

I aa Mihal ael l. I have been requested by the New York State Conaerva-

tion Council through the Counoil's State Representative, Mr. Beman Frater of

New York City, to present a statement in behalf Ca that organization endorsing

the legislation for a National Wilderness Preservation System.

Te New York State Conservation Council is a statewide orgenizationa o

sportsmen's groups which are affiliated vith it on the basis of representation

by counties. These affiliations represent in all, I believe, a membership of

nearly a million sportsmen.

I am particularly pleased that it has fallen to me, through the circum-

stance that neither the president of the Council, Mr. Robert Thcapson of

Waverly, nor Mr. Forster, the State Representative, can be here because of other

camitmente, to make this presentation.

For several years I st8Ced as a vice president of the New York Conservation

Council, and as editor of its quarterly uUetin, before coming to Washington to

Join the staff of The Wilderness Society as assistant executive secretary. In

other respects also I have been closely associated with the sportsmen of New

York State, as a member for four annual terms of the State Conservation

Caoissioner's Advisory Caonittee on Fish and Game, as a vice president of the

regional Sportsmen's Council of the Marine District of New York State, as a

trustee of the Friends of the Forest Preserve, and in other associations in

various capacities as an officer, conservation chairman, or editor.
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acoh of the force of the movoent for the preservati this state.

I3 188, eix years before the federal lav seating the national forests, the

state legislature authorized the creation of a state forest preserve, to put a

check upon ruinous exploitation of the state's forest lands. CaeiroUil-ainded

interests found loopholes through which to ohisel at the forests, until public

indignation, at the constitutional.cenvention of 109, aforoe an amendment to

the state constitution, approved by the voters, granting protection to the

Forest Preserve. The memorable words of the protective clause read:

"The lands of the State, now owned or hereafter acquired,

constituting the forest preserve as fixed by la shall be

forever kept as wild forest lands. Zhey shall not be

leased, sold, or exchanged, or be taken by any corporation,

public or private, nor shall the timber thereupon be sold

or removed."

Later the words "or destroyed" vere added, to prevent flooding of the preserve.

Special interests sought increasingly to corrupt this constitutional

protection though crippling amendments, which the people time and again rejected.

These efforts caused the great constitutional lawyer, Louis Marshall, the cen-

tenary of whose birth was honored in 1956, to address the chairman of the state

constitutional convention of 1915 with these remarks:

"If I were asked," said Louis Marhall, "to state what the most

important action of the convention of 1894 was, I should say

without the slightest hesitation that it was the adoption of

section 7 of article VII (now section 1 of article XIV) of the

Constitution which preserved in their wild state the Adirondack

and Catskill forests."

SI1A0LM13 V 1YVOIVN 1WL IVl (1.).hlONd. '
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As recently as November 1955, after a series of protracted battles between

the conservationists and those who sought without letup to breach the constitu-

S tional barrier, the people at the polls voted 1,500,000 to 600,000 *- alaot

three to one -- against an amendment to build Panther Dam, which would have

invaded the Forest Preserve.

Those who wish to change the "forever wild" provision have an opportunity

under the constitution to make their play. But the people also have their choice.

They know what they have in their Forest Preserve wilderness, and they accept the

responsibility of keeping it. Thus it is when the people really have their

choice, and can support their land administrators against pressures which can

prove intolerable.

The protected wilderness in the Adirondack Forest Preserve consists of over

2,200,000 acres within the Adirondack Park, which itself contains over a half

million acres. Since this is a state forest preserve, it does not come within

the scope of the National Wilderness Preservation System bill, which pertains

only to federally managed lands.

The New York Forest Preserve is mentioned here as an example in wilderness

preservation through constitutional protection. But the Forest Preserve has also

another importance to the historian of wilderness. It was in the Adirondacks

that Bob Marshall, son of Louis Marshall, whom I quoted earlier, developed his

rich appreciation of the freedomm of. the wilderness," and accumulated that

qualitative experience which made him in time one of the eminent exponents of

wilderness preservation. With his brother George, he climbed the 46 peaks in

the Adirondacks 4,000 feet or more in elevation. Twenty-one of these 46 peaks

are still without trails.

Involved as it has been in the forefront of numerous battles to safeguard

the constitutional protection of its state Forest Preserve against the pressures

of powerful commercial interests, or the panic of changing administrators, the

'^
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Hew York State Conservation Council has a sense of what is at stake in the

National Wilderness Preservation System bill. As a conservation organization it

is conscious of a heritage which it shares vith all American citizens in the

federally owned lands which would be embraced by this System. Consequently, the

Council embraces this legislation, and urges your Committee to give it favorable

consideration.

If I may, Mr. Chairman, I shckuld like to submit for the record as part of my

statement, pages 51 to 60 of the Winter-Spring 1956-57 number of THE LIVING

WILDRNESS, containing an article I wrote entitled "They Say." This is an account,

with exhibits, of the response from individuals, organizations, and newspapers

from all parts of the country to this legislation. The following editorials are

reproduced within the pages of this article:

Page 51, editorial, "The Wilderness Bill," Christian Science Monitor,
July 3, 1956.

Page 52, editorial, "The Wilderness and the Future," San Francisco
Chronicle, April 14, 1957.

Page 53, editorial, "Value of Wilderness Areas," Sunday Journal, Portland
Oregon, April 15, 1956.

Page53, editorial, "Man Needs Nature," New York Times, April 29, 1956.

Page 54, column, "Conservation: by John B. Oakes," New York Times,
May 13, 1956, February 3, 1957, and March 3, 1957.
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Mr. Thompson. I reserve the right to object -- and I am

not going to object -- in deference to the people who have

come from long distances. I think it is unfortunate that

these rather voluminous statements must come to us in this

fashion tthout an opportunity to inquire of these witnesses

as to the people they represent and the activities they are

particularly interested 'in in an effort to work out what

might be a reasonable solution here. I am not going to ob-

ject to these requests. We do have a number of various inter-

ests involved here, particularly those who repres nt western

areas. I am sure those people also represent the many other

problems that we have in our area.

The reason that I voice this reservation now is because

now we have here people from the Appalachian Society, and so

forth. Maybe we ought to get some wilderness area in the

Appalachians. We have a lot of wilderness areas in Wyoming

that are not being used. We also have difficult problems

as far as municipal water supply and things like that are

concerned that we must further consider.

I am sure the witnesses appreciate the complexity of

our problem in the West.

Mrs. Pfost. Just before the gentleman came in we at-

tempted to determine whether we would be able to sit tomorrow

morning for two hours and hear thesacut-of-state witnesses

and at a later time, when more committee members are present,
we are going to take stock and see if we can have a
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L sufficient number here for two hours tomorrow. At that time

we will divide the time between the opponents and the pro-

ponents. So we are hopeful that we will be able to hear

these witnesses, particularly those who have come from great

distances. Those in Washington, D. C. may be scheduled at

a later date.

Mr. Thompson. Thank you. I certainly want to make it

clear that I am not criticising the handling of this committee

hearing because the chair is in a difficult position, and by

permitting the filing of statements I commend the chair.

Mrs. Pfost. I thank the gentleman.

Without objection, the further statement and the appendage,

the Appalachia, handed in by Mr. Michael Nadol, will be made

a part of the file.

Mr. Zahniser. Any of those witnesses will be glad to

be interrogated and make themselves available for oral or any

other testimony.

I would now like to presnt Mr. Daniel Poole of the Wild-

life Management Institute.

STATEMENT OF MR. DANIEL A. POOLE, EDITOR OF "OUTDOOR
NEWS BULLETIN"

Mr. Poole. I would like to submit the statement we have

prepared in support of the objectives of this bill and ask

also in addition to the statement this comment on the wilder-

ness bill by Dr. Ira N. Gabrielson, Presidentof the Wildlife

Managenent Institute, accompany it in the hearing at this

s:1.I:)yV VNOT LVN :3 i. IV (133(,08d:H
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point.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection, the statement of Mr.

Daniel A. Poole, will be made a part of the record.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE
D644"te0 . WIJWe Rir.*4.

WI ISUILDING, WASHINGTON . D. C.

Statement of Daniel A. Poole
before the

Subcommittee on Public Lands
of the

House Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs
on H.R. 1960 and similar bills

June 21, 1957

Mr. Chairman:

I am Daniel A. Poole, editor of the "Outdoor News Bulletin," a news service

issued by the Wildlife Management Institute. The Institute is a national membership

organization and its program is dedicated to the improved management of natural re-

sources in the public interest.

The Institute supports the objectives of H.R. 1960 and all the similar so-

called "wilderness bills." We believe that the preservation and maintenance under

natural conditions of wilderness tracts is most desirable. It is important, we believe,

because of the primary relationship existing between wilderness and the comfort and

security now being enjoyed by the peoples of our nation. From the natural resources

wealth of early America, we have evolved a standard and a way of life unequalled in

the history of man. What better monument could there be to show appreciation for the

bountiful resources that have and continue to energize this nation than the preserva-

tion of selected samples of wilderness America? Surely, a nation as large, as wealthy,

and as proud as the United States can afford to set aside scattered tracts in order

that present and future citizens can see for themselves what primitive America was--

and is--like.

We believe wilderness areas are desirable for still another reason. As a

response to the way of life that has evolved from our great natural resources base,

we have become a nation of recreation-minded persons. The figures rise each year.

More and more persons seek the solace that comes from wilderness experience. They

desire to get away from the blatant and the commonplace of daily existence and undergo

the revitalization that comes from the out of doors.
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Legislation of the type now under consideration would be of assistance to

the administrators of the Federal land management agencies in preserving the areas

of wilderness that have been established in the past. Any agency head who can effect

change by the relatively simple expedient of administrative decision is subject to

varied and subtle pressures. Regardless of how well intentioned an administrator might

be, there always is the danger in the absence of a law requiring public hearings and a

period of review, that there might not be brought to his attention all the facts on

which to base a decision. There also is protection in a law for administrators in that

it provides a shield against political pressures that otherwise might be brought to

bear whenever the authority and responsibility for making a decision rests with the

executive agencies.

All of the 79 areas that have been designated for protection as wilderness

within the national forests were set up by administrative designation. Under present

practice, a Secretary of Agriculture can abolish or seriously reduce any one or all of

these wilderness areas. Only through statutory recognition of the nation's wilderness

will the public be assured that adequate consideration would be made for any modifica-

tion, deletion, or addition to wilderness areas.

The Institute is pleased that the proposals under consideration stress the

coordinating, educational, and informational aspects of the job that is required to

frther public understanding of wilderness. It also is reassuring that these proposals

contemplate the establishment of a National Wilderness Council among whose membership

are the directors of pertinent .and management agencies. This provision will bring

aboyt greater understanding of wilderness objectives among these administrators, while

at the same time giving sustenance to the concept of wilderness preservation from the

experience and knowledge of these men.

There is no doubt that the American people are deeply interested in wilder-

ness. It is fully expected that as the system is defined, and as the information about

specific areas is brought to the attention of the public, there will be stimulated an

even greater and far reaching interest in wilderness preservation and enjoyment.

SRP00855



Mr Aspinall. I made a reservation some time ago. With

regard to the statement by Mr. David Brower, I would suggest

that that part of the statement down to the middle of page

19, "Summary of Proceedings," be made a part of the record,

and that the rest of the prepared statement be made a part of!

the file until further determination by the committee,

Mr. Saylor. I think that is perfectly all right. I hav

discussed the matter with Mr. Metcalf, and the only thing that

I would ask is that when the final report is made up that it

will be noted that in the file there is a summary of the

proceedings that occurred when this bill was drafted.

Mr. Aspinall. With thaz understanding, I will withdraw

my reservation.

Mrs. Pfost. Is there any objection? Hearing none, it

is so ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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TBi NEED FOR THE NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESERIATICO SYSIM

Statement by David R. Brover,
Executive Director, Sierra Club,
for presentation to the

Public Lands Subconettee of the
Committee on Interior and Insular
Affairs, U S . House of Bapresenta-
tives, at hearings held in Washing-
ton, D. C., June 20 and 21, 1957.
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My name is David R. Brover, Executive Director of the Sierra Club, with
offices in Ban Francisco. I an appearing in behalf of the Sierra Club and its
more than 11,000 members living in all parts of the country, as well as in behalf
of the Federation of Western Outdoor Clubs--aone thirty of them in California,
Oregon, Washington, and Utah. I also bring to you the recommendations and surmnry
of proceedings of the fifth Biennial Wilderness Conference as they pertain to the
proposed legislation. All these are concerned with the enjoyment and preservation
of our major scenic and wildlife resources.

I have been traveling quite a little lately, and there isn't mch of our
country left that I haven't looked upon from two or three miles up. When you're
traveling on the ground on some of the Western highways you get the impression
that there is endless open space. A generation ago you might have felt the same
impression from air travel. But that isn't true any more. With axe, plow, bull-
dozer, and derrick, we have changed the face of our land. Almost all of it, but
not quite.

I believe, and I feel that you agree, that we nust not change it all. That
we mist save for our children, hoping that they will save for theirs, as generous
a sample as we can of how America used to look everywhere, and how it felt to
pioneer, to be out on the land on your own good feet.

Places where we can see these things and feel these things won't save them-
selves. We're too ingenious with our gadgets for that to happen by accident. We
have to save them, and save for our children the chance to choose what they want
to do with them, even as an earlier generation has given us this choice by pre-
serving same of the best of America's heritage of beautiful land and the wildlife
that belongs on it. These places have been handed down to us in our great
national parks and monuments, in our forest wilderness areas, in our wildlife
refuges, on our public domain, and are there for us to enjoy as guests on some of
the Indian lands. These are places which we can forever enjoy by living not on
their capital, but on their income. There are already some capital resources on
these lands--minerals, virgin forest, and so on. But I am convinced that with
vise planning we shall never be so poor as to need this capital, Our national
wilderness system can be the place where Paul Bunyon's ghost can be asse.red of
something to do--but never do it. Here we can let nature's own processes go
undisturbed--processes which have produced the grandeur we know in these places
in our time.

Men of great vision in this Congress have proposed that we formally recognize
this national wilderness system--recognie and protect it, agree that whatever
commodity values these lands may contain, we can do without those commodities
better than we can do without some beautiful wilderness, somewhere within reach,
always. This wilderness system, for example, would preserve the back country of
the national parks. It would protect the magnificent wilderness of the Sierra
Nevada in California, uch of which is now set aside in the three national parks,
Yosemite, Sequoia, and Kings Canyon, which John Muir did so mich to establish. It
would also include the great Oils Wilderness in New Mexico, a memorial to Aldo
Leopold, one of the first to see how the wilderness idea could become part of the
multiple-use management of national forests. I think it would be well actually
to name one of the wilderness reserves in our national system of wildlife refuges
after Aldo Leopold, who contributed so greatly, also, to our knowledge of wildlife
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nagtemnt, and to our knowledge that many species of wildlife need wilderness
to survive in.

The wildernsse system would also include the Bob Marahall wilderness in
Montana, nrd for another man who contributed so much toward the novel idea
of having civilization include wilderness. On the Indian lands still others might
vall be named for notable leaders of the earliest inhabitants of this land, who,
having learned to leave no sign where they walked, have allowed the wilderness to
live into our time, for us and men of the future to explore, enjoy, and protect.

Congress would thus give its recognition and protection to an American idea
that we have been perfecting since the nation first set aside a national park--
Yellowstone--85 years ago. And this would be the kind of protection Congress
have given our National Park System since the National Park Act of 1916--protec-
tion in which Congress never faltered.

No one ill be able to take off for the remote heart of some wilderness
every year. Some people never ill. I myself can no longer do it very often.
But I think ve are all happier to know that the solace, solitude, and beauty of
viderness are there for whoever needs it. bhe next generation will need it more
than we do.

An extraordinary record of today's widespread interest in wilderness preser-
vation comes from the Pacific Coast, where six wilderness conferences have been
held since 1949, attracting in all more than 1,200 conservationists and resource
managers from all over this country and from other countries as well. Some indi-
viduals are counted more than once in that attendance total, but the widespread
interest is nonetheless remarkable. Five of the conferences are in the series of
biennial wilderness conferences sponsored by the Sierra Club. The sixth was the
Conference on Northwest Wilderness sponsored by the Federation of Western Outdoor
Clubs.

I have here a summary of the most recent of these, which in itself contains
notes on the earlier conferences upon which its discussions and actions were based.
It will bring to your record for the information of Congress the equivalent of
several field hearings on the subject of wilderness preservation which is embodied
in the legislation before you.

I would call your attention to the great diversity of individual professional
background represented in the discussions which are suniarized, a diversity so
broad that even a series of field hearings might be hard put to bring together its
equal.

I realize, of course, that such conferences are not likely platforms for full
expression of the ideas of people who oppose the wilderness-preservation idea. I
would stress, however, that if this is a noticeable omission, it can lead to no
permanent harm. Ir the debate about wilderness, the proponent of preservation
is in a unique position and deserves special consideration. He can win only a
temporary victory at best. The wilderness he saves today can be unsaved tomorrow.
If he doesn't save it today, it will be unsaved tomorrow anyway. If he loses it
today, it's gone for all our time.
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The exact opposite is true on every count for wilderness opponents. We,
the proponents of this legislation, naturally feel that we are correct and just
in each of our contentions. I am convinced that we are. But if we should some-
how happen to be wrong in every respect--this to me is beyond conceiving--and if
the Congress, in heeding us, enacts this legislation, then nothing will have been
done that cannot be undone should a contrary case ever be made.

For instance, water is important to our way of life. Some people have argued
that this proposed legislation would imperil water development. We don't think it
will. But to take an absurd example,, suppose it is proved that it is in the long-
range public interest to strip certain watersheds of all vegetation, including
watersheds now admirably protected by nature, we think, in wilderness. Suppose
it is proved that stripped watersheds will yield more and better water, and that
this is more important than anything else these watersheds could ever provide man-
kind. If this were to be proved, nothing in this legislation would prevent the
appropriate government agency from deciding that a given watershed be shorn of its
flora and fauna and its wilderness protection; and, if it were proved, the Con-
gress would voice no objection, and so it would be shorn.

Other examples would follow the same pattern. You have heard, or will hear,
from people who think the present legislation will imperil production of timber,
forage, minerals, and possibly even of mass-recreation facilities. They think
so. So long as they only think it, the Wilderness Bill could conceivably stand
in their way. It won't stand in their way, however, if they can prove it--if
they can prove that the exploitation of the vestige of commercially valuable re-
sources that is set aside in our wilderness is vital to the long-range public in-
terest. They will have to prove it not only to the administrative branch of the
government, but to the legislative branch as well, every member of which must
stand before the people regularly and justify to them what he has done for them
and for the nation.

We are not urging the wilderness bill as a temporary measure. We hope it
sticks. We hope that we can succeed in enlisting the next generation in making
it stick for their time, and that they will do the same for their successors.
We hope wilderness preservation an remain an important and vital part of our
civilization. That is our burden. The burden on our opponents should always
be the burden of proof. We ask the Congress to make this distribution of bur-
dens. We think It is right, and the wilderness bill does it.

The foregoing is a summary of some of the essential considerations which we
hope will help you in reaching your decision. With your permission, I should like
to go further into some of the philosophy and detail that has brought us to the
conclusions I have summarized, and to do this in a separately titled part of my
testimony.
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WIIWDR8- HS-C( LICT AND CONSCIE"C

You like wilderness, let's suppose, and you vant to see s*n of it saved. Not
Just a thin strip of roadside with a sign saying "Don't pick the flowers." Not Just
Svild garden behind the hotel or a pleasant woods within shouting distance of the
highway. But real wilderness, big vilderness--ountry big enough to have a beyond
to it and an inside. With space enough to separate you from the buss, bang, screech,
ring, yamer, and roar of the 24-hour comercal you vish hard your life couldn't be.
Wilderness that is a beautiful piece of vorld. Where as you start up a trail and
your nine-yar-old Bob asks, "Is there civilization behind that ridee" you can say
no and share his "That's good" feeling.

Yes, a place where you can rescue your self front vhat Ortega oalls the other--
all the extraneities that pile you too deep. - deep, to quote ay wife AnneT--oin
mot, that "the life you lead is not your own."

8o you want a place where you can be serene, that vill let you contemplate and
connect two consecutive thoughts, or that if need be can stir you up as you vere made
to be stirred up, until you blend vith the vind and water and earth you almost forgot
you came from.

-You like wilderness, then, and need it. And suddenly you encounter a practical
man who never learned that he needs it too, or doesn't remember. It doesn't take
you long to encounter him, because there are a lot of him, many of his number in
places of influence, all of him adding up to a political force that can Jeopardize
wilderness if it chooses to, and choose it seems to.

You can malign him, and insure that the conflict will continue over the need
for wilderness. But let's assume you'd rather align him, get straight to his con-
science, end the conflict, and save the vilderness. Then what?

At the Fifth Biennal Wilderness Conference, on March 15 in San Francisco, I
tried to develop one approach and I have drawn upon it fully in what follows, adapted
from my remarks there. Let's call it a starting point, and let us hope that it will
suggest to you a different and better approach to a goal that happily still remains
and should persist.

To start with, let's address ourselves to a very important question. How uch
right does one generation have to another generation's freedom? Can we of this gen-
eration, in conscience, pay for our freedom by mortgaging the freedom of our child-
ren? Is it our ethic that we are privileged to write the rules to which all the
subsequent generations of our civilization must be committed, and by which they must
abide, irrespective of their own dishes?

Thomas Jefferson, long ago, said that one generation could not bind another;
each bad the right to set its own course. Oo out across this land and try to find
someone to argue that he vas wrong* You von't find a taker.
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But deeds are not matching words. This generation is speedily using up,

beyond recall, a very important right that belongs to future generations--the

right to have wilderness in their civilization, even as we have it in ours; the

right to find solitude somewhere; the right to see, and enjoy, and be inspired

and renewed, somebere, by those places where the hand of God has not been ob-

scured by the industry of man.

Our decisions today will determine the fate of that right, so far as people

of our time can pass opportunity along to our sons. Apathy here can mean that

we pass them a dead torch. Or we can keep it aflame, knowing that this is a

very special torch that man cannot light again.

Belatedly ve are becoming generally concerned about our scenic resources and

about resolving conflicts that must be resolved if we are to retain islands of

open space in the sea of tomorrow's civilization. The early history of civiliza-

tion dealt with the problem of finding enough enclosed spaces--caves in the begin-

ning, then crude shelters, then walled cities, followed by the early beginnings

of suburbia when there was not longer room enough within the walls for all the

people of the cities. Only recently have ve begun to change our concern. The

problem seems no longer to be one of enclosing space, but of leaving enough of

it open to meet our needs for greenery and for every man's "slice of sky" Wallace

Stegner speaks of. We know we need some of this in our own garden for the edges
of our daily existence--something to look out upon at breakfast, or before dinner.

We need more space near by for our weekends, where on a March day a boy may fly a

kite, or a family may picnic and stroll. For our holidays we need accessible

ope space within range of our faster transportation, and better roads, bearing

in mind that we shall soon have more three-day weekends than we have now. For

our lengthening vacations we'll need the big spaces of national parks and wilder-

ness.

These outdoor spaces--daylight-saving plots, weekend and holiday areas, and

vacation regions--won't set themselves aside. We have to plan for them as the

population ava che flows over the land, and plan generously if civilization is

not only to improve living standards, but also to sustain man's standards for

life.

The Sierra Club has been concerned with man's use of wildlife, wilderness,

and national parks ever since John Muir founded the club in 1892 with the general

purpose of exploring, enjoying, and protecting our scenic resources. In none of

its 65 years has the club been free of the controversy that results when one seeks
to protect what another would exploit. That has meant 65 years' experience in
trying to resolve a crescendo of conflicts--experience that we can draw upon as

we consider today's major controversies'and the still more critical contests that

tomorrow will inevitably bring.

These conflicts will underline the need for conservation education; more

than that, they will require the education of conservationists. There's quite

a difference.
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On the one hand, conservation alludes to management of the comodity resources,
to using them visely that they may last longer. We all approve of conservation,
even as we approve of motherhood -- even while we go on expending our nonrenevable
resources at a constantly accelerating rate (more in this century than in all
previous history). We intend to do better. In the end, however, we know that no
matter how well we manage our commodity resources and our raw materials, time will
catch up with us. Conservation means spreading a given resource over a given
period of time. Time finally runs out and the resource is gone, or at best, is
a rarity.

On the other hand, the conservationist, and I stress the -iet, has come to be
known as the man who is concerned vith preserving for all our time certain impor-
tant scenic resources -- our resources of wilderness, parks, wildlife, and the
recreation and inspiration man may always derive from them. Always, that is, if
each generation, including ours, takes care of the few places we have left where
those resources still survive.

To use a figure, there are two sides to conservation just as there are two
sides to a coin. On one side, tangible quantities; on the other, intangible
qualities. Each side is presently oriented to look in opposite directions. Yet
each must live with the other. We may need a coin of transparent material, so
that each side can look in both directions.

The conservationist, then, is the man more concerned about what certain nat-
ural resources do for his soul than for his bank balance. Every man is a conserv-
ationis' part of the time in his thinking, if not in his action.

There are a great number of people who are conservationists in their action
also -- more than 11,000 in the Sierra Club, and about two million who are loosely
organized in the Natural Resources Council of America. The numbers are growing
more rapidly than is our population. Every time a scenic hill is bulldozed for a
new tract of houses, or a new freeway blots out more acres of green quietude, or
a new dam inundates a trout stream, or there's a vacant pace where a great tree
was, or another whooping crane turns up missing -- every time one of these things
happens, the conservationist force grows stronger as more people realize the need
to protect a rarity from extinction. Theirs is not a force of blind opposition to
progress, but of opposition to blind progress. Theirs is a force determined to
see that progress does not take away important things from mankind, forever, in
order to benefit a few men now.

The conservationist force, I submit, is not a pressure group. It merely
demonstrates the pressure of man's conscience, of his innate knowledge that there
are certain things he may not ethically do to the only world he will ever have,
and to the strictly rationed resource of natural beauty which still exists in that
world. The conservationist force does not need to be pressed into action. It
needs only be made to realize what is happening, and its voice of conscience speaks.

That sounds simple. It isn't. I need not go into any detail to convince you
of the difficulty of making people realize something -- of their making it real
to themselves, not imaginary, but actual. You know how hard it is to be heard in
the clamor around us. And we all know how hard it is to get the voice of con-
science to speak audibly enough to have effect. For example, how many times a
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week do you feel something needs to be done for the public good -- and how many
of those times can you find the few minutes to do something about it yourself?

So the conservationist force, for all its conscience, still needs to realize
more, and to speak more. Conservation controversies, like prefabricated tele-
phone booths, are ubiquitous. All of them are conflicts for space. The resolu-
tion of these conflicts should depend upon the answer to the question -- Who needs
the space most? Unfortunately, many of the decisions are being made nov, and
irrevocably, not on the basis of who needs the space meat, but on who got there
first with the meat dramatic plan of development and the biggest earth-moving
equipment.

It would be helpful, in resolving the coming conflicts for space, "to have
on hand a battalion of men with the wisdom of Solomon." Nbt having even one
Solomon, let us nevertheless see what we can do to: consider a few of the conflict
types in some detail; list the tools we have for resolving conflicts; try to
arrive at the criteria for decision; and suggest some courses of immediate action.
This is a big order. If in the course of this I make noises like an oracle,
please forgive me. To be brief, I'll stick to direct sentences. In your own
mind please add "it seems to me" to each sentence.

WHAT ARE SCME OF THE CONFLICTS?

Pan Against rNmbers. --4.n har d onstratoed, o0 clearly c he hac decrDstrated
anything, that he is prolific enough to explode across the land -- not with the
rapidity of an epidemic, of course, but more thoroughly and with far more lasting
devastation of the natural resources of the only world he has yet contrived to
live upon. We can label this statement "neo-Mathusiasn," but the labeling solves
no resource problem. The members of what we could label "the Science-Will-Save-
Us-Society," will have quite a burden to prove that science really can save us.
Science can do wonderful things, but our scientists can only begin to gather data
on the new problems civilization presents every year, and in turn can only begin
to publish and interpret their data.

A serious problem confronting scientists, and one upon which no conservation
organization I know of has adopted a policy, is the population problem -- an
especially touchy cat to put a bell on.

Natural scientists know full well what happens when there is an explosion of
population in deer; the deer themselves lose vitality and starve by the thousands
because they have overloaded their range. Mankind has a range too, and it has a
maximum carrying capacity consistent with a good life -- a life with enough
resources on hand for all to spare us the final quarrel over them. We may argue
about how many people the range can withstand, but we can hardly argue that there
is no limit. We have strong intimations, as we watch the sea of smog rise around
us, that the limit is approaching faster than we thought, and from a different
quarter. It may well be shortage of clean air, not of water, that brings us to
a sudden halt in California.

Whatever the limiting factor, and, though our engineers cover the search with
a mezzanine floor, we know that we shall come to a day when we can no longer
double our population, or even add to it, without lasting regret. Perhaps we
shall continue to worship Growth until midnight of that last day.
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But there is a brighter possibility and it is worth working hard for. When
the light turns red, you stop before you hit the car ahead. If you don't, you're
in trouble. The margin between us and trouble is our scenic open space and our
wilderness. We vaguely sense the shape of this need; later and wiser men will
know it surely, in the crowded world we are letting their heritage become. For
them, we could choose to skimp a little on gadgets, even our most elaborate gadgets,
even as they shall one day be forced to skinp, and with so much less wild world to
repair to than we have.

The brighter possibility, then, is to look for substitutes before we have
completely used up a given resource. Perhaps we, as present stewards for the
natural resources of all generations, could revive the practice of tithing -- sav-
ing ten per cent for the future. Not ten per cent of what this generation received
from the last, but a tithe of what was here, in our best estimate, when white man
began to spread over this continent. If that sounds overgenerous, remember how
few the generations who have used up the ninety per cent, and how many generations
will need what's left, to leaven their otherwise ersatz world.

Water Development.--Where water development and wilderness preservation are
in conflict, we can remember that gravity will take water through parks and wilder-
ness and out to places where man wants to use it or store it. Optimum development
downstream can prelude irrevocable damage to wilderness values upstream. Quite
often it will cost less; but even if it were to cost more in dollars, it would
save what dollars cannot put together again.

The conflict with hydroelectric development is more direct, for man wants to
get energy from the water that gravity brings down. Alternate sources of energy
are coming fast, however, and we can affort to wait for their perfection rather
than sacrifice scenically important streams and valleys. We need to remember
that our choice to preserve is a temporary determination at best. Our choice
to sacrifice, however, requires all future men to living by our choice. We will
have written the rules for them, and indelibly.

Wood Products.--The Timber Resources Review recently completed by the Forest
Service has demonstrated that our principal opportunity to meet the future's need
for timber lies elsewhere than in the virgin forests of our best wilderness and
park lands. The National Lumbermen's Association has gone even further. Its
recent releases have stressed the need for expanding the timber market and have
stated that we are growing one-third more timber than we are harvesting; they
therefore opposed the timber-reserve part of the Soil Bank. Plywood people want
much less plywood imported. Moreover, in the immediate future we can see a minor
revolution in the Wood-products industry in the promise of the chipper, particle
board, and alternate sources of cellulose that will have to substitute for virgin-
fofest timber sooner or later.

In the absence of a policy which provides specific criteria for determining
how much wilderness we shall need to preserve, and in the presence of abundant
promise of substitutes for wilderness timber, and considering also the many values
for mankind the wilderness forest affords -- multiple use of the highest, most
diverse order,-- we should not be hard put to decide the course to vote for in the
timber-versus-wilderness conflict.

iighways.--These had better go around our scenic gens, not through them, unless
we want the face of our land crisscrossed by high-speed routes to beautiful places
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that might have been. We have the potential of drowning ourselves with automo-
biles, of so overloading our hardened arterial that first the pleasure of driving
will disappear -- and then the motion!

Our children shall need parklike places where they can have a change of pace
and mood -- there they can spend a good chunk of time and become part of the scene
for a while. It will be enough for them to screech to a stop because of traffic
light or traffic jam, then roll down the window for a quick sniff of the great
outdoors before the man behind blows his horn. Many people fear that our engi-
neers are more skillful at moving vehicles than at moving people, and that a lot
of space is being too freely used up in the process.

We are enamoured of horsepower, -of highways and freeways, of covering more
ground more quickly and with greater safety. In our ardor, however, we may well
consider that it is very hard to undo a freeway and impossible to redo a wilder-
ness.

Other Conflicts.--There are other conflicting demands for our present scenic
open spaces, conflicts brought on by our needs for flood control, industry,
mining, food and forage and fiber, by urbanization, and by recreation too. There
is no need to go into detail about them now. They all come from the real needs
for things we want and believe in. But with reasonable restraint we can eat cake
and have some too-have conveniences and wilderness, so long as we remember that
there are some areas where convenience costs too much.

WHAT TOOLS FOR RESOLVING CONFLICTS?

What tools have we already fashioned, or what can we invent, to resolve
these conflicts?

Facts.--First, we need facts about resources. Many organizations are assemb-
ling them, and more help is needed. For scenic resources, the organizations pre-
pared to do the best job nationally are the National Park Service, which has a
program based upon a 1936 law and Mission 66; the Forest Service, which has nov
come up with its Operation Outdoors; and the Fish and Wildlife Service, now
developing its own Operation Waterfowl. California is off to a good, if late
start with aiainent recreation plans now before the Legislature. Many other
agencies are involved, and coordination is essential. The proposed national
Outdoor Recreation Resource Review will help get this started.

Interpretation.--But facts are not enough. One of our unheralded national
surpluses is the surplus of undigested data which, if laid end to end, would
reach too far. A fact has meaning only when it gets from producer to market,
only when it is published and interpreted well. We are badly in need of equitable
interpretation of tue facts we are gathering about our natural resources.

Most important, as pointed out in "Scenic Resources for the Future,"* "We
must to the best of our ability project all future needs on the same screen with

* SCB, December 1956.
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the same projection distance and same focal length of lens for each scene, and
also, to the best of our ability, with the same illumination. Let the light be a
cool one."

So far ve have had quite a disparity in distances, lenses, and light. In
California, for example, we know that water development is going to make heavy
demands upon what land ve have for other purposes. To project that scene, we
have elaborate equipment that has been derived from an eight-year effort at a
cost of better than $1 million per year. But water isn't all we'll be needing in
the year 2,000, it is only one of many things.

What kind of equipment do we have, whether in California or in the country as
a whole, to project our other needs.. By comparison, we can project our needs for
scenic resources with little more than a 19th century magic lantern, lit by a lone
flame. Unless ve can demonstrate the need for equity, we stand a good chance, so
far as this particular conflict goes in California, of having the beet-watered,
most populous crowded, biggest grossing, state in the union--and the least beauti-
ful one. Our white-water streams will be so fully harnessed for use that you
can't see running water; each pleasant little valley in the hills and mountains
will be replaced by a fluctuating reservoir, its water-shed cropped and gravely
impaired; and suburbia will spread almost everywhere else. Bear in mind that our
State Director of Water Resources, in opposing the current wilderness bill, listed
in his reasons for doing so that the bill would hamper California Water Plan hopes
for dams or water sticctures in Lava Beds and Joshua Tree National Monuments and
Yosemite National Park, as well as the Plan's hopes to use the Marble Mountains
Wilderness as a dumping place for spoil. We don't need water that badly. And no
bill would stop these things if the people should ever really need them.

Public Information.--The public needs information, too. All our facts and
interpretation will mean little if the public isn't taken into confidence. After
all, the public must consent to whatever proposal we come up with. "The engineer-
ing of consent" is the concise definition of public relations. Meetings such as
the wilderness conferences are a starting point. What we do after we leave such
meetings will determine how far the cause moves.

Legislation.--An informed public will want a clear statement of policy, which
is a statement in law, and will want continuing legislative interest in what hap-
pens under the policy. Congress, for example, is the nation's board of directors.
It should reserve the power to review irreversible staff decisions which lead to
the extinction of a given resource.

Administration.--The executive branch, armed with administrative regulations
based upon law, wl supply the preponderance of protection, for only this branch
of government has staff enough to do the job full-time. Loosely worded regula-
tions, which were adequate for a loosely populated land largely free of conflict,
will have to become specific--and must in turn be based upon more specific law if
we are to avoid a dangerous overconcentration of discretion. For instance, there
will need to be a clearer understanding of the full meaning of multiple use, and
of the limitations of multiple use. This has never meant a great number of cooks
working over the same pot of broth although many people have thought this was the
meaning.
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Education.-The legislative and executive branches, with help from lay
organp!ation, will then need to continue the effort of public education-the
engineering of support. The need for this is stressed whenever two people dis-
cuss the subject of conservation, and sometimes even when the discussion is only
a monologue. We have a great opportunity, or stated in another term, we've a
long way to go.

These are the tools. They are all necessary. Those named last will be of
little use if we don't have equitably interpreted facts to start with.

WHAT CRITERIA FOR DECISION?

Let us go back briefly to that matter of correctly interpreting facts, for
it is from this interpretation that we shall have to derive our criteria for
decision.

We must make one decision before we shall know how to sort out our facts.
Shall we on the one hand resurrect the philosophy of apr6s moi le deluge, or on
the other hand shall we seek the exact opposite for tho-se w E-follow us--for them
a world as beautiful as ours? I don't think this will be a hard decision to make
but we snall need to keep reminding ourselves that we made it.

Since wilderness is our primary concern here, let us list the points we need
to consider in weighing wilderness preservation against a potential conflicting
use. The weighing will set a pattern for the scenic resources which are less
fragile than wilderness. And wilderness conflicts are hardest to solve and most
critical.

1. The wilderness we have now is alU that we, and all men, will ever have.

2. Much of our wild land which is presently used for its wilderness will be
lost to wilderness use. It has not been dedicated, and remains only by accident
or oversight, or because of the slight value of its raw materials. When it goes,
its human load must be added to that placed upon dedicated wilderness, wherever
it is left.

3. We don't know what the carrying capacity in terms of people is or may be,
either for accidental or dedicated wilderness--carrying capacity that should be
expressed in two ways: (a) What human use will a place withstand and still recover
naturally, and (b) how many people will it withstand at a given time without their
eliminating its esthetic value at the time?

With respect to recoverability: We must not be fooled by vastness of a total
area. The key terrain, or the heartland, or the living space, or the camping
base--whatever you may call it--is that rare, scarce oasis that has real scenic
appeal, that has water and shade, wood and forage, that is gentle enough in slope

- to cauup on, and that possesses a wild setting (without which one might as well
camp in Central Park). There is precious little key terrain, even in the vastest
reservs. And what key terrain there is is likely also to be a good reservoir
site.

S.LM,\i.imV IYSUOIVS 4111 IV i.1 ),LoH10od
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With respect to esthetic capacity: Wilderness cannot be false front wilder-
ness and fulfill what man needs in it--no green-belt fringe obscuring a periodic
sea of stumps. There aust be assurance that a man's wild slice of sky won't have
too many elbows in it, or administrative conveniences either. There must be room
enough for time--where the sun can calibrate the day, not the wristwatch, for
days or weeks of unordered time, time enough to forget the feel of the pavement
and to get the feel of the earth, and of what is natural, and right.

4. Whatever the carrying capacity turns out to be, we can predict that it
will be limited--so limited that wilderness can probably never again be abundant
enough for every man to walk in it. But after all, only the small child must
handle a thing to know it; adults need only look. Those in between need a
little of both. So some people will'be able to walk in wilderness and most of
them will be the better for it. Some may wish to but never make it. Some may
not think they care to at all, nor expect their sons to care. But wilderness
must be there, or the world's a cage.

5. It follows that our expanding population will need more wilderness than
exists, and far more than has yet been set aside for preservation.

6. Therefore, we can conclude that any step to discard our vestige of
dedicated American wilderness, or to prejudice its protection, is premature
at this time. And knowing this, we are obligated to insure its protection by
law as well as by fiat and decree.

To those who for materialistic convenience want to extinguish just part
of that dedicated wilderness we can cite Solomon's precedent. We all remember
his most famous decision, when one mother wanted the child divided, and the
other wanted the child spared, even if she herself were not to have it. Let
the judgment favor those who want the wilderness to remain whole. A decision
adverse to that whole can never be rescinded.

SUGGESTIONS FOP IMMEDIATE ACTION

It will take time to seek out facts, ideas, and decisions in the long-range
public interest--three years at the very least. In the interim an immediate
holding action is needed, and I have a brief suggestion. Let federal and state
executives appoint task forces who can set about promptly to put up three kinds
of signs in places where it is the consensus of conservationists that they
belong:

"Sample, Don't Sell" we can place, figuratively, by our crown Jewels--our
parks , dedicated wilderness, or their equivalent in scenic caliber.

"Closed During Inventory" ought to be posted on certain areas in controversy
in which the scenic, recreational, and scientific values are probably high, lest
we find that the forthcoming inventory of our scenic resources consists of check-
ing off our choicest treasures as they are carried out the door.

"Business As Usual" signs can be posted everywhere else.
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In any event, some kind of moratorium is essential. A three-year wait on
asme of our development projects is not long compared to the eternity our
descendants shall otherwise have to live by any mistakes we make out of prema-
ture commitment. To illustrate, consider the tragically premature decision
at Hetch Hetchy, in Yosemite National Park,* a controversy that is all water
behind the daa-the dam in Retch Hetchy Valley from which San Francisco gets
the same water it could have diverted outside the park. There was one unclouded
crystal ball fotr decades ago, and William B. Colby, now Honorary President of
the Sierra Club, was looking into it when he Trote the club's membership on the
last day of 1909:

"I predict that long before Hetch Hetchy could possibly be needed for a
water supply for San Francisco, the travel thither will have become so great
and its needs as a campground, particularly in relation to the surrounding
park, so urgent, as to preclude the possibility of its use as a reservoir.
What I am opposed to is the determination right now that the Hetch Hetchy
shall be flooded fifty years from now. I feel that the decision ought prop-
erly to be reserved for those who live fifty years hence. We surely can
trust that their decision will be a wiser one than any we can make for them."

The decision, we know, would have been entirely different in 1959. But
how many wrong decisions are we rushing to make now that will erase other
Retch Retchys, unconscionably for all time? Our children deserve better.

Or to put it in annotated allegory:

This, our civilized world, is the house that Jack built. We like most
of it.

And this, our living wilderness, is the garden that Jack didn't build on,
the open space and the wild-land beauty that graces his house. It is his
only garden, and we know that there is no more where it came from.

Jack is very capable; he can doggedly expand his house, build a three-car
garage, and pave the remaining space except for an outcrop or two of rock in
the northwest forty. And we can see that he's on the verge.

If only Jack would pause a moment, to look up and to seel He isn't going
to like the end result himself, and his children surely will prefer to inherit
a balanced estate, for they will have no place else to go.

Finally, I should like to include, with your permission, the recommenda-
tions and summary of proceedings of the Fifth Biennial Wilderness Conference
that I mentioned in the summary of my own statement here today. In one sense
it is long; but in another sense it is extremely brief, because it distills

* See "Hetch Hetchy--Once Is Too Often," SCB, June 1954. See also Sierra Club
sound-and-color film, 'Two Yosemites."
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with a remarkable economy of vords the essence of what so many people, of so
aMny walks of life, have contributed in their thinking and work to enable us
to reach the historic milestone ve find ourselves at today. The record of
this hearing will become, I am convinced, an important sourcebook on the rela-
tionship of wilderness to law. What follows is the best reflection I can find
of the broad grass-roots support for what you are seeking to accomplish.

THE WILDERNESS CONFERENCES

A decade ago Norman B. ("Ike") Livermore, Jr., then a Director of the
Sierra Club, urged a joint meeting of the administrators (Park and Forest Service
officials) and users (hikers, riders, campers, packers) of Sierra Wilderness
areas. In the spring of 1949 the Sierra Club sponsored the High Sierra Wild-
erness Conference. Two days of meetings at the Claremont brought together
nearly 100 officers and individuals from the federal and state services, the
Packers' Asscc-ation, and outing clubs.

Probably the most important result of that first Conference was the dis-
covery--not entirely unexpected--that the concerns of each of the groups were
shared by a number of the others. Just realizing that someone else was
"helping them worry" seemed to encourage people, and the approaches to some
of the problems suddenly became less difficult. The groundwork was thus laid
for cooperation between various workers who had not until then recognized from
what quarters help might be expected. One of the best of the decisions
reached by the first Wilderness Conference was that others should be held.

The Second Wilderness Conference, in 1951, took cognizance of the findings
that whatever threatens a wilderness in the Sierra is essentially the same as
what threatens unaltered lands in any other part of the world. More people
came to this meeting than to the first and from farther afield. The nature
of the threats to natural lands was more clearly recognized and defined, and
it was urged that conservationists work for a national wilderness-preservation
system, with legislation to strengthen the protection of our preserves from
destructive exploitation, either in inappropriate activity or in too inten-
sive use.

The 1953 Wilderness Conference drew 145 participants from all over the
West and from such distant places as New York, Washington, Alaska, and Bavaria;
it was remarkable for the great fundamental agreement among the majority of the
participants. It was characterized by a search for ways to express the values
of wilderness in non-commercial terms; it was clear that the esthetic and
spiritual worth of wild country is recognized.

An important accomplishment of this third Conference was the recognition
that some of the values of wilderness are to be found even in city parks,
although those values are more numerous and more significant as we get farther
from urban centers and closer to the heart of true wilderness. Clear ctate-
ment of this concept illuminated the possibility of beginning education for
proper wilderness use even on city playgrounds and progressing as the user's
experience progresses from the familiar to the new--from the city to the
unaltered wilderness. The place to start wilderness education is wherever
receptive subjects may be found.

- 14 -
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The 1955 Conference, again the biggest yet, pressed for clear administrative
policy on wilderness and for expression of concepts in a form suitable as a
basis for legislation. It was obvious that the individuals and groups present
wer ready to say "O.K.ave understand one another now and we have a pretty
good idea of what we want. Let's go after itl" As this conference met, the
struggle to protect the wilderness and park values of Dinosaur National Monu-
ment was nearing its climax, and served to postpone the following through of
many of the recoandations. However, the first draft of legislation creating
a National Wilderness Preservation System was introduced in the 84th Congress,
Second Session, by Senator Hubert HUtpbrey, Representative John P. Saylor, and
others, and was ready for unveiling at the first Conference on Northwest Wild-
erness held in Portland in 1956. Major forward steps were taken in 1957, as
will be aeen herein.

TII FIFfH CONFERENCE

The Fifth Biennial Wilderness Conference brought 400 conservationists and
resource administrators from 19 states, Alaska and the District of Columbia
who are affiiated with some 120 conservation agencies and organizations.

The potentialities of the Wilderness System and Recreation Resource
Review were the subject around which the Conference was conducted. It was
the fifth such Conference organized by the Sierra Club. This year it was
co-sponsored by the American Planning and Civic Association, the Federation
of Western Outdoor Clubs, the Izaak Walton League of America,the National
Parks Association, the Wilderness Society and the California Academy of
Sciences. Directors of the principal federal land administering agencies
presented five of the 16 papers and took part in the discussions.

The Conference voted all recommendations at its closing session, as in
previous Conferences. All votes were voice votes and all but a minor one of
the eight resolutions were voted unanimously. Federal agencies were con-
sidered as abstaining inasmuch as they had not yet determined the relation
of the recmendations to the President's program.

Text of the recommendations follows:

THE EIGHT RECCK4ENDATIONS

1. Outdoor Recreation Resources Review

A satisfactory and well-rounded standard of life for our growing population
calls for enhanced appreciation of outdoor scenic and recreational values.

Exactly what acreage is required for fulfillment of the various needs is
unknown, but it is known that numerous superb areas, small and large, have
been lost, or have been whittled away during the past decade, and more are
slated for destruction. It is also known that areas not specifically set
aside for protection with strict boundaries and with strict standards of
quality have little chance for survival in our civilization.
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The valid pressures for raw materials (including water); agricultural
products; military requirements; transportation; growing urbanization and
industrialization; and commercial, mechanized recreation, and mass enter-
tainment are of such great intensity that in our preoccupation with them,
we could lose sight of scientific and inspirational values. This great and
prosperous nation can afford to give attention to the values which are more
than the material and are indispensable to the welfare of our people.

Developmental and resource surveys have been undertaken for land and
water uses, including forest products, minerals, water, highway, military
and urban development. However, these surveys have to date given scant, if
any, consideration to wilderness and other scenic and outdoor recreational
needs.

It is essential to know before it is too late that wilderness, wildlife,
scenic, and other outdoor recreational resources still are available, where
they are, and what is the type and quality of each, and their relation to
the preservation of wilderness. It is also essential to estimate how many
and what types of each we shall need in fifty and a hundred years, and how
we may best save those selected for preservation with high standards of size
and quality in perpetuity. If the opportunity remaining to save these out-
door recreational resources is lost now, it will be lost forever.

To this end, we recommend in principle the Out&or Recreation Resources
Review Bill (8. 846, H.R. 3592, and others).

We further recomcend legislative provision for temporary protected status,
pending completion of the inventory contemplated in the Outdoor Recreation
Resource Review, of certain lands of probable high scenic, recreational, and
scientific potential as determined by the Commission; on lands so protected
there should be no intrusion or development that would preclude their subse-
quent use in the highest public good in accordance with criteria developed
in the course of the inventory.

We urge that the legislation establishing the survey not be misinterpreted
so as to interfere with the adoption of other legislation to provide for the
immediate protection of wilderness and of resources in need of such immediate
action.

2. Basic Wilderness Protection

In accordance with proposals made, studied, and developed in 1951 and 1953,
during the second and third biennial wilderness conferences, the Fourth
Biennial Wilderness Conference meeting in Berkeley, California, two years ago
on March 19, 1955, adopted a 'major recommendation" urging basic Federal legis-
lation for wilderness preservation. This resolution was as follows:

"We recommend basic legislation, or a joint resolution of Congress, to
establish a system of wilderness areas and to provide for their protection
.specifically by law regardless of what agency they may be under at present.
However, we recommend that the agencies at present administering these areas
continue to administer them."
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The Fifth Biennial Wilderness Conference, meeting in San Francisco, Cali-
fornia, on March 16, 1957, is encouraged to note that such legislation has
nov been introduced in the Congress of the United States.

Coaonly known as "the wilderness bill," 8-1176 in the Senate, and a
series of similar measures in the House of Representatives have been sponsored
by a number of legislators in the Senate by Hubert H. Humphrey of Minnesota
and a group of co-sponsors of both political parties from coast to coast:
Senators Margaret Chase Smith of Maine, Joseph S. Clark, Jr., of Pennsylvania,
Frank J. Lausche of Ohio, Paul H. Douglas of Illinois, Alexander Wiley of
Wisconsin, Karl E. Mundt of South Dakota, James D. Murray of Montana, Warren 0.
Magnuson and Henry M. Jackson of Washington, and Wayne Morse and Richard L.
Neuberger of Oregon; in the House by Representatives John F. Baldwin, Jr., and
George P. Miller of California, Lee Metcalf of Montana, Henry S Ruess of Wis-
consin, Barratt O'Hara of Illinois, and John P. Saylor of Pennsylvania.

We commend these legislators for their leadership in sponsoring this mea-
sure and, supporting the bill in principle, we urge that it be further studied
through adequate hearings, clarified, perfected, and enacted.

We believe that large-size wilderness should be protected in perpetuity
under true wilderness conditions, and that its preservation is essential to
the cultural, historic, esthetic, recreational, and scientific needs of the
country, and to the physical well-being of all its people. To provide there-
for, we conclude that:

1. A continental wilderness system representing all major types of wilder-
ness must be established firmly, to include units of such quality, size, and
variety as to provide adequate scope and space.

2. most of the units that qualify for this sytem have either already been
designated by the Forest Service, or exist without specific designation on
national forests or on lands administered by the National Park Service and by
other government agencies, and these agencies should continue to protect the
areas of wilderness on the lands under their jurisdiction.

3. Inasmuch as the mounting pressures for raw materials and development
ariJ predictably capable of encroaching upon and modifying all the remaining
natural land of the country, it is now necessary: a to make the clearest
possible statement of national wilderness policy, (b) to reinforce it with
full public understanding of wilderness values, and (c) to provide maximum
legislative and administrative protection.

4. Administrative agencies are to be commended for advancing the concept
of wilderness protection. Without specific legislative authority and review,
however, some agencies cannot now withstand mounting pressures for commodity
development on lands that should remain wild, and other agencies are becoming
progressively less able to do so. A clear legislative basis for wilderness
protection is needed.

The Fifth Biennial Wilderness Conference accordingly endorses the National
Wilderness Preservation System Bill, realizing that this generation's decision
to preserve wilderness will be subject to each succeeding generation's review,
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but that it will not have this choice unless an adequate preservation program
is now developed.

3. Arctic Wilderness

Virtually all of Northeast Alaska lying east of the Canning and upper
Chandalar rivers and Old Woman Creek and north of latitude 650 15' N is still
a primeval Arctic wilderness not elsewhere duplicated in our nation, and
studies indicate that the highest and most productive and sustained economic,
scientific, and cultural use of this area, for Alaskans and for the entire
nation, will be as a perpetual wilderness.

We recommend that the Bureau of Land Management formally designate and
administer this area as an Arctic wilderness; that the assistance of approp-
riate sister agencies be invoked where advisable, and that suitable regula-
tions be established to recognize and perpetuate its primitive conditions and
to encourage all types of economic and cultural use that are compatible with
the paramount objective of maintaining unimpaired the ecological conditions
within the area;

We further recommend with regard to other areas in the Brooks Range that
a cooperative investigation be made by Alaskans, by the Bureau of Land Manage-
ment and appropriate sister agencies and by wilderness organizations looking
toward the establishment of additional wilderness areas in the Brooks Range.

4. Three Sisters Wilderness, Oregon

In order to permit further consideration of the wilderness terrain of the
Three Sisters region before irreversible action has been taken to destroy it,
we recommend that the 53,000-acre portion not included in the Three Sisters
Wilderness Area be allowed to continue in its present primitive condition,
without roads and without logging, at least until the completion of such
studies as contemplated in the proposed Outdoor Recreation Resources Review,
including an evaluation of the relation of the Three Sisters to the national
requirement for wilderness preservation.

5. Northern Cascades of Washington

We recommend that the Forest Service invite the participation of other
public agencies and qualified representatives of the public in a continuation
and broadening of the land-management study of the wild and superlatively
scenic areas of the Northern Cascades of Washington between Stevens Pass and
the Canadian boundary, to the end that the highest public use of this area
may be assured in the long run.

6. Nonconforming Uses in Wilderness

We are disturbed by the existence of certain nonconforming practices within
certain wilderness areas which now undermine and which, if not checked, will
destroy the wilderness values of these areas. Among these practices are
prospecting and mining, the building of access roads to mines and other inhold-
ings, and the landing of private planes on inholdings and in wilderness areas.
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W recommend, therefore, that wilderness, wild, primitive and roadless
areas be withdrawn from mineral entry, the landing of airplanes within these
areas be terminated, and vested rights and inholdings be purchased so that
nonconforming uses may be excluded from these areas.

7. Wilderness of the Olympic Strip, Washington

We recommend that the Ocean strip which is part of Olympic National Park
and which contains the last primitive beach in the United States, should be
preserved as wilderness, and that in order to provide for this preservation
the National Park Service should acquire sufficient land adjacent thereto to
accommodate any coastal highway constructed in this region.

8. 1959 Conference

We recommend that the continuity of the Wilderness Conferences over the
past years be continued for the future under a chairman to be named by the
Sierra Club as the sponsoring organization.

d1 -****" r
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Mr. Aspinall. Do I understand that there is a request

to make this newspaper article a part of the record?

Mrs. Post. Mr. Poole made tbt request.

Mr. Aspinall. I will object to that. It is not Mr.

Poole's statement. It is Dr. Gabrielson's statement. I am

sure that Dr. Gabrielson can make his appearance some time

during these hearings'and ask for that to be included. It

may be placed in the file for whatever it is worth, but I

am not permitting anybody to make a statement as part of

the stat', int here and not be present for cross examination

on the statement.

Mrs. Pfost. You have heard the request that the arti-

cle be made a part of the file. Without objection the

Gabrielson newspaper statement will be made a part of the

file.

Mr. Zahniser. I would like to preent Mr. Sigurd Olson

of Ely, Minnosota.

STATEMENT OF MR. SIGURD OLSON, ELY, MINNESOTA

Mr. Olson. I have a statement that I would like to

submit as though read in the record.

Mr.Saylor. I ask unanimous consent that the statement

of Mr. Olson be inserted in the record at this point as

though road.

Mrs. Pfost. Hearing no objection, it is so ordered.

(The staiemenL referred to is as follows:)
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June 20# 1967

To te C mawitte onlUterior AM Insular Aftairej of the ?lntd States Seate
and House of Repruenetativee, rer~Ardixg the establishment of a Wilderness
Preserrat ion System.

Xy nmeIs Siguard Y. Olsonp v7 residenee - Ilyo Umosaesta. while
I on affiliated with a abor mat *f or-_rratiox grouseIn an .tfeioa* advisory,,
and ssultant eapaItyp 1 an speaking todky as an individual insaah as the
gimpewith hish I anSmoo0lated are sumittinig their ...- satements throssgt
other. As an individuals I sm paying my mm expensiesadndaet drawing on the
twade of any orgaisation. I do this beeauee of my lifelong interest in the
matter at Wildornss Preservation and eamuse 1 onmus oeoaaseuas to the
tutu". of ouzr ramainihsg wil areas*

In my early years. I vft a guide to wilderness expeditioAm# explorii4f
am country, ea~ring on asientifitoiuvstigatiwns, fishing and bhwi La, an
during those years 1 em. to realize that the wilderness experience was very
isperke~t to many T40Ple# ons that sontributed to happiness and oontontunt.
I beam. so Impressed with what wilderness did to merthat ! deelded to do
whatever I sould to preserve It*

Biua* thoee years, while I have continued ray personal explorattion
at wilderness all over the aootimat, I have **in as all of yo~t have its
steaty dimunition. All of you know what Jt means to see a wild vlaos. of
primitive beauty desecrated and more a&M more# in the fae of our *xpanding
9eoeaW# and wiftly rising population,, this sems inevitable.1 have been
greatly concerned a"out this grsAual disappearaaoe of rAtural area", because
I feel It Indleates a trend of developMent whicLh ultimately si~ht destroy
the last 'vesttgae-it the Amrios that wasn.

T en m uirsoed *.at wildornees is :Woessary to tho vslfarv of cvur
peoples that without it they 'will niot survive the stresses *Ad strains of
a meshanioal are.

Pr. 7Il1Iaui tIennrr the famous pejyohiAtr1stp .qid just. a short
time ago "Today mertaIlealth is porh:aps theo amtet rsbo to the equilibrium
of Aneriea-- life. V*nfkl relaxation Is far more imPOrtadt than physical rest."

TCxatly what does he eAwn by suehal, statement? 1h. do weo as amrioans
fill aver half of our hospital beds with the -ca ally Ill? .fh, do vo Gooa
45~ million aaprmo tablets dally, 2. nillion sloping pills, C, nilliori pro.
soriptions of tmanquilizers? 1-hy Is one child In tenA utterint fromzsoee
retal affliction? ).hy is hear; deecase, hiph blood pressure and related
41starbam"s at ani all tine !to~? Ay. in spite of Gmort#, *, coneienoes,
-and a high standard of living, are we such a nevous, h Ijh-strunj, jittery
people?

1belteve the anawer t,-)thoese oueatio,, Involves a look backward
Into opr past as a race. A'arrison :!,Jrown In his book "I-an And ?he /utur.*
saYs,

"M'an hao been on this planet for perhaps a million years, hayl 1
arrived t~'rourh the slow anld teortiuois rrooesses of evolution
3ocno t~ro billion v'crs after tite or-OIwas fre.
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Asorinzg to BairissmBy oU, if we were to eagrews the o
at USe emithto o am ar# a W"only 'Dothy..hour. at 0So x ifant
MAP"WCOLiOG.* M say during the peut 100#000 yers less thAn20 10amte
*At St is three howtiespa#,h"oheh inrged tiesthe priult IWe W
aS=d tke StAtvire160th Phyos, -3lY nd mentally at the NORs*sapti" we
k"m today. This period iceludd the at*** Age of the primitive hunter
axd fishormnthe endless nini wMeringsp the Pleolithis mii
Mo~lithtse oultueo frot hiek all of us have $met adually uaaeVOelzed
into a tilolAM 9.Mait omea i sh the fist attaqt.o wre madeto
till thesols, mahs provision ter the future#ad to live with his (~lovm
for zmt al preteetioz.

Bust oly during the 1"-t 1lO,rC")0 to 2.0,C.O years, 1..1mA*s @5
this tix ole1 has there been aaiq evidesee of real cultural advance
Durin tMaw mlEawintorof man's three hour history, he built the anoicut
etvilinatimor 1the near easto -rheolorists are wiarthInj then today,
diggiig them out rre the windblown dust that has covered thea. To us
they sown very old, but actually they %re young. Kost north ftropewi
hmver seed not look that far 1xnk betor6 they f Ind their own primitive
begimixrs and the birth of their partie'ilar eultures and we must me~ember
that even as late ase the Unaan ennquosts# t. more few second. iway, many of
their awesbrml stoolr. were Itin7r primitive lives.

By*n a humired years ago, 1-seeo)d oft ie e-art6h1sahistory, we
were close to the seland thoupjh our 3iviligation was ehantinr, swiftly,
it was still prodesinsAztly agrarian, vory uveh it part of R pattern of
life that with few omeptioiis had beon ono witi; the slow rtythx-s of nature.
Then rul the turn of the century we ben 'toeorrenoe the first
explosions of toolkinlog1oa1 adivrnoe. Twvo rreitt warm added Inpotus and
urgeney to soieatit!11o researeb mand suddenly we found ;itroolves hurled Into
the whirri.,q .omploxity mW the umaohiri. age.

idAy millions aire out 'nff 'ro-r any dtrset catrio9. wi. tho earth,
are disoovorinr the- oan it70 without )avin. ti rat-her wood, arr water,
or hurnt foed, that matters of seauritN an~d Cooc~unity welfare &re taken
care of by others who are never seeon.It Is an exottiz4 world In which to
live ad to nsauy it seems asthtoul)Y. the nillaiuva Is at hand. ho longr
is therssArythiig to fear except man' $ ow-i Inrenultv jand ho ai deote
himself In large part to the pursuit of nleasuroa sr tc t'.o arts.

tut evide-ase is appeariiig that all is rot well, liere is wide
wuest, frustration and even boredcp with the aew life. It io the pace,
say the experts,, the speed of rodern oity life, Froudian coripaxezs, now
foods, the wars, a thousand aberratixns of' t), %I-idp but nona of thos4 toll
all the truth, nois -of then place their diarnostio fir-ier xi tie wole
trouble,, that M1i is not yet ready for Hs raehirie eivilisation, that
phyl oloio ally and pavaholorigal>A -O Is still s0o loso to the SlAPlioities
and elewxezi'al atrurp les from vwhich he rooevtly evolved that he oaniot forget.

'rh6 fact Is that m~odern. wan In spits of 1ig s sawinj urba-ittyan
sophistioatio-i Is still a priaiitive roa,.1-ia the forests of hlum n,
killiar his meat, soratohiar the oart), with af stiok, ratye~qj nut$ and
fruits ai V'aryostIN-, (rrin boptwee@,%tho ot-uup% n' t'urrndout trees. that.
the old f na as well as the brias WRautI f otl nnT are at IlIl very nual) a
part ,)f h Im.
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xvea thoqgh he 1is abweing w relisadoub.l*Ls.now piloephies
as& we byw whisk atteapi to ~alia his relatiouu*ip to the valverse at
to God& there to a 0014" of LedAptens within kin is a pofuewtul asetalgias
hs eot 'uterstsad,'a paing wat that tk* neaw rld of gAdgtry, *"

mat eannot still* No dashes from 'plae to plaes. filling his leisure
ttm with dirersims, ias r daring to be alone with his themgt The old
snat .beleaging is gem sAd the Idireat need of being ?art of a stabilized

oee*1"gea1 eyl.In spite se ftorts w almost oeompleto cuitrol of his
onvieawt, he it o ofilsed a"d wisesuro.

A strange and violent world Is his witb the great sileswes reip1eed
by te rear of jets and the cties he has built vibrating with aeles. Tbe
amlls of weeds sad fields and forests ar*repaised by those of eftaustie.n ad
industry ad his senses are Vbmbsd* with impreesions he has mover knem
befeooRe. .has aft* a loafway during thAepast 100,00years andvwere it
not for the suimerged-ali'sa ths t--his-miqueoftmiouss, a subeewneieu~ssteeped
in a rasial experlenes th-at knew noth in t oftehnology,, he night wake his
adjustmnt more easily* But unfortunately the biolegisal ad metal proseisss
ce any speeles simply ,refuse to'be hurried. Adaptations take soons of tine.

C..,*, ?revslyan ones said, Not are literally ehildreu of the earth
ad removed fromn her our spirit wither. s ad ru, is to various fonws of iasanity.
ftless we ean refresh ourselves at least by iatarmittant oontact with nature

we erow awry.'

The great historiack was rirht. I,* are litorall' cohileren of the
earth. WFhon. modern an 3tsps Into a dimly liehted oooktail lounge for a
Asesttng with his flellaws, 'e *Is back In hi-s save when he eshooks tl-o therm~ostat
of his apartrienti. he Is still kladlinr a tirel when he steps out on the street
at night and &"* "rion -,lowing in the sky even though it Is di1med by the
lights of the city, he Is doint what men have done sines the dspi of the rase.
Mazr of %he atmieage and Its coomliettJideolo910-itg i3 still -nrt of the past,

Tho Pioneer Ays ars over a" thes entire oompleax of Arerican life
has eh&anred. T.he land io harnessed now, roads everywhere, telephone and
powfir "n oil limes emesssW rev and more ti-Mlhtl tie1-%t wild arsa3. Only
in a fow places is there any wilderness left. T'he rest Is lisried aAd subject
to th will of' man andP.ll this has taker.' laoo in the,9 ilort sr-aoe of' four
hundred a&M fifty eight years and zeot of it atuall' Within tho last century.

Ours Is a promwor-.us land &a-A all the rood thing s of lit* "em
available for yr von*#In. *t pite of the, tensions of tTrn cold 'war and tho
outbursts of voec in m&Ay quarters of this globe, there In optimumm sa"
hope. usineie s Ine~riadinz and tV.o atioral .rooma roewino- b:y leaips and
bouidsa iiousint a.d Industrial expansion are swiftly tillinr In the blank
spaces between the tc'wr&. ',he faoe or the oarth Is boin C hawed *aid with

~t~ed~isI wui in t!. Inventioaaand uanfaotur* of earth movinr equip"nto
we ore turaing louse fleets of glo~ntin bohernths whiche are altoring the courses
of rivers. b uiinr super 'igrh0wys aarniss terrain t,'nt until -Im w ws considered
Impassable.

"t is v),- *&A:- rir ait Die3 lo-.o R:aconya w eIrton ,o

from the frontier to chaags the patterti -f their thinking innitly. millions
thi refuse t-) believe that resouroas are -tot Inexhaustible aud the froatiers

a thian1,r tile past. Irnherntl,. Aorioans are still part of tho boom days
with the eoiploltatizri of all resources and olimintati:)a of the wild the expected
course of events. ,lcot spiritual values still does iat take equal place witv,
the aotu-.reto evidanion c 1' vv *xpatdla),econrviyr
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Imivvrp w have .. t "asidew AS6 iliem asom f ildermuus
aampoaeei by our sat imal parks amidmomsnte. owurntioenal fowesb, wild
Uft. g'rigwamd Indiosn ds. *Sinso these rsssnatIons wets established
they have besa eneteutly shllesged sa weighed In Use light at the .14
ploes.. pUeeesby *t atOasdeninated thought as Vi North Arcaa estninent
sim, the doys of diseorery. Today we ame feared to justify then oasatatly
to psetest tm f rom induitrit~m1exploitation ar s ersia1 4.Yowmto
1hish eould destMeytheisoFurinig the past fer years, wo, hav fought invasions
at the sat tonlalPrs# national tereste, a&M wildltsrefuge systeas.

The bttles go as eostwAtly end are Ineas"Ing in intensity., The
grnat task teday ef all Interested In the j'res~rvatio atC natural areas is
to Jitsti4 that In the oyes of a people the majority oCe whear still
ewissed that nothing should interfere with the grinding prorross of our
mba~teal &go. ?ven though the&* areas are seemingly protested by law and
titastwativs, d..r**sD It has boo otasessary to justify their proteetioc.
f rom every acoesliable aniIe.

To pimee, a precis* value om wilderaoss Is as dlti'ioult as to
plain a dollar slorn on the worth of ani heirloca or a laadrark. The:. are
certain things that aamnot be evaluated besause of their emtional lapaot.
Wildervess in in Chis ategory. hhiluo ertain areas might have worth as
a museux piece or because of certainly soenic soiontific, or eoomie feators,
its real worth will always depend an how people fool about it and what it doess
to them. It it contributed to spiritual welfare if it gives than Perspetive
end a *oen eoftonenoeSwith rnuutaias forests wand usersp or in any way enriahes.
their lives, then the area le beyom'5 nie.

Nildorrieas f Ills a vitsal need *Voday as it spiritual backlo, to the
high speed meehantoal world L a whicr- v Live. It IsAurprisl.r i on
production lines and *ynhottlo leastres fail to satisfy the aient noods
of modern *an that he iaistinatively turns toward the wilderness to f ind the
naturalnesa" stability the race m3ne. rnew. The fifty Odd millim in ho
visited the natio.iAl pi.rks atad forebts lamt year thought the- went for theA
scenery and the Joy of' trai,,lbWt *),at they really "ent for was to catch
a hint of the printeval, a eauseo!' the old rAjosty a" mystery of the t.aknown.
A nere gliMpse cfC the wild eet In moion dormant reaotions 1(,M associated
with solitude.

It behocnvos us to look lozw, anu searehini ) a 'ur last wilderness
regions before we abanon the&*.1S@ must riot fail In our enrr)sinent with
physical needs to Rlso rakeoProvision in equal proportion for the satisfeetion
of cultural needs. 4filderneuu egrionse mAy be a key to equilibrium~ in an are
uIhere teohnolo"ioal advfrno. had tar outsiirippod rz na kociwlege of his
hiumanitaelan and spiritijal ieeds. Any iati:>n whlo'- today Yh%* the vision to
set aside ani od for t)-e future sanictuariea Of 'Who spirit is eatinw in
awoodanoe wit! maz' spreif ouadest reepr wromt-3. I ibhe days to come, the
*ildorness eoneept nust is, )oar and shininr, mou;-h to captur. e ainations.
It must take its place as ita oltural fore witkh all o'rrresiois of0's
deerpest yearnings and him noblest achieverents In the realm of the mind*
It must be powerful onu -1k to vW stand everywho 9ila the world,, the oaming
and enormous pressures af industry anid population. A treat deelsioni faces
us today and 1-i the oholoos that must be roade vii:- lie tho futiireolof %he racet
and the rzoad n'an must Pollco#. Amerieseoi ill afford not to do everrthiV
In its pamer to preserve tj~e wild areas w'iacih -vke aih t n-ortsao* to .-ur welfare.
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Mr. Zahniser. I would like to present Mr. George Fell,

Executive Director of Nature Conservancy.

STATEMENT OF MR. GEORGE FELL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF
NATURE CONSERVANCY

Mr. Fell. I have a statement.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection Mr. George B. Fell's

statement will be made a part of the record at this point

as though read.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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sTATuIBr T O OM B. FLL
BUORECTZ

- BLIC ZUJDB UBCCOMITO FO TBE
' HOU COMcTn4 F 0P INTROR AD IIBUIAR ATFAIB

on . .R500

SJune 21, 1957

I am George B. Fell, Executive Director of the Nature Conservancy. On

behalf of our BDard of Governors, I vish to place our organization on record in

favor of H.R.500 and similar bills to protect our remaining vi.derness areas.

The Nature Conservancy is a fairly new institution on the American

scene, It is a nationwide nonprofit membership society devoted primarily to

bringing a? i the preservation of natural areas for their scientific, educational,

and esthetic values. It was formed by scientists who have become increasingly

concerned about the need for preserving natural areas for use in biological re-

search. It is engaged in an active program of establishing nature preserves

under its own administration or under the ownership of other agencies. -Thus

-"ar, it owns nine tracts in four states and has participated in the preservation

of at least 20 other areas. These nature preserves are essentially little

wilderness areas that supplement the magnificent wilderness preserves in Federal

ownership. They are located in our more populous regions where large wilderness

areas no longer exist.

The direct efforts of our organization, however, are inadequate before

the onslaughts of the organized forces of exploitation. We can e ae from

desecration plots here and there but we must look to government action to pre-

serve the larger areas in public ownership.

Wilderness areas have very great values from a scenic and recreational

standpoint. In addition, they have Inestimable scientific and educational values.

These preserves are the laboratories, and the myriad kinds of plants and animals

.that live within them are the raw materials, for future biological research. They

are storehouse of scientific treasure ranking with libraries and museum.

Scientists have hardly begun the task of unlocking the knowledge and benefits

hidden within them. It has been pointed out, for instance, that despite the
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:. 4txaiEc of, any thowsads of plants which mny have crop potentials, modern

'i agriulture is tlll wholly dependent on a few dozen that vere domesticated by

ouw prehistoric ancestors back in the stone ag. Wilderness areas also provide

solentlets vith "check areas" or experimental "controls" to gauge the effects of

faring, forestry, grazing, and other practices on similar lands. Ecologista

carrying on long-tera research on the relationships within various natural plant-

animas communities are dependent on the existence of preserved areas.

We particularly vish to comend the proposal in the present bill that

the Smithsonian Institution maintain the headquarters and records of the National

Wilderness Preservation Council. This should assure adequate recognition of the

scientific value of the wilderness areas and of the records to be accumulated by

the Council over the years.

Because wilderness is so readily destroyed by our modern civilization,

we believe adequate checks and balances are an essential part of a wilderness

preservation system. The fate of these areas should not be in the hands of single

individuals or agencies. We believe the present bill provides appropriate safe-

guards.

It cannot be overemphasized that we in this generation have the last

chance to set aside wilderness. Only those lands which we deliberately establish

as preserves will remain in anywhere near their natural condition for the benefit

of future generations. All the rest of our landscape will be progressively altered

to serve man's interests. The next generation, and the generations following, will

always have the choice of exploiting the areas we have preserved but they will not

be able to preserve the areas we have exploited.

* * *
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Mr. Zahniser. I would like now to introduce Mr. Fred A.

Packard, Executive Secretary of the National Parks Associa-

tion.

STATEMENT OF MR. FRED A PACKARD, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
OF THE NATIONAL PARKS ASSOCIATION

Mr. Packard. I have a statement of the National Parks

Association dealing with the national park aspects of this

bill. I will submit it for the record.

There is attached to it an article relating to the wil-

derness bill and the national parks, part of which I request

be submitted in the record. I understand it has already been

submitted.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection Mr. Packard's statement

will be made a part of the record as though read and his at-

tachments will be made a part of the file.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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NATIONAL PARKS ASSOCIA TON o y
2144 1 STiRET, N. W.

WASmNGToN 7, D. C.

STATEMENT ON H.R. 1960 AND RELATED BILLS

TO ESTABLISH A NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESERVATION SYSTEM
June 20 and 21, 1957

Pred M. Packard
Executive Secretary

The National Parks Association is a non-governmental citizens' organization

dedicated to the continued preservation of America's national park system and to

stimulating an informed public understanding and appreciation of the values

represented by these reservations to the welfare of our people now and in the

future. The purposes and provisions of the Wilderness Bill are directly within

the province of the Association and they have been discussed thoroughly by its

Executive Committee since it was first proposed that such legislation be

introduced. On April 2, 1957, the Executive Committee unanimously adopted the

following resolution endorsing the pending proposals:

"The protection and perpetuation of wilderness is one of the

primary purposes for which the National Parks Association was estab-

lished. From its founding in 1919, the Association has steadfastly

supported programs for the preservation of our wilderness resources

in our national parks, national forests, state parks and wherever it

remains as part of the American scene.

"The reservation of the national park system and of the

Wilderness Areas and Wild Areas in the national forests has stimu-

lated public recognition of the outstanding contributions preservation

of the natural outdoors makes to the welfare of the people. Increased

population pressures, combined with more leisure time, have multiplied

the pressures on our national parks and similar areas and have made

imperative permanent reservation of suitable lands to fill this need.
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"Perpetuation of the wilderness resource is contingent on the

strongest possible safeguards to prevent its destruction or

dilution, once it has been determined this resource represents the

highest and wisest use of a particular land area. The Association

believes recognition of the value of wilderness as a policy of the

Congress is essential to ensure permanence to this program.

"Therefore, the National Parks Association affirms its support

of legislation now before Congress to establish a National Wilderness

Preservation System, and endorses that legislation in the belief

it is essential to the welfare of the nation."

Since other witnesses will give special consideration to the features of these

bills which relate to national forest areas, national wildlife refuges and Indian

lands-,this statement is confined to discussion of the sections dealing with the

national park system.

A basic question is whether any of the provisions including national parks and

monuments within the National Wilderness Preservation System would have adverse

effect on or weaken the existing laws under which the National Park Service

administers itsareas, or interfere with such administration as now conducted. We

believe no such effect will result. Section 2(b) conforms to present legal

requirements that onrL.y Congress can abolish a national park or national monument,

It provides for the designation of those particular places within the national parks

and monuments that shall be used for developmental purposes, and that the remainder

of these areas shall be kept in the original wilderness state unmodified by such

development. This appears to be in accord with National Park Service thinking and

with the Mission 66 program, for Park Service officials refer to the areas to be

developed as "sacrifice areas" and Mission 66 planning contemplates restriction of

construction activities to such places.

This proposed law would, in all likelihood, make such planning more permanently

effective and ensure that the care with which this program is being conducted will

,. '
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not be controverted by future action. Indeed, we believe just this kind of thinking

led John Muir and the other great pioneers of the national park concept to found

the national parks for the preservation of outstanding natural features for the

enjoyment of the people under developmental policies that will not impair these

features. this concept was eloquently written into the foundational Act of August

25, 1916, and is re-emphasized in the present proposed legislation.

there is one feature of this legislation about which there is some variance of

opinion among the members of the Executive Caumittee of the National Parks Assoc-

iation, namely, whether it is essential or desirable that individual units of the

national park system be selected for inclusion by name. Some members thought it

preferable that the provisions of Section 2(b) and other pertinent parts of the

legislation serve to bring all units of the national park system into the National

Wilderness Pi.servation System. It is quite possible to suggest some areas, in

addition to tlose named, as qualified because they contain wilderness - as, for

example, the Cumberland Gap National Historical Park and the anticipated Chesapeake

and Ohio National Historical Park, to name but two. The Association has no firm

opinion on the point, and relies on the wisdom of the Congress to determine which

approach best serves the purposes of the bill.

Finally, it should be noted that enactment of this proposal may well have far-

reaching effects toward advancing sound conservation thinking in many other nations.

More than 40 other countries have followed America's example by establishing

national parks, and many of them have other kinds of wilderness reserves as well.

In some countries the park systems are most ably protected and administered, notable

examples being those of Japan and of Belgium in the Belgian Congo, and of Brazil.

Other nations, however, have a less mature attitude toward such reservations;

they have not formulated definite policies and are prone to protect such areas only

so long as some powerful politician or interest does not exert pressure to exploit

them. Sometimes their national parks are thought of mainly as attractions to reap

tourist revenue. To the dedicated administrators and citizen conservationists
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confronted with such attitudes, positive expression by the Congress of the United

SStates that preservation of wilderness in its natural state is a policy of the

United States government will be encouraging, gratifying and'stimulating.

. i.. ~- C "' Th cIT /,./ VA 
/~/~AA

'- C .,r
~ "

. /3 'fq

//<^ILL ^
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Mr. Zahniser. I would like now to introduce Dr. Paul

Sheppard, Jr.

STATEMENT OF DR. PAUL SHEPPARD, JR., CONSERVATION
CHAIRMAN OF THE NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE GARDEN

CLUBS, INC.

Dr. Sheppard. I have a statement that I would like to

submit as though read.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection the statement of Dr. Paui

Sheppard will be made a part of the record at this point as

though read.

Bearing no objection, it is so ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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STATEMENT

Dr. Paul Fhepard, Jr., Conservation Chairman

The National Council of S't Goard3,, Olubs, Inc.
160 Central Park :,, N't for;, 1N,7

Before the Suboommittee on Public Lar.de, 1.ouc .con-''ittee on interiorr and
Insular Affairs at Public i:enrin o.; Jur.- 21, 1 7

Oongresaan Pfost and Members of the Subcormittee on Publio Lands:

My name io Paul H. Shepard, Jr., of 586 Olive St., Oalesburg, Illinois.
I a chirman of the Oonservation Committee of the National Council of
8tate Garden Clubs, an organization of 46 state federations with a member-
ship of about 590,C00 men and wcrmen. I am authctized by the president,
Mrs. Daniel J. Mooney, of Butte, Montana, to present a statement to you
expressing our interest in and support of H.Ro 160,

S . // 7{
At its annual meeting this year in Miami, Florida,,/n Morch 3, delegates

to the Notional Council resolved in support of tr H)-96. We believe it
will help ensure the preservation of wilderness areas by giving organiza-
tions such as ours an opportunity to bo heard concerning the administration
of those lands. It appears that, while interested groups do enjoy the
privilege of shoh hearings ao this concerning legislation, there io often
less ouch opportunity or forewarning regarding administrative deoisoone
which-ight seriously affect wilderness areas. This legislation would help
remedy this situation by establishing a council to disseminate information
Besides serving an a clearing house, the Council might also provide us with
sources and materials useful in conservation education The effect would.
be that appreciation of wildornoon could take its rightful place in the
education for the conservation of natural rosourcoo. This educational
activity Is, of course, one of the primary activities of many of our clubeo

Garden Club members are vitally interested in the preservation of natural
and wildorncos area. We recognize that, of all ronourceo, it is a rela-
tively now and unique concept, not yet obvious to the man in the street.
Vigilant protection of our national parks w.n carried on for 80 years by a
handful" of Oongreoomen and other who forooaw their future value. Now the
public in gonoral is beginning to appreciate that heritage. In wilderness
preservation we are perhapn till engaged in such rear-guard action. But
Inoreaoinr une of wildornooo point to a growing recognition of its value
in a world of increasing spood nnd overcrowding.

An an ooologilt, may I add that nciontitn are only beginning to realize
tho complexity of the natural habitat -- just n. others are diacovoring its
psychological v.luo to pooploe Thero nr niw tochniquoo and new inclinations
in science for learning that cannot be cotton in a laboratory or in the

rural Ir.ndrcrpoo H.R 1960( provioe- for tho kind of centralized agency that
will facilitate roeoarch in wilder;.onn lnd,.i
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Mr. Zahniser. I would now like to introduce MrS.Carl

Shoemaker of the National Council of State Garden Clubs.

STATEMENT OF MRS. CARL SHOEMAKER, NATIONAL COUNCIL OF
STATE GARDEN CLUBS

Mrs. Shoemaker. I am submitting a resolution on behalf

of the National Legislative Committee o the National Council

of State Garden Clubs.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection the statement will be made

a part of the record at this point as though read. Hearing

no objection, it is so ordered.

(The statement referred to is as follows:)
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Statement on Bahalf of The
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF STATE GARDEN CLUBS

In Support of
A NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESERVATION SYSTEM

Before The
Subcommittee on Public Lands, House Interior and Insular Affairs Committee

June 20-21, 1957

Presented by Mrs. C. D. Shoemaker, Washington, D. C.

*e***

The National Council of State Garden Clubs, an organization of more

than 300,000 members, is composed of affiliated garden clubs in h5 states and

the District of Columbia. Embraced in its broad program of conservation

interests is "the preservation of special areas." At its annual convention in

Miami, Florida in April of this year, the National Council adopted a resolution

endorsing S. 1176 by Senator Hubert Humphrey, and others, "To establish on -

public lands of the United States a National Wilderness Preservation System...."

I quote from that resolution, as follows:

"In recognition of the limirnishingtportion of the United
States that remains in its primitive condition, and c the
increasing importance of wilderness areas to the people of a
technological society, a plan which would help perpetuate
these lands has been submitted to Congress.

"We believe that in the conservation of natural resources
wilderness preservation has a place; that wilderness areas have
unique values which are esthetic and spiritual as well as
scientific and educational. In the broad field of planning
for the future, perhaps no type of land use requires such
explicit and firm designation as these areas which are so
vulnerable to an expanding economy. The wilderness areas of
America are living historical museums. They are the areas
to which many of our crowded and anxious population of the
future may look for perennial recreation."

Again we welcome the opportunity to endorse and strongly

support legislation now pending before your committee which is designed

to establish a positive program for preservation of the living wilderness.

Thank you very much.
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Mr. Zahniser. We certainly appreciate the graciousness

of the committee in conducting this hearing in this manner.

As our final spokesman I would like to present Mrs.

John A. Dyer, who has come here from Auburn, Washington, nea

Seattle. I would suggest since she has a prepared statement

that the committee hear her as it wishes and then request an]

of the rest of us for such time as we have.

Mrs. Pfost. There are three minutes remaining on the

division of time. We did not start until 10.10, with half

the time for the opponents and the other half for the pro-

ponents.

STATEMENT OF MRS. JOHN A DYER, REPRESENTING THE FEDERA-
TION OF WESTERN OUTDOOR CLUBS, THE MOUNTAINEERS, AND

TIE SEATTLE AUDOBON SOCIETY

Mrs. Dyer. I would like to include with my prepared

statement a letter signed by the President of the Federation

of the Western Outdoor Clubs whom I am representing today

be included with my statement.

I am also representing the Mountaineers and the Seattle'

Audobon Society.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection the statement of Mrs.

Dyer, together with the statement of the President of the

Federation of Western Outdoor Clubs, will be made a part of

the record at this point as though road. Hearing no objec-

tion, it is so ordered.

(The statement: referred to is as follows:)
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SJATIANTU BEFORB THE HOUSE SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS, June 21, 1957
on

H. R. 500, A Bill to Establish a National Wilderness Preservation
System

by

Mrs. John A* Dyer, 116 J St., N. B., Auburn, Washington representing-the-

Federation of Western Outdoor Clubs, The Mountaineers, and The Seattle Audubon

Society.

I am frs. John A. Dyer, front Auburn, Washington speaking for the Federation of

Western Outdoor Clubs, which has thirty-one member clubs, and I also am here on

the behalf of The Mountaineers of the State of Washington and the Seattle Audubon

Society. These groups all have a primary interest in wilderness through their

various activities of hiking, mountain climbing, camping. The mountaineering

enthusiasts do not find the same pleasure in scrambling up man-made edifices

when occasionally practicing on rock walls or the stairs of an office building,

These may strengthen the muscles or give some experience in technical climbing

problems, but it takes nature-made environment to put that special appeal in

mountaineering. The hiking or walking groups share the climber's innate love

for wilderness, but are content to look at but not scale higher slopes* Both

groups experience delight and peace and loveliness, all of which are man-
adult

regenerating forces (and it's not limited to the/male but finds its way into

the inner being of women, boys and girls.) These unmatched inspirational experiences

are found at their best in only God-touched forests, wildlife-grazed meadows,

unscarred mountains, lake gems, -istling rivers and streams reaching for their

original destinies.

We do hike in second growth forests, but sawed-stump evidences of past logging

obliterates the inspiration sought in wilderness. For many people seeking small

things thriving in wilderness gives extra pleasure -- the deerfoot vanilla leaf

carpeting a forest floor, an avalanche lily rushing into bloom even before the"

SRP00895



snow completely elts around it, a glimpse of a water ouzel flying barely above

a stream's splashing, and sneaking upon a marmot sunning himself before he has

a chance to warn all wild folks in his plot that a stranger is present looking

at them.

It is difficult to express what there is about wilderness, but these few words

are in hope that you will understand a little why we support this Wilderness

Bill being considered today. The lines of Edna St. Vincent Millay, "World,

world, I cannot get thee close enough" is the feeling that permeates my entire

being while in untrammeled country.

This is the first national conservation measure for which the Federation of

Western Outdoor Clubs and the Mountaineers have sent a delegate before Congress

from the Pacific Northwest. We strongly feel that congressional sanction for

wilderness as contained in this bill will give the additional strength needed to

maintain existing Forest Service Wilderness Areas, will permit the National Park

Service to be more explicit as to how and where to conserve forever their

precious wild lands beyond road ends accomplished under Mission 66. Bach agency

administering our federal wild country will be better able to give wilderness

a higher priority with the backing of Congress thoough the Wilderness Bill.

To us on the Pacific coast the bill seems to lack any provision for an important

federal wilderness land category. The very fine existing Forest Sertice Wild

and Wilderness Areas are included in the bill, attention is paid to inclusion of

Primitive Areas when they ard reclassified to wilderness status. However, in

Washington and Oregon, the U. S. Forest Service has fourteen Limited Areas* In

1952 these were listed by the Regional Office in Portland as "Proposed Wild and

Wilderness Areas". "Limited Area" is a term used primarily in Region 6, and

they are administered in the same manner as wilderness - no roads, timber removal,

mechanical means of travel or buildings ariallowed except on approval of the .

Regional Forester. This seems to be at his discretion and not necessarily a

-2"
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practice that would be binding on future regional foresters These limited

areas might be described as a "Stop, Look and Listen". In other words their
and

high wilderness value had been recognized, hat until the region determines

what commodity values they may have through examination they will remain wilderness.

The 90-day notice given in formal reclassification wf wilderness isn't required

in these cases s but the Region has done so in the two cases of classifying

them into wilderness. Thesw t ape fourteen Limited Areas in the two stateslJ '.a

Alpine Lakes, Cougar Lake, Glacier Peak, Monte Cristo, Packwood, and St. Helends

in Washington, and Anthony Lake, Diamond Lake, Eagle Creek, Illinois Canyon,

Sky Lakes, Snake River and Upqua in Oregon.

With the wilderness in these areas already recognized we wonder if it wouldn't

be desirable to include them in the Wilderness Bill in the same manner as Primitive

Areas are, and also specifying that the public be given the same opportunity to

be sur- of having a voice in their final disposition.

The Glacier Peak Limited Area is one of the most magnificent regions in the

nation. It has beautifully forested valleys penetrating high peaks. Nearly

twenty years ago it had been proposed for Wilderness Status, but fcogres& stopped,

the area was halved and the remaining portion given Limited Area standing. It

is now again being studied for wilderness designation, but regulations do not

require a public hearing. The Forest Service is aware of the intense public

interest in this area, however, and will undoubtedly conduct one. It is an

example of an area that should be given recognition in the Wilderness Bille

Prior to the opportunity of sendirt a representative to be here today, the

President of the Federation of Western Outdoor Clubs had prepared a statement,

copies of which had already been forwarded to the committee by hime I would

like to read it at this time.

(Insert statement of June 17, 1957 by Karl Onthank.)

SND
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'2 :: 0 1957

Honorable Gracie Pfost
Chairman, Subcommittee on Public Lands
Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs
House of Representatives
Washington, D. C.

Dear Mrs. Pfost:

The Federation of Western Outdoor Clubs requests that this statement,
including the resolution below, passed at its last annual meeting in
Spokane, Washington, September 1st, 2nd and 3rd 1956, be made a part
of the record of the Hearing on H.R. 1960 and related bills to estab-
lish a National Wilderness System, scheduled for June 20th, 21st,
1957.

The Federation of Westen Outdoor Clubs comprises some thirty moun-
taineering, hiking, "outdoor" and conservation organizations west of
the Rocky Mountains, aggregating over twenty-five thousand members,
This annual meeting was attended by delegates from the member clubs
and by numerous individual members who participated in its business,
including the unanimous approval of the following resolution:

"RESOLUTION NO. 4 - WILDERNESS PRESERVATION BILL
IT IS RESOLVED that, to give Congressional recognition and pro-
tection to the nation's ilderness areas, the Freration urges
the creation of a National Wilderness Preservation System as
proposed in the legislation introduced in the 84th Congress by
Senator Hubert Humphrey and others in the Senate and by Repre-
sentative John P. Saylor and others in the House."

I regret that it is not possible for an officer of the Federation to
appear at the Hearing but we have asked Mr. Howard Zahniser, Executive
Secretary of the Wilderness Society and Mr. David Brower, Executive
Director of the Sierra Club, one of the constituent members of the
Federation, to speak for us at the Hearing.

Respectfully submitted,

Karl W. Onthank
KWO:mm President

--

SRP00898



56.

Mrs. Pfost. Does that conclude your presentation of yocr

witnesses, Mr. Zahniser?

Mr. Zahniser. It does.

Mrs. Pfost. That leaves about two minutes to hear from

Dr. Murie.

Dr. Murie. Madam Chairman, I have a statement written

out which is fairly brief, and I would like to summarzie by

saying that we think wilderness bill is representative of a

trend in American social life. It began with the National

Park Service long ago, which was organized by the Congress,

and more recently we feel that the trend is culminating in

this public demand for wilderness. It is time Congress take

note of that. What I would like to say is that is a summary

of my paper.

We so often get confused between the administrative

mechanics and the objective of people. I know that the

people throughout the country with whom I have been in close

contact for half a century are thinking of these things in a

very personal way. They do not care whether a piece of

America is a national park, a national forest, or a game

preserve, they react to that piece of America as a country.

That is the attitude of the people as distinct from these

administrative ambitions and complexities. I would ask the

committee to give particular attention to the human aspira-

tions.

I have here a statement giving the philosophy of the
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Wilderness Society as a whole, and all the people associated

with it.

Some years ago I was invited by the Pacific University

in Oregon to give a series of lectures. They asked me to

talk on wild country as a national asset. That is a very

broad philosophy. I wopld like, if possible, to have those

lectures which were published in our magazine inserted as a

part of my testimony today.

I shall not go into any detail on my brief report, but

I would like to submit this for your consideration because I

think this gives the philosophy of the people who are in

favor of this wilderness preservation bill.

Mr. Metcalf. Reserving the right to object, I would

like to examine it.

Mrs. Pfost. What page is the statement on?

Dr. Murie. They published the whole thing. It is

three lectures. The titles give the content "God Bless

America," "Let's Save Some of the Wild Country Around the

World," and "Beauty and the Dollar Sign."

That summarizes our'attitude toward wilderness.

Mrs. Pfost. You wish the entire pamphlet that you

handed us made a part of the record?

Dr. Murie. I would like for it to be made a part of

the record because it gives our philosophy and the philosoph

of thousands of people in America who are now working for

it.
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Mr. Aspinall. Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

Lushin
1040am.
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Mr. Murie. I realize the complexity of this. It is

one of the difficulties that is nobody's fault, but we cer-

tainly do have a hard time to get ourselves heard. You will

appreciate that, too.

I know that Members of Congress have much more work

than they should be asked to do and I do not know the answer.

That is just my feeling about it.

Mr. Thompson. I want to reserve the right to object

to this pamphlet. We are talking about the Living Wilder-

ness?

Mrs. Pfost. Yes, but it is perhaps not the same issue.

This is filled with articles by Dr. Murie. I believe there

are three sections; is that true?

Mr. Murie, Yes. I would like to explain that the rules

of that lecture series were that it must be published so

we devoted one number of our magazine to those lectures.

Mr. Saylor. I realize, Madam Chairman, that this will

add something to the record. These articles have been

written by the witness and they are not trying to attach

some other statement and explain the philosophy of not only

Dr. Murie but the people he represents.

I ask unanimous consent that it be included as a part

of the record.

Mrs. Pfost. Is there objection?

''

I

't

1

it

''
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Mr. Aspinall. I am reserving the right to object. I

am not objecting, but I do not want to have any member of

the Society anyplace complain about the cost of Government.

Mr. Thompson. He reserves the right to object?

Mrs. Pfost. Yes.

Mr. Thompson. I would like to ask some questions about

this. However, I am reluctant to do this because Dr. Murie

is from my Btate.

Mr. Aspinall. May I raise a point of order? We asked

unanimous consent that they have half the time and the oppo-

nents half the time. The time has now expired for the pro-

ponents by at least six minutes.

Mrs. Pfost. That is true. We can settle this one

unanimous consent request and then we will proceed. If we

can obtain a commitment from the various members, we will

give the opponents some additional time tomorrow to make up

for this morning, I hope. We have certainly exceeded our

time considerably.

Mr. Murie. Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Mr. Thompson. Madam Chairman, can we withhold our re-

servation or right to object to this bill until we put

this over?

Mrs. Pfost. Yes.
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Mr. Thompson. I have an idea that since this has been

published, it has been circulated more than the reports of

this committee ave been circulated.

Mrs. Pfost. The time of the witness has expired.

The first witness on the opposition side is Mr. William

L. Berry, Chief, Division of Resources Planning, Department

of Water Resources, State of California.

We apologize, Mr. Berry, for the delay. I know that

you have a commitment on the Senate side and I am very

sorry that we have held you here.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM L. BERRY
CHIEF, DIVISION OF RESOURCES PLANNING
DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
STATE OF CALIFOBNIA

Mr. Berry. Madam Chairman and Members of the Committee
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I am William L. Berry, a registered civil engineer and

Chief of the Division of Resources Planning of the Department of

Water Resources of the State of California. I am appearing today

on behalf of that Department and Mr. Harvey 0. Banks, the Director

of Water Resources. My remarks were prepared in consultation with

the directors of Fish and Game and Natural Resources of the State.

Seven bills have been introduced in the 85th Congress

proposing the establishment of a National Wilderness Preservation

System. These bills provide that designated wilderness, roadless,

and primitive areas in the national forests, designated national

parks, certain water fowl management areas, and certain roadless

areas in Indian reservations shall initially constitute the

System. Areas within the System could be increased or modified

by action of the Federal agency that has jurisdiction of the par-

ticular class of area. This action would automatically become

effective unless vetoed by a resolution of one house of the Con-

gress within the first 120 days in which Congress is in session

after the administrative action has become final.
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Of the seven bills now pending, six were introduced in

the House of Representatives and one in the Senate. They are:

H.R. 361, H.R. 500, H.R. 540, H.R. 906, H.R. 1960, H.R. 2162, and

S. 1176. The purposes and procedures of all these bills appear

to be substantially the same, although there are some differences

in phraseology and approach. For purposes of discussion and

suggested amendments, I will.confine my remarks to H.R. 1960, al-

though they will be equally applicable to any of the other bills

with slight modifications.

Since the introduction of S. 4013 in the 84th Congress,

the California State Department of Water Resources has consist-

ently supported the principle that reasonable measures should be

taken for the preservation of wilderness areas. We believe,

however, that reasonable measures for the preservation of wilder-

ness areas need not, indeed must not, conflict with vitally needed

development of water resources. We are firmly of the opinion

that measures for the conservation and preservation of one natural

resource should not be so worked out as to impede or perhaps pre-

clude the conservation of another natural resource, and especially

one so vital as water.

As a Department concerned with the conservation of water

resources, we must also be concerned with the conservation of

other irreplaceable natural resources. The benefits of preserving

wilderness areas cannot be doubted. The historic, scenic, educa-

tional, and recreational values of these areas are unique and

constitute an important part of the heritage of the Nation and of

California. Preservation of these areas will also make an

-2-
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important contribution to water conservation. Many of the wilder-

ness areas constitute the watersheds in which originate large

amounts of the water supplies of the State. Preservation of these

areas in their natural state prevents the rapid, destructive run-

off that would occur from denuded watersheds and thus reduces the

danger of flooding and erosion. Preservation of these watersheds

in a natural state, in effect, increases the effectiveness of

downstream reservoirs by holding back and regulating the runoff.

It also protects the reservoirs from being filled with eroded silt

and thereby lengthens their usefulness by many years.

Our Department has just completed the preparation of The

California Water Plan, which has been published as our Bulletin

No. 3. With the consent of the Committee I would like to now sub-/

mit a copy of Bulletin No. 3 for your records.
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Mr. Aspinall. I reserve the right to object and I shall

object unless it is made a part of the file.

Mr. Berry. I am sure that this is not appropriate for

the record.

Mrs.P Qst. You have heard the unanimous consent re-

quest. Is there objection?

This will be made a part of the file.

Mr. Saylor. Will you see to it that all members of

this committee receive a ccpy?

Mr. Berry. I will be very happy to do that.

Ve- are naturally -

deeply concerned as to the effect of any land use program, such

as the proposed Wilderness Preservation System, on this Plan.

The preparation of The California Water Plan has in-
volved a decade of study and the expenditure of more than eight

million dollars. It is a master plan for the development of all
of California's water resources to meet the ultimate water needs

for all purposes, of a population estimated at three times the
present total. The Plan includes 376 surface reservoirs with a
storage capacity of approximately 51,000,000 acre-feet and

thousands of miles of main and subsidiary conduits. The Plan, as

presently outlined, is intended only as a framework for future

water development and therefore is flexible and subject to re-

vision. Such revisions will be made constantly to keep the Plan

-3-
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in step with changing needs, techniques, technology, and economic

conditions.

In evaluating the impact of the wilderness preservation

proposals on the development of water resources in California, it

must be kept in mind that The California Water Plan indicates

only the probable key features that will be required for the

expected growth and development of the State. Details as to loca-

tion of units have not yet been fully worked out. Major reser-

voirs may have to be located upstream or downstream from the

locations so far considered, and conduits, regulating reservoirs,

and other works may be in considerably different locations after

further study has been given to the problems presented. Such

detailed planning can only be accomplished with profit shortly

before the inception of a unit, utilizing the data that will then

be available, and taking into consideration the then existing

conditions, including costs.

In some cases, features of The California Water Plan

must of necessity be physically located within areas proposed for

inclusion in the National Jilderness Preservation System; there

are no feasible alternatives available. From a reasonable view-

point, however, there is no necessary conflict between the two.

ilith proper planning, operation, and maintenance, reservoirs can

add to the beauty and recreational potential of these areas.

Other features, such as conduits and tunnels, need leave scarcely

a visible trace after the completion of construction. Proper

planning, construction and operation would allow the integration

of features of The California Water Plan into wilderness areas

-4-
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with a minimum disturbance of natural conditions and with a

maximum of added recreational value.

Among the restrictions included in Section 3(b) of

H.R. 1960 is a provision, reading in part, that " . . no portion

of any area constituting a unit of the National Wilderness Pres-

ervation System shall be devoted to . . .water diversion, water

management practices involving manipulations of the plant cover,

water impoundment or reservoir storage . . ." A careful review

of the situation has convinced us that in its present form this

provision is far too drastic and would seriously interfere with

the effective and economic development of the water resources of

California, and thus would have a severely detrimental effect

upon the future growth and economy of the State.

As an example of the possible consequences of the

present Section 3(b), the Rubicon Diversion must be located in

the Desolation Valley Primitive Area; physically, it cannot be

located elsewhere. This diversion is a necessary part of an

important hydroelectric project planned for construction in the

near future by the Sacramento Municipal Utility District. Examples

of other works contemplated by The California Water Plan which

will probably be located within the wilderness system areas are:

small reservoirs which may be required to supply water to Surprise

Valley that will probably be located in the South Warner Wilder-

ness Area; a tunnel in connection with the Feather River Project

that will probably traverse the San Rafael Primitive Area; and

a terminal storage reservoir that will probably be required in

the Devil Canyon-Bear Canyon Primitive Area.

-5-
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As a part of the recreational developments proposed

under The California Water Plan, works to maintain stream flow to

improve the fishery resources in many small tributary streams are

planned. Thid program will require the construction of small

reservoirs on the head waters of these streams, many of which will

be located within areas proposed for inclusion in the wilderness

system. Forty--four of these small head water reservoirs are now

in operation in the national forests within the State, and an

equal number are planned for early construction. These reservoirs

store some of the snow melt high in the mountains for gradual

release during the summer when the high, rocky stream beds would

otherwise dry up. Reservoirs such as these, contemplated for

construction in connection with The California Water Flan in

wilderness areas, are built so as to harmonize with, rather than

mar, the natural beauty. They offer a good example of planned,

integrated development, for they will provide hundreds of miles

of new summer and fall fishing streams, as well as water supplies

for other wildlife. They also provide good water supplies for

those camping, hunting, and fishing in these remote areas. Such

developments would be impossible under the legislation now being

-considered. Attached to this statement is a resolution adopted

on April 4, 1957, by the California Fish and Game Commission

opposing the enactment of Wilderness Preservation Legislation and

pointing out that such legislation would frustrate the program

for stream flow maintenance reservoirs.

There can no longer be any question as to the vital

importance of the development of water resources. Seen from a

-6-
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reasonable viewpoint, however, these vitally needed developments

are entirely compatible with a wilderness preservation plan.

Properly planned reservoirs and controlled stream flow will

produce recreational benefits which will far outweigh any impair-

ment of the wilderness status of the areas involved. Opportun-

ities will thus be provided for the enjoyment of the recreational

potential by a far larger number of people.

It must be recognized that the establishment of a

National Wilderness Preservation System as proposed would be a

very sweeping and far-reaching measure. It would virtually

freeze the land use status for millions of acres. Although we

believe the effect of establishing such a System would be salu-

tary, great care must be taken in framing legislation so as not

to damage other vital interests, such as the development of

water resources. Even in the outdoor recreation field, con

sideration should be given to all of the many recreational os-

sibilities. Coordination of Federal, State, and local acti ities

can produce greater recreational benefits. Full considera ton

must be given to all aspects of the problem including fire/

prevention and control, sanitary measures and the like..

Before enactment of a measure establishing a Wilderness

Preservation System, I should like to recommend that you give

consideration to holding hearings in various sections of the

country to allow all those who might be affected to present their

views. This could be accomplished either directly by Congres-

sional committee or through the medium of a National Outdopr

Recreation Resources Review Commission such as that proposed in

-7-
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IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

APRn 5, 1957

Mr. Ras introduced the following bill; vhich was referred to the Com-
mittee on Merchant Marir,,- and Fisheries

A BILL
To authorize a ten-year program for acquiring national migratory-

bird refuges and areas.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That section 4 of the Migratory Bird Hunting Stamp Act

4 of March 16, 1934 (48 Stat. 451; 16 U. S. C. 718d), as

5 amended, is further amended to read as follows:

6 "All moneys received for such stamps shall be accounted

7 for by the Post Office Department and paid into the Treasury

8 of the United States, and shall be reserved and set aside as

9 a special fund to be known as the Migratory Bird Conserva-

10 tion Fund, to be administered by the Secretary of the In-

11 terior. There shall in addition be deposited into such Fund

I
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1 all money received from the sale or other disposition of sur-

2 plus wildlife or of timber, hay, grass, or other spontaneous

3 products of te soil, shell, sand or gravel, or from oil or

4 minerals, or from other privileges on refuges established

5 under sections 715-715d, 715e, 715f-715k and 7151-715r

6 of this title or under any other law, proclamation, or execu-

7 tive order, administered by the Fish and Wildlife Service of

8 the United States Department of the Interior, less money

9 paid out to counties pursuant to section 715s of this title.

10 All moneys received into such fund are appropriated for

11 the acquisition, by purchase, lease (without being subject

12 to the limitation on improvements contained in Revised

13 Statutes, section 355, of June 28, 1930), condemnation or

14 otherwise, of suitable areas, in the United States or in

15 Canada, for migratory-bird management areas, refuges, res-

16 crvations, or breeding grounds, and shall be available there-

17 for until expended. The Secretary of the Interior shall

18 acquire such areas at such a rate as to add to the Federal

19 system as close to 400,000 acres a year as possible for each

20 of the ten years following fiscal 1957. If the sums herewith

21 made available shall in any year prove insufficient for this

22 purpose of acquisition, the Secretary of the Interior shall

23 so advise the Congress: Provided, That in the discretion of

24 the Secretary of the Interior not to exceed 50 per centum

25 at any one time, of any area acquired in accordance with

SRP00914



8

1 the provisions of sections 718-718h of this title, may be

2 administered primarily as a wildlife management area not

3 subject to the prohibitions against the taking of birds, or

4 nests or the eggs thereof, as contained in section 715i of

5 this title, except that no such area shall be open to the

6 shooting of migratory birds when the population of such

7 birds frequenting the area or in the migrations utilizing such

8 area is on a decline, nor prior to the date upon which the

9 same has been fully developed as a management area, refuge,

10 reservation, or breeding ground.

11 SEC. 2. Section 2 of the Migratory Bird Hunting Stamp

12 Act of March 16, 1934 (48 Stat. 451; 16 U. S. C. 718b),

13 as amended, is further amended by striking the words "two

14 dollars" and inserting the words "three dollars".
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lar SsaIon H. R. 6691

A BILL
To authorize a ten-year program for acquiring

national migratory-bird refuges and areas.

By Mr. REUss

Araxm 5,1957

Referred to the Committee on Merchant Marine and
Fisheries
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H.R. 3952, which was the subject of hearings before this committee

last month. This recommendation is based in part on the fact that

the areas proposed to be included initially in a Wilderness Preser-

vation System are already protected to a considerable extent and

a reasonable time for consideration would not harm the program..

With respect to the bills now before the committee, we

have three suggestions for specific changes. As presently framed

H.R. 1960 and the other bills would seriously hamper the vitally

needed development of California's water resources. If, however,

such vitally needed projects are excepted from the restrictions

of these bills, this disasterous result can be avoided without im-

pairing the purposes of the wilderness system. The following

amendment is suggested to accomplish this end. On page 21 com-

mencing at line 20 insert a new subsection 3(c) (5) reading as

follows:

"(5) Nothing in this Act shall be construed as
affecting or intended to prevent or interfere in any
way with the use of those public lands within said
National Wilderness Preservation System for the con-
struction and operation of necessary water resource
development projects and related facilities, including
necessary access roads, if the construction and opera-
tion of such projects would otherwise be permissible
under the laws of the United States."

If an amendment should not be adopted along the lines we

have suggested exempting necessary water resource developments,

the inclusion of the areas enumerated in H.R. 1960 could seriously

impede future necessary development of California's water resources.

An even greater threat is posed in H.R. 1960 and the

other bills by the possibility of adding vast tracts of land to the

wilderness system by administrative action subject only to a
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Congressional veto within a period of 120 days. We are, therefore,

suggesting for consideration that the bill also be amended to re-

quire Congressional action to add areas to the System. This could

be accomplished by the following amendment to H.R. 1960. Strike

out the first sentence of the present subsection 2(f) on page 17,

lines 8-19 of the bill and insert in its place the following:

"Any addition to the National Wilderness
Preservation Systen shall be by act of Congress."

It would also be necessary in section 2(e) and other

parts of the bill to change the authority of the administrative

agencies to designate additional areas to an authorization for

recommendations to the Congress. In addition to requiring

Congressional action to enlarge the System, the affected states

must be given advance notification concerning areas located

within them which are recommended for inclusion. The primitive

areas listed in Section 2(a) should be the subject for study and

further recommendations in the System. These primitive areas

include in California those most likely to impede water develop-

ment,

This committee is very familiar with the serious

problemsconcerning the validity of State water law that have

been brought about by court decisions in recent years, and

especially by the Pelton Dam decision (Federal Power Commission v.

Oregon, 349 U.S. 435 (1955)). I am not a lawyer, and I will only

talk generally about these legal problems. As I understand it,

however, the Pelton Dam case may be a precedent for holding that

State water law has no validity on reserved or withdrawn Federal

land. Some agencies of the Federal Government interpret the

-9-
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case that way, as evidenced by the refusal to comply with State

law at the Hawthorne Naval Depot in Nevada. This committee held

extensive hearings on these problems during the last Congress.

The bills now before you would include large areas of

national forests and wildlife management land in the National

Wilderness Preservation System, and would, in Section 2(e), provide

for the addition of any other public land. The federal courts

might well hold that land within such a System was reserved in

the same sense as the land involved in the Pelton Dam case, that

the Desert Land Act did not apply, and that State water law need

not be followed. This problem would only be partially met by the

amendments that have been suggested. To avoid any further impair-

ment of State law, an amendment, utilizing the applicable language

of H. R. 5871, 85th Congress, the "Western Water Right Settlement

Act of 1957," is proposed. On page 24, line 18, of H. R. 1960,

renumber section 5 and insert a new section 5 as follows:

"Sec. 5. Notwithstanding any other provision of
this Act and subject to existing rights, all unappropriated
navigable and non-navigable ground and surface waters
within the area of the National Wilderness Preservation
System are reserved for appropriation and use of the
public pursuant to State law, and rights to the use of
such waters for beneficial purposes shall be acquired
under State laws relating to the appropriation, control,
use, and distribution of such waters: Provided, That
nothing in this Act shall be construed to permit any
person or entity to acquire the right to store or divert
waters in any National Park or Monument unless otherwise
authorized by Act of Congress."

We are all very deeply interested in the progress of

water development. I feel sure that you share my conviction that

every effort should be made to reconcile necessary development of

water resources with the preservation of wilderness areas. I hope

-10-

SRP00919



that the amendments that I have suggested may be a starting point .3

for reaching an amicable solution that will be equitable to all

interests.

Approved

arvey O. Banks
Director of Water Resources, State of California

Concur:

Seth Gordon
Director of Fish and Game, State of California

DeWitt Nelson
Director of Natura Resources, State of California

SRP00920



75

RESOLUTION OF CALIFORNIA FISH AND GAME COMMISSION,
DATED APRIL 4, 1957, OPPOSING ANY FEDERAL LEGISLATION

WHICH WOULD INTERFERE WITH THE PROPER MANAGEMENT OF
WILDERNESS AREAS BY THE U. S. FOREST SERVICE

WHEREAS, Several bills have been introduced in the current
session of Congress to create a "National Wilderness Preservation
System". To date these bills are H.R. 361, 500, 540, 906, 1960 and
2162, 85th Congress, and would greatly curtail the authority of the
United States Forest Service and other Federal land agencies in the
management of these areas; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the California Fish and Game Commission
opposes enactment of any one or all of the foregoing bills, or other
bills of similar purpose, on the ground that such bills would fix by
statute the boundaries of wilderness areas and preclude the adminis-
trative latitude now resting with the said Forest Service to estab-
lish and modify such boundaries. Under such legislation it is con-
ceivable that wilderness areas might no longer be a part of the
national forest system. This would be adverse to the public inter-
est since the most important function of these high mountain areas
ia control of snow pack and water runoff, and the watersheds must
at all times be managed as natural watershed units. Moreover, the
said bills, if enacted, would frustrate the cooperative program by
the said Forest Service and the California Department of Fish and
Game under which many small check dams in the High Sierra have been
built to store water and to maintain better summer flows for fish
life and indirectly to better provide summer flow. This program
could be stopped under this legislation even though the program is
of great public interest and adds significantly to recreational
values without hurting the wilderness environment; and further be it

RESOLVED, That copies of this resolution, duly adopted by
this Commission at Los Angeles, California, on April 4, 1957, be
transmitted to each member of the California delegation in Congress.
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Mrs. Pfost. Thank you, Mr. Berry.

Mr. Westland. Mr. Berry, you mentioned a resolution

passed by someone.

Mr. Berry. The Fish and Game Commission of the State

of California.

Mr. Westland. Do you have a copy of that?

Mr. Berry. It is appended to 4bhe aopies of state-

ment. u L* r 4 .

Mrs. Pfost. Are there any further questions or comments?

Mr. Rhodes. I have one question.

Mr. Berry, as I understand your statement, you feel

that this bill might fly in the face of the multiple use

of public lands?

Mr. Berry. That is correct. We feel that all uses

of lands and water should be given due consideration before

decision is made.

Mr. Rhodes. Thank you.

Mrs. Pfost. Thank you very much.

At this time, we will hear from Dr. Dixon, a Congressma

from the State of Utah.
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TATIMNrT OF THE HONORABLE HBNRY ALDOUS DIXON,
A. RPRt STATXIV IN CONGRS88
FIOM TEI STAT Ot UTAH

Mr. Dixon. Madam Chairman and Members of the Committee,

I appreciate the few minutes you have given me and I shall

try to make my statement brief. I will sake a brief summary

of about five minutes and then ask for consent to revise

and extend my remarks, which will not be more than four

pages typewritten.

Mrs. Pfost. You have heard the request of the gentle-

man to revise and extend his remarks. Is there objection?

Hearing none, it is so ordered.

(The additional material and revisions mentioned are

as follows:)
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Mr. Dixon. I would also like to include a letter of

opposition to this bill from the Governor of Utah, the

Honorable George Dewey Clyde.

Mrs. Pfost. Without objection, the letter from the

Governor will be included.

(The letter referred to follows:)
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STATE O F- UTAH
OFFICE Or THE GOVERNOR

SALT LAXE CITY

OaoBos D. OGLYD June 19, 1957
OOVCKNOR

Hemorable Gracie Pfost, C&airma
Sub-Ow ittee on Pablic Laxds of the House
Com=mttee on Interior and Insular Affairs
House of Representatives
House Office Building
Washington, B.C.

Dear Cogressman Pfostt

With reference to hearings by your Honorable Conittee on HR-500
(Baylor), r-906 (Reuss), HB-1960 (Metcalf), HS-361 (O'Hara of Illinois),
H*-540 (Baldin), -2162 (Killer of California), and H-7880 (Porter),
may I urge that you report unfavorably on this legislation for the follow-
ing reasons

1. The proposed legislation seeks to establish the prin-
ciple that "The preservation of wilderness shall be

Such a theory is not only dangerous, it could well be disastrous.
Many extensive areas of Utah will, by their very nature, remain primitive
and wilderness areas but to seal up vast areas which hold great undeveloped
resources would be economic folly and a travesty on the heritage of future
generations. he conservation and vise use of Utah's water, mineral and
grasing and recreatUPal resources is at stake and the proposed legislation
is of grave concern to y State. The resources of our great Nation deter-
mine our ability to meet national emergencies and maintain sound economic

. growth. Full development and multiple use of our resources for the bene-
fit of the greatest amber of our people must be our guiding principle.

2. The proposed legislation would impose another authori-
ty over those agencies presently responsible for admin-
isteriag public land areas and would contribute to im-
practical and inefficient land management.

An overlapping, inflexible super-administrative body is not the so-
lution to recreation problems. The overall interests of the people of the
Nation would not be served by a council whose members represent "cptablished
National Organisations Interested in Wilderness Preservation".
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3. The proposed legislation will not be in the national
interest nor will it provide a sound approach to the
preservation and use of our recreation resources.

A comprehensive survey and evaluation of present and future recrea-
tional resources as contemplated by 8H-3592, the National Outdoor Recreation
IReiew Coiission, is a nore desirable approach.

I, therefore, urge you to use all devices at your disposal to defeat
this bill because it is extreme, dangerous and not in the national interest.

Yours sincerely,

GDC/deB

cc Honorable Arthur V. Watkins
Honorable Wallace F. Bennett
Honorable William A. Dawson
Honorable H. Aldous Dixon
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Mrs. Pflot. You may proceed, Dr. Dixon.

Mr. Dixon. In summary, my reasons for opposing this

bill are as follows: First, that it destroys the multiple

use concept of the use of public domain along the establishe

principle that I refuse to destroy. In the second place,

no one knows how many million additional acres may be added,

without Congressional approval )r without respect of the

wishes of the legislatures or State irrigation laws. Third,

the multiple use concept has stood the test of time and

should be preserved. Fourth, the national forests and

parks from the wilderness value standpoint are being pro-

tected, I think we have magnificent services doing that

and then in the next place the bill only gives the control

of these wilderness areas or continues the control to the

people already in control of them. If they are not doing

a good job, why give the same people the continuous control

Sof it?

Then in the fifth place, I think it is incumbent upon

the proponents of the bill to prove that these values are

not being preserved as far as it is practically possible to

hae them preserved.

For these reasons, I do not think the bill is needed.

With regard to this multiple use concept, the miners

want exclusive use of our public domain. Our lumber people
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want exclusive use of our public domain. Our sheep men

want exclusive use of our public domain. Our cattlemen

want exclusive use of our public domain. Our sportsmen

want exclusive use of our public domain. Our recreation

people want exclusive use -- many of them -- and especially

as has been testified, our people needing water.

In the State of Utah, all four of our rivers rise in

a primitive area and they feed the entire population for

culinary and other uses. There is a threat to the entire

economy of the State,if this bill is passed, by anyone who

had control of it and who wanted to exercise arbitrary use

of it. We should not freeze these areas because the full

values of these area resources are not known yet. In proof

of this, we have just opened up one of the richest oil

fields on the continent, the Anath Basin, which is quite

a large area mostly on public domain. We have huge oil

shale potentials that can be developed that might come

in these areas. For example, take gilsonite and uraninum.

I do not know what we would do for our defense effort if

some of these areas were frozen. We cannot foresee what

is going to happen and how we will need them.

Then, again, what is a wilderness area? Can we have

a paved road in there with commercial enterprise along it?

Can we have a dirt road with commercial enterprises or a
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dirt road with none? Can we have a trail or can we even

blaze a way through it on trees designated? Literally, that

is a wilderness area. We can go to such a rLdicuaous extreme.

I have been in these wilderness areas in the middle

fork of the S almon. The only people who get there are

the wealthy people who can go to dude ranches and hire a

guide for$50 a day and enjoy it. That is not my idea of

democracy. I have not been able to afford to get into this

wilderness area and some states, like Wyoming, require you

to have a guide and that is $50 a day.

This bill keeps the west unnecessarily wild because

we have about 163, I think, total wilderness areas and 27

States east of the Mississippi only have 15. Then from the

Mississippi to a line drawn down through Colorado, there

are only ten States with 9. Then there are eleven western

States with 129 of these wilderness areas, which we think

is all out of proportion to what should be expected of the

ten Western States.

In the seventh place, this measure could partially

destroy the economy of our States by freezing our culinary

water and such, by destroying our livestock industry, too.

Over 60 per cent of our agricultural income comes from

livestock and many of them range on wilderness areas.

If you take the range away from the ranches down below then
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you destroy the ranches. It seems utterly preposterous

to consider, on the spur of the moment, anything as far-

reaching and as damaging as this might be.

In the Rngle Bill this committee saw the wisdom of

limiting military withdrawals to 5000 acres. This present

wilderness bill could sneak in huge areas and give the

opponents only 120 days to Aop them through Congressional

legislation. You folks know how much of a chance

anyone has to get laws through Congress in 120 days. There

is a barrier there that makes this bill unworkable and it

would threaten to do tremendous damage without our having

time to protest or having recourse. This bill works just

the opposite of the Engle Bill because that requires an

Act of Congress. This committee passed it out. Before,you

could take over 5000 acres of land for military reserves.

I thank you kindly, Madam Chairman, and Members of the

Committee for this opportunity to appear.

Mrs. Pfost. Thank you, Dr. Dixon, for your contribution'

Are there questions of Dr. Dixon?

Again, thank you, and you will be able to extend your

remarks.

I have two statements, one from the Honorable Don

Magnuson from the State of Washington in favor of the bill.
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Without objection, his statement will be made a

part of the record, as if read.

I also have a statement from Mr. Barratt O'Hara, from

the Second District of Illinois. His statement will also

be made a part of the record, without objection.

Mr. Rhodes. I am reserving the right to object. I would

not object, but I think it would be better form to have the

statements placed in that part of the record to which they

refer.

Mrs. Pfost. I thank you, gentlemen.

I think that order should be used and the statements

in favor will be placed at the beginning of the hearings

where the other Members of Congress appeared.

Without objection, it will be handled in that manner.

Hearing none, it is so ordered.

(The two statements referred to follow:)
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M IO BM DON MAUBON BEFORE THE PUBLIC LANDS SUBCODMWTB OF THE
WI 5QlE- W B O nDWERIOR AND ISUULa AFFAIRS, June 21, 1957, IN SUPPORT OF H.R. 1960

A*b MEA XOISIATION TO ESTABLISH A WILDERNESS PRESERVATION SYSTEM.

?r.'Chaitmm

I appreciate this opportunity to present to the subcommittee these views on

establishment of a national wilderness preservation system, as set forth in H.R. 1960

and a number of similar measures.

Such a system, Mr. Chairman, has become imperative if the remaining wilderness

areas in our nation are to be kept for their highest and most beneficial use.

A feature of this legislation which appeals to me is the fact that it would put into

effect by specific law the preservation of areas which already, by administrative

action, are withdrawn for wilderness purposes. These various areas in the national

forests, the national parks and the wildlife refuges now are withdrawn from entry for

purposes which would interfere with their wilderness state. There is a great deal of

pressure to break down the administrative regulations now handled in a piecemeal

fashion among the various federal agencies.

In my congressional district, the State of Washington, are some of the nation's

finest scenic, recreational and wildlife areas. Two of the most outstanding national

parks, Mt. Rainier and Olympic, are situated in my state. Sections of the rugged

Cascade Mountains with wilderness still not entered by man are in the national forests

of the state. There have been and will continue to be differing opinions between

natural resource industries and those interested in preserving these wilderness areas.

This legislation, I feel, offers an outstanding opportunity for the resolution of these

conflicts on a basis which all interests may understand. Commercial activities are

restricted in these areas now, and I see great benefits in the consolidation of the

preservation programs under one set of rules, as called for in these bills.

I urge, Mr. Chairman, that the subcommittee give favorable consideration to

this legislation. Thank you.
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Mr. Chairman: I a Barratt O'Hara, Representative from the Second District

Illinois. I am interested in the legislation you are now considering because:

(1) I a co-sponsor of H.R. 361 to provide for wilderness preservation, and

(2) large numbers of my constituents are actively interested in conservation

and preservation of the wilderness. Last year when the Dinosaur National

Monument was threatened by the Colorado River Project and again when the

Witchita Mountains Wild Life Refuge was in danger of being taken over by

the Army for a firing range, my office was deluged with letters of protest

from my constituents.

We in the United States have learned from the sad experience of Europe

*the value of and need for Conservation. Statement of the stature of Theodore

Roosevelt and Gifford Pinchot have made conservation an American tradition.

Recently, however, we have been so consumed by admiration for our own

creations of concrete and steel as to lose sight of the values which are

ours in the God-given wilderness. Unless we pause, take stock, and work

out a positive program for wilderness preservation our great heritage, the

American Wilderness, may be lost irrevocably to future generations.

The wilderness exists on various species of Federal lands, thanks to

kind Providence and the foresight of statesmen of other generations: Those

who measure values in terms of concrete and steel, profits and cash have,

particularly in recent years, turned appraising eyes upon that wilderness

not to measure its spiritual, health, and scientific values to our nation

now and in the future, but rather to convert it into bank balances.

Those who are interested in conservation of that wilderness are worried.

They see the pressure that is coming and realize that it is our duty to do

something. Those areas that now constitute our National Wilderness must

be secured. Some parts of America must always remain untrammeled by man,

unspoiled by machines.
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Today as never before we have need of the superlative values of the

wilderness. We are fortunate in having large areas of wilderness which

are federally owned. There are 50 national parks and monuments which have

unspoiled areas large enough to be called wilderness, about twenty wild

life refuges, eighty areas that have been designated by our Forest Service

for protection of wilderness. There are in Indian Reservations 15 areas

classified as roadless wilderness.

At present there are no Congressional enactments which protect such

areas. Even in the National Parks and Monuments the pressure for roads,

recreational and tourist developments threaten.

Alerted by conservationists among my constituents, among whom Dr.

R. M. Strong, Chairman of the Conservation Council of Chicago, Mrs. Donn

B. Moir, Mrs. Margaret M. Nice, one of America's great ornithologists,

Mr. Raymond Mostek, Vice President of the Illinois Audobon Society to

mention a few from a long list of nature lovers and scientists, I have,

as co-sponsor, introduced H. R. 361.

The purpose of this legislation is to provide a positive program of

wilderness preservation now and in the future. The legislation creates

no new bureau . It requires no new lands. Its purpose is to insure

existing wilderness areas in National Parks, forests and wild life

refuges. Above all it contains provisions for orderly planning for future

needs through a National Wilderness Preservation Council representing

Congress, the departments and the lay citizen.

I am aware of the opposition to this legislation on the part of the

Department of the Interior. I have read their statement covering almost

eight pages of objections. However, it seems to me that these objections

are directed against specific items which your Committee in its wisdom
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and experience is in a position to consider carefully . In cases where

you find such objections valid the legislation can be modified or amended.

There is on the other hand need for a positive program of wilderness

preservation which only Congress can initiate. I thank you for the

opportunity to present my testimony and I urge the enactment of H.R. 361.
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Mrs. Pfost. We have been able to discuss the matter

of hearings tomorrow morning and we have agreed upon three

Members being present on each side. If we are able to have

three Members on each side present tomorrow morning we will

resume hearings at ten o'clock. Therefore, the proponents

and the opponents both should appear here again tomorrow,

who would like to be heard. The proponents consumed 31

minutes this morning and the opponents consumed 18 minutes.

Tomorrow's time will be divided to take up further discussion

of this bill and the time will be evened up so that the

opposition, if they desire, may be heard an equal length

of time.

Mr. Saylor. I ask unanimous consent that the four

witnesses' statements -- three of whom are here -- be per-

mitted to insert their statements in the record at this

point as though read.

Mrs. Pfost. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Saylor. Yes.

Mrs. Pfost. Would the gentleman make a unanimous con-

sent request to incorporate the statements of any witnesses

who happen to be in the room who happen to be in opposition

to the bill?

Mr. Saylor. Are there any other witnesses in opposition

to the bill who desire to submit a statement?

Mrs. Pfost. First of all, we have the statement of
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Mr. Radford Hall before the committee.

Mr. Saylor. Mr. Pomeroy?

Mr. Pomeroy. My name is Kenneth B. Pomeroy and 1 would

like to appear later when you reconvene or have Mr. Craig,

our editor,present our statement rather than to submit it

without vocal presentation.

Mr. Rhodes. Madam Chairman, I have a statement which

was given to me by Mr. Paul Jones, Chairman of the Travel

Counsel of the Navajo Tribe. I would like the time to para-

phrase it sometime tomorrow, if I may be allowed that privi-

lege, and then submit the statement for the record as though

read.

Mrs. Pfost. Do you not desire to make that a unanimous

consent request?

Mr. Rhodes. No, just for information.

Mr. Dunn. My name is Paul M. Dunn and I am the Technical

Director of Forestry for the St. Regis Paper Company. I wish

to appear on behalf of the pulpwood, pulp, paper and paper-

board Industries. However, I will not be able to appear in

the morning and I would like to request my statement be in-

cluded. Mr. Mosobrook Forester of the American Pulpwood

Association will be present and present certain views at

that time. That is, if there is a committee meeting.
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Thank you.

Mr. Saylor. We have certain other witnesses who have

ladicated their desire to appear.

Mr. Salvati. My name is Raymond Salvati and I am

with the American Mining Congress and I would like to submit

our statement for the record.

Mr. Rule. Madam Chairman and Members of the Committee,

my name is Gordon W. Rule of the National Association of

B e s and Boat Manufacturers, Incorporated. I am the

Washington Counsel for that organization. We are opppsed

to certain specific provisions in the bill with respect to

the creation of a system, as a whole, and we say that we

do not, or will not know, until the Resources Review Comm-

ission, which your committee is studying, has made their

study. We are opposed to certain provisions in the bill

as it stands today.

Mrs. Pfost. Mr. Rule, will you be here tomorrow?

Mr. Rule. I am sorry I will not be. I promised to take

my wife to the beach.

Mrs. Pfost. That is a perfectly legitimate reason and

we will expect your statement for tie record.

Mr. Abbott. Madam Chairman, I believe that there is

a file for proponents and opponents. The statements or other

SRP00938



89

communications which the organizations have requested be

made a part of the record might be made subject to examina-

tion by the committee.

Mrs. Pfost. Will counsel please withhold that?

I have the original oopy showing those names and any

other statements.

Are there any other people in the room who desire to

have their statements made a part of the record?

Without objection, the Acatements of Mr. Radford Hall,

Executive Secretary ot the American National Cattlemen's

Association; the statement of Mr. Paul M. Dunn, Technical

Director of Forestry for the St.Regis Paper Company; the

statement of W. Howard Gray, Chairman, American Mining

Congress, and the statement of Joseph E.Cho te of the

National Association of Engine and Boat MUufacturers, Incor-

porated, will be made a part of the rec d as if read in

full.

Hearing no objection, it is so rdered.

(The statements referred to f llow:)

[ al P-
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Radford Hall, Executive Secretary

801 Bat 17th avenue )

Dbnver, Colorado

WITH RESPECT TO HR 1960
and related bills

HOUSE SbtCOMTTEE ON PUbLIC LANDS

June 20-21, i9l57

The American National Cattlemen's Association was organized in 1898.

It is a voluntary association of commercial cattlemen and cattlemen's

associations. *Twenty-eight state cattlemen's associations are affiliated

in the American National* .

In January the American National Cattlemen's Association held its 60th

Annual Convention in Phoenix, Arizona, During that convention the following

resolution was approved without a dissenting vote:

RESOLUTION NO, 20
Wilderness Preservation System

WHEREAS,. S., 4013 and H.R. 11703 if enacted would

establish a National Wilderness Preservation System

covering and setting aside many, many thousands of acres

of federal lands to the exclusion of all private or

economic use in productivity; and

WHEREAS, This would represent a serious step

backward from the multiple use principle in management

of federal lands; therefore be it

Resolved, That we oppose this type of legislation

and recommend S. 4013 and H.R. 11703 be not enacted

into law .

NOTE: Bills mentioned in this resolution refer
to the 84th Congress.
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This resolution was approved in general session of the convention

following a detailed study of the matter by the staff and officers of the

. Association, a thorough and complete discussion in the Public Lands

Committee meeting and further consideration by the Resolution Committee of

the Association.

We sincerely believe that the enactment of this negative legislation

for a number of reasons would not be in the best interests of the nation.

We believe it would be a serious blow to the economic development of the

states in which the lands that would be involved are situated.

It is our firm belief also that it would not even serve the purposes

for which it is supposedly intended. Rather, it would serve only the selfish

interest of a very minute segment of cur citizenry.

It would also hamper the sound, proper and efficient administration of

these lands by the public agencies now charged with that responsibility.

This proposed legislation, if enacted into law, could seriously affect

the defense of our nation.

True conservation should not nean neglect and waste such as this

legislation would encourage.

The great bulk of the lands under consideration in this legislation

are located in the eleven western states which are to a considerable extent

still'in the process of attaining full economic development. Much tilie and

effort has been spent -n the perfection of the multiple use principle, of

obtaining maximum economic benefits for all concerned from the natural

resources of the area. The principle industries involved -- grazing, mining,

lumbering, irrigation, and recreation -- have each been attempting to

integrate their needs with those of the others. They have attempted to

understand the problems of other industries and to adapt their operations so

that all may have their fair share of the values these lands are capable

of producing.

SRP00941



No. w omes this effort on the pa:rt of a selfish few to scuttle these

offtrts and forever lock up all the other resources in order that the

visionary values placed by some people on "unspoiled naturen shall be

available to them and them only.

This proposal is oMstensibly for the "public" benefit. Gentlemen, I

ask you, who is the "public"? We believe it to be the 171 million people

in the United States. We believe it itoludes the New Yorkers who eat

"astern beef", the Chicagoans who have houses built of western pine, the

Pennsylvanians who drive cars made with western metals regardless of whether

they ever take a hiking or horseback trip into a western wilderness or not.

We believe the protection of the stockpile of atomic bombs is more

important to the great majority of the people on the East Coast than is the

fact that a certain hillside in Wyoming has never heard the ring of the

woodsman's axe or the putt-putt of a jeep engine.

The advocates of this legislation have told us that they want to "save"

these areas in a primeval state for posterity. Do you believe that future

generations will be any more interested in forsaking all modern conveniences

and protections to strike off into completely undeveloped wilderness than

is this generation?

The tourist business is one of great importance to the western states,

and is growing each year. Why is it growing? Is it because there are more

horses in the mountains to carry visitors up where they can pitch a tent and

it would take a doctor several days to get to them in case of sickness or

accident?

A short time ago an airplane crashed in what would make a good

wilderness area in Wyoming. A man and wife were in the plane. After 4 or

5 days the man died. The woman remained with his body for 19 days before a

rancher seeking livestock spotted the plane and she was rescued alive. If

that had been a wilderness area, as proposed by this legislation, there

would have been no livestock to be searched for and no rancher searching and

a woman would have died in a "beautiful unspoiled wilderness".
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Very few tourists want to "enjoy such unspoiled pleasures".

The tourist business is growing in the West because the mountains and

p«jVlains are being "cut up and despoiled" by safe modern paved highways lined

by hotels, motels and resorts that furnish every modern convenience

obtainable in the finest eastern hotels. Even the "typical mountain cabin"

of just a few years ago is now becoming quite generally equipped with inside

plumbing, electric lights, and bottled gas cook stoves.

There are still quite a few who want to rough it -- but just how rough

do they want it? If they want it as rough as this legislation would indicate,

you gentlemen in Congress are surely wasting millions of dollars building

recreational facilities in the National parks and National forests.

We don't believe you are. 'e believe most of the hardy souls who want

to "camp out" still prefer to be able to drive to the camp. They appreciate

the sanitary facilities, the fireplaces, the picnic tables and other

conveniences provided by the government agencies.

Please ponder for a moment on how many of you or your friends and

acquaintances want to rough it to the extent of riding a horse or walking

back into a country where there are no roads, no telephones, no ranch homes,

absolutely no conveniences, hero there are no residents to look to for help

in case of sickness or accident. It is for those few who do want to forsake

everything that the modern world offers that this legislation is proposed.

VWe submit that they are only a minute fraction of even the tourists of the

nation.

S We believe this legislation would also defeat its avowed purpose by

placing a huge stumbling block in the path of those government agencies

charged with the protection ind maintainance of these areas.
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We are certain that all of you are aware of the fact that many forest

bush and grass fires are started by lightening. You all know that the more

remote those fires are, the more damage they are apt to do. The Forest

Service and Bureau of Land Management have spent tremendous sums building

fire roads so as to be able to more quickly reach such firedand they also

make use of access roads and trail built by stoc-kmen, lumbermen, miners and

others. Yet here we :xve a proposal to deliberately isolate millions of

acres from that protection and to subject them from the grave danger of

having not only the beauty but the economic values destroyed by fire while

the agencies charged with their protection stand helplessly by for lack of

access roads.

In one instance in Wyoming a fire road into the forest was deliberately

-blocked by huge boulders and bridges were sliced in half to prevent jeeps'

from entering a "wilderness area". Obviously no thought was given to the

possible need for that road to protect the valuable forest in that wilderness

area.

To be efficient in the administration of these areas, the agency in

charge must have freedom of action and simply must not be tied down and

hamstrung by restrictive legislation such as proposed.

This legislation would not only hamper efforts to fight fires, but it

would ,also greatly increase the fire hazards. The wise cutting of timber

and proper use of the grass crop removes the greatest potential for a serious

fire.

Tall dry grass burns like tinder and spreads a fire as though it were

intended for that very purpose.

-5-
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A few years ago Camp Carson was established as a military base near

Colorado Springs, Colorado, and grazing of livestock was discontinued.

,After a year or two of non-use, a fire occurred and witnesses said the long

dry grass exploded like dynamite. Several soldiers were killed in the

effort to control that fire. Other examples can be cited of disastrous

fires that have occurred in ungrazed areas in the Custer State Park in the

South Dakota Black Hills and the non-grazing areas of the Salt Lake City,

Utah, watershed. Proper utilization of grass reduces the fire hazard the

same as cleaning combustible trash out of a basement as insisted upon by

all good fire departments.

Wise lumbering also keeps forests healthy. Trees, like all living

things, are more vigorous when young and growing. More long-lived than

most things, trees reach a maturity and then go into decline. At that

point they either must be cut or they become a progressively greater

liability, Old trees are more subject to attack by insect pests and plant

disease. Vitness the havoc wrecked on the formerly beautiful White River

National Forest in Colorado. Congress found it necessary to appropriate

millions to control the beetles that turned that forest into a shamble.

Thousands of acres of dead tree trunks stand as mute testimony to the fact

that a healthy forest is a young, growing forest. Forestry experts tell

us that the beetle attacks principally old over-ripe trees and that this

forest was over-ripe.

A few years ago we were told by the Director of Markets for the City of

-New York that few people in that city were interested in the wildlife or

scenery of the western mountains because only a few were able to make the

trip west to view them, but he said virtually everyone of them is vitally

interested in the quantity, quality and price of beef and lamb produced

and sent to New York from them.
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Also we submit to you with full confidence that you will agree that

the average tourist thoroughly enjoys the sight of a herd of whiteface

mother cows quietly crazing on a mountain meadow with th6ir playful

frisky calves. We sincerely believe that livestock grazing adds tO the

beauty and enjoyment of the tourist.

Had this proposed legislation' been enacted several years ago, much

of the Four Corners region where Utah, Arizona, Colorado and New Mexico

join, would very likely have been included in a "wilderness area",

forever closed to "exploitation" by miners, for at that time it was just

about as much of a wilderness as could be imagined.

Yet that is the area from which has come the material for the stockpile

of atomic weapons which now stands between this country and possible

complete annihilation of the entire population.

Who knows what lays before us? Who knows what research and

exploration will develop in the future?

Gentlemen, we are living in a world that is moving too fast, changing

too fast that we can a-'ord for you to lay the dead hand of such negative

legislation on such a large area of a growing nation.
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STATEMENT ON BEHALF OF
THE AMERICAN PULPWOOD ASSOCIATION

BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON PUBLIC LANDS
OF THE HOUSE INTERIOR AND INSULAR AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

IN OPPOSITION TO HOUSE BILLS NOS.
361, 500, 906, 1960, 2162, and 7880

June 20th-21st, 1957

I am Paul M. Dunn, Technical Director of Forestry for the

St. Regis Paper Company, and a member of the American Pulpwood

Association's Committee/on Forest Management, but speaking here

as representative of the pulpwood, pulp, paper and paperboard

industries as a whole. The American Pulpwood Association is com-

posed of pulpwood producers, dealers, consumers of pulpwood and

others directly or indirectly concerned with the growing and

harvesting of pulpwood - the principal material used in the

manufacture of paper and paper products. All members of this

Association are vitally concerned with the utilization of the

commercial forest resources to be found on Federal lands and

believe that these lands should be managed under the principle of

multiple-use. The headquarters of this Association is at 220

East 42nd Street, New York City.

We are grateful for this opportunity to present our views

in opposition to bills before this Subcommittee which would

establish a National Wilderness Preservation System, but we would

also strongly urge that this Subcommittee give due consideration

to holding hearings in the West where the economy would be

seriously affected by this legislation. In opposing a National

Wilderness Preservation System, I should like to make it clear

that our industry recognizes and supports a national policy of

protecting and preserving wilderness areas for the enjoyment of

the American people where such use constitutes the predominant
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value. We will continue to support a national wilderness policy

which will protect, preserve and maintain those areas predominantly

valuable for that purpose, at the same time having due regard for

the use of other resources, such as timber, minerals, water, and

opportunities for mass recreational use which may be needed by

our growing population. Decision as to the predominant use of each

area should be made after an impartial consideration of all the

resources present, all uses and all users. We do object to setting

up a "preservation system" on the basis of boundary lines drawn

up years ago, many of them wholly inconsistent with reality because

of lack of proper survey or classification at the time they were

drawn.

I should like to outline briefly why this industry feels that

the establishment of a National Wilderness Preservation System as

proposed in the legislation before you would not be consistent

with sound wilderness policy in which wilderness values can be

fully appraised against other values in the light of ever changing

economic conditions:

A NATIONAL WILDERNESS PRESERVATION SYSTEM IS NOT NECESSARY

These bills would blanket into a Wilderness Preservation

System, perpetually for all practical purposes, against roads and

all other commercial uses, almost all of the national parks, many

national monuments, the primitive, wilderness, wild and roadless

areas within the national forests, many wildlife and game refuges,

and some Indian reservation wilderness areas. It is possible that

a maximum of almost 54 million acres could be blanketed into a

Wilderness Preservation System immediately under this legislation.

The great bulk of this area is in the western states and Alaska,
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areas economically dependent upon the maximum use of all resources.

There is no accurate estimate available as to the amount of re-

sources, including timber, which would be "frsoen" in these areas

and seriously retard further industrial development of the western

states and Alaska. The legislation is inconsistent in that it

would permit the continuation of many activities presently being

carried on in these areas,.and at the same time require the admin-

istering agency to see that the areas in the system under its

jurisdiction remain wilderness areas. This makes it appear that

many of these areas to be blanketed into a Wilderness System should

not be classified as wilderness at all.

The proposal to create a National Wilderness Preservation

System and a National Wilderness Preservation Council is not only

unnecessary, but it is unwise. It implies a criticism of the

administration of wilderness areas by the respective agencies in

the Interior and Agriculture Departments. The national forests

have been governed on the principle of multiple-use and sustained

yield of products and services for the greatest possible number

of people - a principle to which my industry heartily subscribes.

Wilderness areas have been established in the national forests

where wilderness values are predominant to other uses. The

important thing is that the Forest Service has been able to exer-

cise administrative elasticity and to revise its wilderness policies

and areas as changing times and conditions have dictated.

Of key importance is the fact that the Forest Service has

never granted special rights to one category of use or user. In

our opinion the establishment of a National Wilderness Preservation

System would grant special privileges to a small group of national

forest users, the wilderness enthusiasts, who are less than one

percent of the recreational public.
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What has happened to national forest wilderness areas under

the Forest Service? Although sizeale boundary adjustments have

been made as economic conditions have changed, the Forest Service

reports that there is a net increase of 65,376 acres of wilderness

administered by that agency since the wilderness regulations were

established in 1939. A total of 14 million acres set aside as

wilderness areas in the national forests demonstrate a recognition

by the Forest Service of a continuity of policy and purpose in the

protection and preservation of lands for wilderness use.

Our industry believes that evaluation of national forest

wilderness areas should be continuously made and local hearings

called in the areas affected to assure that wilderness values in

areas so classified remain the dominant use.

National parks and monuments comprise those areas which are

of such superlative scenery, natural and historic values that they

are of national importance to all our people. They are managed on

the principle that they shall be handed over to future generations

"unimpaired," but actually the organic National Park Service Act

of 1916 offers nearly as much flexibility in managing recreation

resources as the multiple-use principle of Forest Service administra-

tion.

Changes in the national park boundaries can be made only by

Congress and you are well aware that proposals to build dams in

national parks have recently met with strong opposition by the

public and in the Congress. The Park Service has devoted consider-

able attention to preserving the natural character and wilderness

aspects of the national parks and at the same time to bring people

into them for their enjoyment.

Wildlife refuges and roadless and wild arjas within Indian

reservations are now administered under regulations by the Secretary

of Interior. Indian reservations, which are the property of the
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Indians themselves and administered in trust by the Federal Govern-

ment, contain many valuable resources which are utilized for the

economic betterment of the American Indian. A proposal to freeze

further economic utilization of these resources, even with their

consent, shows little concern for the economic well being !f these

American citizens. The only equitable solution as far as the Indians

are concerned would be for the Federal Government to purchase these

lands from the Indians. We would be absolutely opposed to this on

the basis that far too much land and resources are already owned

and controlled by the Federal Government.

The administration of wilderness areas under regulations of

the Secretaries of Agriculture and Interior and under various

Acts of Congress has provided a degree of flexibility and continuity

of purpose to give us confidence in the continuing management of

wilderness areas by Executive agencies without establishing a

Commission to ride herd on them,

IT WOULD ELIMINATE THE MULTIPLE-USE MANAGEMENT OF PUBLIC LANDS

Under the terms of this legislation all commercial use of

wilderness areas would eventually be eliminated without any regard

for the people and communities dependent upon proper utilization

of the resources found in these areas. Practically every wilder-

ness area contains timber, water, minerals and other resources, and

the combination of uses which will yield the highest net returns,

benefits and services has to be determined for each individual

area based on a thorough and impartial study of the pertinent facts.

Under a Wilderness Preservation System, wilderness areas would

tend to perpetuate themselves regardless of whether they were

wisely selected in the first place or whether changing conditions~

would make a different evaluation necessary,
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The pulpwood, pulp, paper and paperboard industries depend

upon wood as their chief raw material. The consumption of pulp-

wood in this Country increased 267 percent since the close of World

War I and is expected to increase another 84 percent in the next

twenty years. Although we have been getting only 9 percent of our

pulpwood from government forest lands over the whole United States

but 16 percent in the West, we believe that all federal forest

lands in the future must provide a greater share of our raw material.

We favor a multiple-use management for the national forests where

dominant uses can be reviewed from time to time after adequate in-

ventories and classifications of land have been made to determine

whether adjustments are needed.

Under this legislation a National Wilderness Preservation

Council would be created. We maintain that it would be just as

equitable to establish a Federal Timber Users Council to make sure

we get enough timber from Federal forests or a Grazing Council or

a Water Usert Council. Certainly the forest resources of this

Nation contribute as much or more as wilderness to the economic

well-being of this Nation.

It has been estimated that 99 percent of all the people who

hunt, fish, picnic or look at scenery never get into wilderness

areas. In 1955 there were 45k million visits to the national

forestsfor recreational use - expected to climb to 66 million in

1962 and 100 million by 1975. The Forest Service has "Operation

Outdoors" and the Park Service has "Mission 66" to develop these

mass recreational opportunities. In our opinion these mass recrea-

tional users present a greater threat to wilderness areas than timber

or grazing or any other use of these areas,
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My industry recognizes the need of the public for recrea-

tional areas in the forest and is providing these opportunities on

company-cwned lands. Locking up vast areas of land permanently in

a wilderness system will serve to intensify the pressures on other

areas for recreational use. Only a flexible system geared to meet

these new conditions can deal with such a problem.

ADMINISTRATIVE JURISDICTION FOR WILDERNESS AREAS SHOULD REMAIN
WITH THE EXECUTIVE

The Wilderness Preservation System legislation proposes

setting up a National Wilderness Preservation Council. This would

establish a potential bottleneck in the matter of additions, dele-

tions or management; of wilderness areas. Such a mode of operation

would prove cumbersome and ineffective for the agencies administer-

ing such areas under existing Acts or regulations. In practice

such a Council would either be totally ineffective or over a period

of time would assume broader powers and act as a very effective

lobby to get additional wilderness areas set aside and to resist

changes in administration.

The preservation of wilderness values is not solved simply

by setting aside areas into a wilderness system and prohibiting

building of roads or commercial utilization of resources. Fire,

insects, disease and windthrow are not only a constant threat to

wilderness values, but these destructive forces may also spread to

adji.nIg public or private forest areas. Legislation isn't going

to solve this problem - indeed legislation of this type would only

make it worse by denying the administering agency the lattitude of

administrative judgment necessary to.cope with such problems. If

we set aside wilderness areas that are too large without any access

and with little regard for re-examination from time to time, we

may find enormous wilderness values may be destroyed by the fort
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of nature, and along with them other resources of great value ltico*w

economy needs. This is a terrific coat and a risk we can ill

afford to take.

We believe it would be contrary to the public interest to

interpose a National Wilderness Preservation Council between the

Congress and the Executive agencies. Why should six citizen

members of the Council "known to be informed regarding, and

interested in the preservation of, wilderneua and the Secretary

of the Smithsonian Institution sit between the Congress and the

Executive agencies in the administration of wilderness areas? This

Council would not function in a purely advisory capacity, but would

tend to assume ever-increasing powers over a period of time.

AN INVENTORY OF OUTDOOR RECREATION RESOURCES AND NEEDS HAS NOT
BEEN MADE

Legislation is still pending before this Subcommittee to

establish a National Outdoor Recreation Resources Review Commission.

This Commission would undertake an inventory of outdoor recreation

resources and opportunities. No such inventory or over-all appraisal

has ever been made. The Wilderness Preservation System legislation

proposes to freeze large areas into a perpetual wilderness system

without regard for the future needs for this type of resource or

other resources found in wilderness areas.

Although such a vast system of wilderness areas, almost 54

million acres, would be economically unsound at any time, further

inventory and appraisal of the values of all resources should be

made by the Executive agencies to guide them in future plans and

programs for wilderness and other recreation areas. The establish-

ment of a huge National Wilderness Preservation System without

adequate inventory and land classification study would be haphazard

and injurious to the future economic development of this Country.
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CONCLUSION

The pulpwood, pulp, paper and paperboard industry is opposed

to legislation establishing a National Wilderness Preservation

System which would benefit only a handful of American citizens who

are hardy enough to hike into wilderness areas, and at the same

time retard the economic utilization of many badly needed resources.

This legislation constitutes a "single purpose" and a "special

privilege" for these few users at the expense of other citizens.

Wilderness areas are necessary for the preservation of wilderness

values, but the size and management of these areas should be deter-

mined by policies which are flexible enough to meet changing

economic conditions. The multiple-use management of Federal lands

is the most equitable to all uses and users of these lands.

There is nothing fundamentally wrong with the present method

of administration of wilderness areas by Executive agencies. The

most outstanding of these areas are already encompassed within the

National Park system where they are adequately protected from other

uses and subject to major change only with the approval of Congress.

The Forest Service has a good record of administration of the

national forests for multiple- se, with due consideration given to

wilderness values when these values are paramount to all other

resources. The administration of federal lands should always be

flexible enough to make allowances for changing conditions. The

legislation before this Subcommittee would for all practical

purposes freeze nearly 54 million acres in permanent wilderness

areas and at the same time hamper efficient management of these areas

by the Executive agencies.

Thank you for the privilege of presenting the views of this

industry in opposition to legislation establishing a National

Wilderness Preservation System.
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June 20, , 19... 57

House Interior and Insular Affairs Comnittee

Washington 25, D. C.

Re: National Wildernes Preservation System

Gentlemen:

The American Mining Congress, a national organization composed of
both large and small producers of all metals and minerals mined in the United
States, wishes to register its opposition to pending measures which would
establish a "National Wilderness Preservation System" on the public lands of
the United States.

The mining industry, meeting in Los Angeles, California in
October of last year, adopted a Declaration of Policy which reads in part
as follows: "We oppose the withholding of public domain lands from mining
location * * * We consider as unwarranted any withdrawals precluding mining
development on large areas even though undemonstrated objectives thereof may
have been documented as defense or conservation."

This eame policy statement made it clear that the mining industry
is firmly behind the system established by the general mining laws for the
location and patenting of mining claims as the means of encouraging and
providing for development of the mineral resources of the public domain
through private initiative and enterprise.

The pending measures, which have as their objective the creation
of a permanent National Wilderness Preservation System, are contrary to the
principles long espoused by the mining industry and are in contradiction of
those principles, carried out by intrepid prospectors, which have furthered
the development of our Western States. The great natural resources of the
Western States formed the foundation for the development of the industrial
and agricultural economies of those States and have made possible their rapid
growth and progress over the years. Any measure which would deter further
mineral development through the curbing othehe ardor of the prospector would
result in a great disservice not only to the Western States but to the Nation
as a whole.

We in the mining industry cannot understand why legislation is
believed to be required to provide for the creation of wilderness areas and
for their extension through the acquisition of other areas when such power
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already resides within the Executive Branch of the Federal Government. This

power in the past has been confined to activities in national parks, monuments

and forests and has been respected and upheld by the mining industry. Those

wielding the administrative authority have, for the most part, recognized that

mineral development, particularly in our national forests, has been a

necessity to the further development and utilization of our natural resources.

We see no reason why this situation .should be changed at this date.

Congress throughout the years has made it clear that mining on the

public domain was to be encouraged in order that the resources of the public

domain might be fully developed for the benefit of the Nation as a whole.

Thus, the incentive for prospecting, exploration, development and mining

through the assurance of ultimate private ownership of the minerals and lands

so brought into economic development has been recognized by Congress since

1872. Under existing laws, a prospector may go out on the public domain,

locate a mining claim, search out its mineral wealth and, if discovery of

minerals is made, can then obtain a patent to those lands. That property,

upon the issuance of a patent, becomes the individual's, to develop or sell

according to his initiative or desire. Without such an incentive the future

development of mineral resources on the public domain is likely to wither on

the vine.

We submit that the pending measures are neither in the public
interest nor would they result in the development of industrial enterprises
necessary to the future progress of our Western States.

Section 3(b) of the bills now before you states as follows:

"No portion of any area constituting a unit of the National Wilderness Preser-
vation System shall be devoted to commodity production, to lumbering, pros-
pecting, mining or the removal of mineral deposits (including oil and gas),
grazing by domestic livestock (other than by animals in connection with the

administration or recreational, educational, or scientific use of the wilder-

ness), water diversions, water management processes involving manipulation

of the plant cover, water impounded on reservoir storage or to any form of
commercial enterprise except as contemplated by the purposes of this Act."

So far as the mining industry is concerned, this provision con-
stitutes the heart of the measures before you. This section would prevent

any prospector from setting foot upon any wilderness areas authorized by the
Act. The development of untold mineral assets necessary for the economic
well-being of the Nation, or for the advancement of science requisite for
national defense, could be denied by such a law.

Another provision in the measures now pending would require the
Federal Government to institute a program to reacquire, by "agreement", the
vested rights of those who now hold such rights in wilderness areas or future
wilderness areas. No doubt the implication of these measures also, is that
the Federal agencies, by denying means of ingress or egress or by setting up
permit systems for roads, access to water, use of timber or other such prac-
tices, could make life so miserable for those private citizens now holding
lands within the wilderness areas that they might be forced to divest them-
selves of those rights, hard-earned though they might have been, to the
Federal Government.
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The Congress of the United States over the past several years has

made plain its intent and has explicitly required the encouragement of the

multiple use and development of the natural resources of our public domain

lands. It specifically set forth this objective in Public Law 585 of the
83rd Congress, and further reiterated its belief in these principles in Public
Law 167 of the 84th Congress. Your Committee itself, no longer than two years
ago, in reporting on what later became Public Law 167, stated in its report,
"Historically, the Federal Mining Law has been designed to encourage individual
prospecting, exploration, and development of the public domain." Your Committee
further expressed its interest in the development of legislation and regula-
tions thereunder which would operate "to encourage mining activity on our vast
expanse of public lands compatible with utilization, management and conserva-
tion of surface resources." The Senate Committee, also, significantly stated:

'The broadest possible use of all of the resources of our public
lands and forests for the benefit of the American people is a matter
of great national import. The rapidly expanding population and
economy of our Nation and of the Western States in particular, have
been accompanied by an ever-growing need for more general and more
intensive use of our natural resources. The high tempo of our
housing industry has brought about heavy demands for timber; stock
growers need more grazing area to meet the increasing consumption
of meat, leather and wool; our mining industry is under the constant
necessity of exploring for and developing additional sources of new
eaid old minerals to meet the ever-increasing requirements of our
national security and industrial economy; and our growing population-
requires expanded recreational areas.

"Conflict between surface and subsurface uses of our publicly
owned lands is as old .s the West itself, where most of the remaining
public domain lies. Surface uses include stock grazing, forestry,
soil-erosion control, watershed purposes, fish and wildlife preser-
vation, and recreational areas. The subsurface use is that of
development of the minerals that have been a basis for our great
industrial and economic development.

"As long as there was plenty of land that could be dedicated
to each use, separately, the results of conflicts between surface
and non-surface uses were generally local and minor in character.

"However, in recent years our security needs, the growth of
our population, and the expansion of our economy have brought about
a situation in which it is no longer in the national interest that
the public domain should be used for one of the uses to the exclusion
of the other."

We do not see how your Committee, which has so clearly expressed its con-
viction that multiple use of our natural resources on the public domain is
of prime national interest, could approve the measures now pending before you.

We in the mining industry are unalterably opposed to the "locking
up" of natural resources of any kind from development for the public good.
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We believe that the future of the Nation, and of the Western States in
particular, lies in continued development of these resources. For these
reasons and those cited before, we urge you to disapprove the measures
now pending before you which would establish a public system devoted to
"National Wilderness Preservation" and would prevent development of those
areas now open for mineral location.

Very respectfully yours,

Public Lands Committee
AMERICAN MINING CONGRESS

W. Howard Gray, Chair-
Ely, Nevada
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Hon. Gracie Pfost, Chairman
Subcommittee on Public Lands
Committee on Interior and Insular Affairs
House of Representatives, U. S.
Washington, D. C.

Dear Mrs. Pfost:

Thank you for your letter dated June 4, 1957 concerning the hearings
to be held on June 20 and 21 by your Subcommittee on H R. 1960, and
related bills, to establish a National Wilderness Preservation System.

The Natio.al Association of Engine and Boat Manufacturers, Inc. is a
non-profit trade association incorporated in 1904 (under the laws of
the State of New York) for the purpose of promoting the interests of
its members as manufacturers of pleasure boats, engines and motors,
and all kinds and types of gear and accessories that go on or in plea-
sure boats. Today, we have 335 member firms, all of which are in some
way connected with recreational boating in the United States. We are
the only national association representing all types of boat builders
and engine manufacturers, i.e., inboard and outboard, sail, canoes,
etc. Between meetings of the Board of Directors, our Association
functions under a Committee system and this statement has been approved
by the Legislative Committee.

The National Association of Engine and Boat Manufacturers, Inc. appears
here today in opposition to two specific provisions contained in H.R.
1960. Both provisions relate to the use of motorboats in the areas to
be included in the System.

These two provisions are as follows:

Sec. 3 (b), line 7, page 20:

"Within such areas, except as otherwise provided in this
section and in section 2 of this Act, there shall be no
road, nor any use of motor vehicles, or motorboats, or
landing of aircraft, nor any other mechanical transport
or delivery of persons or supplies, nor any structure or
installation in excess of the minimum required for the
administration of the area for the purposes of this Act."

Sec. 3 (c), line 2f, page 20:

"Within national forest areas included in the System
grazing of domestic livestock and the use of aircraft
or motorboats where these practices have already become
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well established ray be permitted to continue subject to
such restrictions as the Chief of the Forest Service deems
desirable. Such practices shall be recognized as non-
conforming use of the area of wilderness involved and shall
be terminated whenever this can be effected with equity to,
or in agreement with, those making such use."

The first of these provisions spems to be an absolute prohibition against
any new use of motorboats in the wilderness areas, while the second ob-
viously would be a mandate from the Congress to eliminate those already
in the areas as soon as possible.

Insofar as the Forest Service of the Department of Agriculture is con-
cerned, there is in effect now a regulation concerning motorboats in
wilderness areas as follows:

Reg. U-l (b) dated November 1955 (Title 36, CFR, § 251.20)

"(b) Grazing of domestic livestock, development of water
storage projects which do not involve road construction,
and improvements necessary for the protection of the forest
may be permitted subject to such restrictions as the Chief
deems desirable. Within such designated wildernesses when
the use is for other than administrative needs and emergen-
cies the landing of airplanes and the use of motorboats are
prohibited on national forest land or water unless such use
by airplanes or motorboats has already become well established
and the use of motor vehicles is prohibited unless the use is
in accordance with a statutory right of ingress and egress."
(Emphasis added)

There is no comparable regulation in effect with respect to the National
Parks and thus, as to those National Park areas to be included in the
System, the motorboat prohibitions contained-tt H.R. 1960 would consti-
tute new and additional restrictions on the use of such boats.

Our position with respect to the use of motorboats in any wilderness
areas is that we feel the administrative agencies concerned should be
left with the authority and power to regulate such matters and that
the Congress should not legislate such restrictions. To our knowledge,
the Forest Service has not been guilty of any abuse of discretion in
the regulation of motorboats and we suggest to your Committee that un-
til or unless there can be shown such abuses, the Congress should con-
tinue to have faith and confidence in their administrative control
over this matter.

Our opposition at this time is limited to these two provisions for the
reasons stated. We do not endorse or oppose that part of H.R. 1960
which would set up the System itself because we do not possess suffi-
cient knowledge at this time to enable us intelligently to evaluate
the necessity or desirability of so doing. We are hopeful that the

proposed study of all outdoor recreational resources in the United -A

States, which we endorsed before this Committee last month, will pro-
vide us with the required knowledge.
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Your Committee knows that in this country today, Americans of all in-
come brackets are on the move, spending more and more recreational time
in the outdoors. 52.6 million recreational visits to the national
forests in 1956 as compared with 18.2 million in 1946, 56.5 million
recreational visits to National Parks in 1955, and 1I million visitor
days to the Corps of Engineers' reservoir projects in 1954, testify to this
movement by Americans.

You ladies and gentlemen may be surprised to learn that in 1956, more than
28 million Americans went afloat in 5,971,000 pleasure boats in this
country. The large majority of these boats are outboard boats and in
1956 there were 750,0)00 boat trailers in use. Boating today in the United
States is the nation's number one family sport and the tremendous growth
of the sport is attributable in part to more leisure time, higher pay and
participation by the middle and lower income groups in our country. (We
are enclosing herewith the complete 1956 statistics on boating as com-
piled by the Industry Advisory Committee on Statistics of our Association.)

We urge your Committee and the Congress not to legislate limitations or
restrictions on the boating public. .e urge that you leave to the cogniz-
ant regulatory agencies of our government the job of administering these
areas in the same reasonable manner that is in effect today. We do not
believe that the record indicates any necessity for, or sound reason why,
the Congress should specifically legislate such restrictions as those set
out above.

We thank you for the opportunity to appear before you today.

Siqcerely yours,

Secretary
~k~c" ~f~CI

JEC:jvs.
encl.
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1956
28,000,000

Americans
Spent

$1,250,000,000
ON

BOATING
The Nation's Top Family Sport

ACCORDING TO THE

National Association of
Engine and Boat Manufacturers, Inc.
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THE INDUSTRY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
ON STAT/ST/CS

OF THE

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ENGINE AND BOAT MFRS., INC.
offers the following estimate of the extent of recreational boating at the end of 1956

Motor boats numbered by the .U. S.
397,000 Coast Guard for use on federal waters.

including inboard cruisers and run-
abouts, outboard boats over 16 feet
and auxiliary sailboats, based upon
USCG registration figures as of Sept.
1956.
Inboard motor boats (unnumbered) in

450,U00 use on waters not under federal juris.
diction.
Inboard cruisers and auxiliary sailboats

4,000 five net tons or over documented by
U. S. Bureau of Customs.
Outboard motors in use in U. S. in-

4,545,000 eluding 584,000 new units sold in 1956
based on figures of the Outboard Boat-
ing Club of America. The I. A. C. esti-
mates that there is one small craft (out-
board runabout, dinghy, pram, canoe,
dory or rowboat) for each motor in use.
Sail boats without inboard power on all

575,000 waterways.
Total number of pleasure craft esti-
mated to be in existence on all U. S.
waters. One for every 28 persons.
Mnre boats afloat in U. S. in 1956 than
the previous year. This includes about
280,000 new outboard boats (according
to the O.B.C.), with the remaining
154,000 divided between inboard
cruisers and runabouts, sailboats and
miscellaneous small craft.
(one and a quarter billion dollars) Spent
at the retail level for new and used
boats, accessories, safety equipment,
fuel, insurance, docking, maintenance,
etc., during calendar 1956. Of this
$316,440,000 was spent for the pur-
chase of new outboard boats and
motors, according to O. B.C. Overall
expenditure is up approximately 131/2
per cent over the previous year.
Persons estimated to have taken part
in recreational boating, making use of
the waterways more than only once or
twice during 1956, or about 17 per
cent of all persons living in continental
United States, according to U. S.
Bureau of Census figures.

-750,000
55,000

Boat trailers in use.

Marine radiotelephones on pleasure
craft according to Federal Communi-
cations Commission figures, compared
with 8,204 in 1947.

0 Square feet of natural and synthetic
,000,00cloth sold for use as sails. (Estimated

that approximately 95 per cent is syn-
thetic, with sailma ers reporting dacron
as the most popular material.)
Marinas and waterfront docking and

10U,UUU launching facilities for recreational craft
on all waterways offering some service
to boat owners. Of these, perhaps
2,000 can be considered first rate
marinas offering a wide range of-facili-
ties and accommodating up to 400-500
craft each.

, Yacht clubs listed in Uoyd's Register of
80U American Yachts. The North American

Yacht Racing Union, supervisory body
for sailboat racing on this continent,
claims about 820 yacht clubs are affili-
ated with it.
Motor boat racing organizations affili-

300 ated with the American Power Boat
Association, supervisory body for in.
board and outboard motor boat racing.
Local boating groups, outboard cruising

850 clubs and the like unaffiliated with any
nationwide group.
Linear miles (approximate) of general

13,000 tidal shoreline of the United States,
measured at the three-mile limit, ac-
cording to the U. S. Coast & Geodetic
Survey, courtesy National Geographic
Society.

n Squ re miles (approximate) of natural
0u000u and man-made inland o in the

United States, including riv -s, lakes,
ponds and reservoirs. 3ased upon
figures of the Census Bureau, the Bureau
of Reclamation and the Corps of En-
gineers, U. S. Army, through courtesy
of the National Geographic Society.
Square miles (approximate) total area

95,000 Great Lakes, courtesy of National Geo-
graphic Society.

5,971,000

434,000

$1,250,000,000

28,000,000
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IMPORT - EXPORT:

$25,000,000

$4,500,000

Worth of boats, marine engines and
nautical accessories exported by the
United States during 1955 (last com-
plete year available), according to U.
S. Dept. of Commerce.
Worth of boats, marine engines and
nautical accessories imported into this
country in 1955.

PETROLEUM PRODUCTS CONSUMPTION -
BY PLEASURE CRAFT -1956

331,000,000

17,500,000
15,225,000

Gallons of gasoline divided 137,000.000
gals. for inboards and 194,000,000 for
outboards. Based upon an estimate of
150 gals. per year used by inboards
and 42.6 gals. per year used by out.
boards.

Gallons of diesel fuel.
Gallons of lubricating oil, divided
3,100,000 gals. for inboards and 12,.
125,000 gals. for outboards.
(NOTE: These consumption figures do

not include commercial fishing
craft, eliminated from last
year's figures.)

GROWTH IN RECREATIONAL BOATS IN USE IN U. S.

NUMBER OF BOATS

15,000
400,000

1,500,000
2,440,000
5,023,000
5,97,1,000

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF
ENGINE AND BOAT MANUFACTURERS, INC.

420 LEXINGTON AVENUE

YEAR

1904
1913
1930
1947
1953
1956
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Mrs. Pfost. The Committee stands adjourned until

tomorrow morning at ten o'clock.

(Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at 11:10 A.M.)
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(T/6-19-517) NATIONAL-WILDLIFE FEDERATION J
232 Carroll Street, N. W.

Washington 12, D. C.

A STATEMENT OF
STEWART M. BRANDBORG, Assistant Conservation Director

On H. R. 500 and Related Bills
To Establish a National Wilderness Preservation System

Before the
Public Lands Subcommittee ofthe House Committee on Interior

and Insular Affairs

June 20, 1957

c

a^ ^ /

I am Stewart M. Brandborg, Assistant Conservation Director of the National

Wildlife Federation.

The National Wildlife Federation, a nation-wide organization of sportsmen and

lay conservationists, is deeply concerned about the preservation and future protection

of wilderness in the United States and the Territory of Alaska. Many of the contribu-

tors to the Federation's conservation program, the thousands of people who faith-

fully send in their dollars in return for National Wildlife Conservation Stamps, recog-

nize the need for careful protection of our remaining areas of wild and undeveloped

country. They share the concern of the leaders of our state affiliate organizations

which is expressed in the resolution that was passed at the 21st Annual Meeting of the

National Wildlife Federation, last March 1, 2 and 3, here in Washington:

WHEREAS wilderness, wild and primitive areas are steadily
diminishing before the pressures of expanding human population
and industrialization on the North American continent, and

WHEREAS the recreational, esthetic and scientific values of
wilderness grow in direct proportion to the increasing urbani-
zation of American- ivili zation, .and

WHEREAS certain rare and valuable wildlife species are endangered
by the disappearance of wilderness habitat, now therefore
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BE IT RESOLVED: The National Wildlife Federation request the
Congress to enact legislation to accomplish the following: (1) Establish
wilderness preservation as a national policy; (2) provide greater
security for the designated wilderness, wild and primitive areas within
the National Forests, now maintained only by executive policy, and (3)
encourage the preservation of the wilderness character of certain areas
within the National Parks, National Wildlife Refuges and other public
lands of the United States.

I would like to request that the article "Wilderness Issue," by Ernest Swift,

Executive Director of the National Wildlife Federation, as published in the December

1, 1956, issue of Conservation News, be included in the record at this point.

This resolution and article define the interests of the National Wildlife Feder-

ation that can be related to the legislation being considered today. In general, these

bills appear to satisfy the requirements set forth in the resolution by establishing

wilderness preservation as a national policy and by designating those areas which '

must be protected as part of a National Wilderness Preservation System.

Those who debunk the idea of wilderness preservation argue that only a small

group of so-called "purists" share any real concern for wilderness. Mr. Chairman,

I want to make it clear now that millions of sportsmen and other outdoor enthusiasts

claim an important stake in the areas of undeveloped country which would be classified

as wilderness under the definitions of this legislation. Many are frequent visitors

to these areas. Others can only hope that some day they will have an opportunity to

get into "the back country," and they want it to be there if and when that day comes.

The hunter or fisherman who plans a trip into one of these wilderness or primitive

areas places a high value on the outdoor experience that it affords him. And he

takes the responsibilities of public ownership of these areas seriously by his staunch

defense against intrusions upon them.
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Funds Needed for Wilderness Management

The federal agencies, which are responsible for the administration of the various

units proposed for inclusion in the wilderness preservation system, have been serious-

ly handicapped by shortagesof funds for access and recreational improvements within

the outdoor areas under their jurisdictions. For example, in the case of wild,

wilderness and primitive areas administered by the Forest Service, the horse and

foot trails which were once considered to be arterial lanes for fire protection and

maintenance of an extensive lookout system have been abandoned as a result of the

improvement in methods of forest fire detection and suppression. Pack strings and

thousands of miles of fire trails have been replaced to a great extent by aerial patrols

and modern fire suppression techniques. But only limited funds have been provided

for continuing the maintenance of trails which could be used for foot and horse travel

by the wilderness user.

The high quality of administration of t'e millions of acres of land under the

jurisdiction of the Forest Service, National Park Service, Fish and Wildlife Service

and the Bureau of Indian Affairs -- the same agencies who would manage wilderness

lands under provisions of this measure -- speaks for their competence. It is under-

standable that administrators might favor road development in those vast undeveloped

areas of wilderness where their attempts to provide fullest public use have been

frustrated by the lack of funds for maintenance of trails which are in keeping with

the wilderness character of these areas. Under such conditions there might appear

to be little justification for continuing the protection of the areas in primitive and

natural status. On the other hand, the pressure for heavy use of roaded and developed

portions of such areas as are included in our National Parks System can lead to the

extension of roads into those areas which have been previously set aside for preservation
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as wilderness. The fact that hundreds of thousands of people are rapidly becoming

more dependent upon roadless wilderness areas for their outdoor recreation justifies

the investment in trails which must be made if tuhs use is to be encouraged.

The relative abundance of wilderness in some regions of the country is also a

factor. A few of the western states each contain several million acres of lands that

would be classified as wilderness under this legislation. To some of the people who

are closest to these, there may appear to be more than is needed, or even justified,

for recreational use. It is hard to properly assess the wilderness values of such

areas until you live without them. But one fact stands out in clear perspective: We

must save what we have, regardless of location, for use of Americans who are now

demonstrating their need and desire for wilderness experience.

Wilderness and Over-Populations of Big Game

In some of the existing wild, wilderness and primitive areas of the National

Forests, populations of deer and elk have outgrown the carrying capacities of their

natural ranges. As a part of a National Wilderness Preservation System, these

would be subject to the same management procedures as are now applied by the state

fish and game agencies. But to accomplish adequate harvest within some of the

units of the National Wilderness Preservation System, it will be necessary to provide

good networks of access trails. In addition, it may become necessary to provide

reasonable packing services to take hunters and their equipment backtinto the remote

areas under a system of management which provides for adequate dispersal of their

camps. The same provisions for management of other recreational uses would be

required for those units of the system within the National Forests, Parks and

Monuments, Wildlife Refuges and Indian lands, where public hunting is not permitted.
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At the last Annual Meeting of the National Wildlife Federation there were dis-

cussions of the need for language in this measure to prevent damage to basic soil,

plant and water resources that might be caused by over-populations of big game

herds. It is recommended that such language be considered for inclusion in this

legislation. This would provide for necessary control of over-populated game

herds as required for the protection of the natural character of a unit of the wilder-

ness system.

Justifying Wilderness

The attainment of fullest possible use of wilderness for the enjoyment by the

outdoor public has not yet even been approached. Much can be done to bring this

about through enactment of this legislation which recognizes wilderness preservation

as a national policy.

If wilderness preservation can be established as a national policy, public use

of wilderness will justify this. The management of areas for use as wilderness

promises to be as much a challenge to the public land administrators of the federal

agencies involved as use of other public lands for production of timber, grazing, or

other recreational' QDS. This will be a recreational yield of particularly high

quality which will require careful controls so that the unspoiled and primitive

character of the thing being enjoyed -- wilderness -- will not be destroyed. The

task of bringing people into back country ureas, in such a way as to leave only trails

as evidence of their visits, will require a high degree of professional skill, as well

as a much larger investment in wilderness management programs. The latter calls

for more generous appropriations for use by the agencies in doing their jobs.

The National Wildlife Federation endorses the provision of this bill which

leaves the administration and management of the designated units of this system in
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the hands of the present administering agencies: The U. S. Forest Service, the U. S.

Fish and Wildlife Service, the National Park Service, and the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

As previously pointed out, the competence of each of these agencies has been demon-

strated and it is desirable that the Wilderness Preservation Council, as established

by this bill, would not seek to replace or overlap any of their administrative functions.

Neither would it interfere with the management or jurisdiction of any unit of the

Wilderness Preservation System which is designated within the National Parks,

National Monuments, National Forests, National Wildlife Refuges, Indian Reserva-

tions, or any other federal lands.

The National Wilderness Preservation Council will draw upon the experience

of those public land administrators who are best qualified to guide the development

of educational and fact finding programs consistent with the purposes of the legislation.

Representation on the Council by citizen members will provide assurance of full

protection of those public interests to be represented by it.

By establishing wilderness preservation as a national policy and encouraging

the preservation of the wilderness character of certain areas within the public lands

held in trust by the federal government, this bill satisfies the requirements specified

in the resolution passed last March by the National Wildlife Federation. Its provisions

to allow Congressional consideration of additions, modifications or eliminations of

units of the system with proper public notice of proposed changes, would safeguard

the public interest by providing adequate opportunity for expression of reaction to

the suggested alterations. Where such changes are considered to be inadvisable, they

could be denied through passage of a resolution by either House of Congress. Where

they are shown to be desirable because of shifting patterns of public use, national
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emergency, or other unforeseen conditions of the future, there is complete authority

for necessary changes based upon recommendations of the administering agencies.

This legislation is a major step toward the protection of wilderness for multi-

purpose recreational, scenic, scientific, educational and historic purposes. I wish

to endorse it with the hope that those who are not in full agreement with its objectives

and provisions will offer suggestions for its improvement and ultimate refinement

so that an effective program for wilderness protection can be written into law in the

near future.

Thank you for the opportunity to appear here today.
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C. R. GUTERMUTH WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE R. F. WEBSTER
Vice-President Treasurer

Dedicated to Wildlife Restoration

WIRE BUILDING, WASHINGTON 5, D. C.

June 21, 1957

The Honorable Gracie Pfost, Chairman
Subcommittee on Public Lands
House Interior and Insular Affairs Committee
New House Office Building
Washington 25, D. C.

Dear Congresswoman Pfost:

You will recall that at the hearings before your
Committee on the "Wilderness Bills" this morning, I requested
permission of the Committee to have included in the printed
record of the hearing following the statement given by me for
the Wildlife Management Institute a brief article written by
Dr. Ira N. Gabrielson, president of the institute, which appeared
in "The Living Wilderness" winter-spring, 1956-1957. Congressman
Aspinall objected to the unanimous consent request for the article
to appear in the printed record and stated that he thought Dr.
Gabrielson should have the opportunity to appear in person.

I learned subsequently that Congressman Aspinall
would have no objection to the inclusion of the article in the
hearing record providing it was made clear that Dr. Gabrielson
had authorized me to submit the article in his name. May I say
that in my preparation of the brief statement 0 submitted in
behalf of the "ilderness Bills" for the Institute, Dr. Gabrielson
directed and authorized me to use the enclosed article which appears
over his name as a part of the Institute's testimony on those bills.

The Institute would be appreciative, consequently,
if this article could be produced in the hearing record as an ad-
junct to the Institute's statement.

Sincerely,

Daniel A. koole, Editor
Outdoor News Bulletin

DAP:bbs
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I believe that legi
. ' . now been, introduc<

lAHERE IS SOMETHING about the word known as "the Wild
S"wileitenss" in the sense of meaning unspoiled strengthen the hand

S country that has a deep appeal to many Ameri- preserving the areas

cans who have not themselves successfully to care
"STRENGTHIEN visited such a place. Just to years.

-''. THEIR ANDS"know that such places exist and The fact that this
are being preserved brings a deep officials of the various

:, inner satisfaction and a thrill to many of us. the core of the Coun

'This indicates that there is deep within people t: blish, is definite r
who are engaged in hectic and busy lives of nod- job that has been dor

ern America a spark of the pioneer and an in- effort to strengthen

terest in adventure in land that has not been in- most conservationists

tensively modified or "developed" for intensive creasingly difficult p
human use. The principles of t

An increasing number of conservationists are
agreeing with John Muir that "this is fine and
natural and full of promise."

* As John Muir noted more than helf a cen-
tury ago, there is also among Americans a "ten-
dency nowadays to wander in wildernesses." As
Muir described it:

Thousands of tired, nerve-shaken, over-
civilized people are beginning to find out that
going to the mountains is going home; that wil-
derness is a necessity; and that mountain park'
and reservations are useful not only as fountains
of timber and irrigating rivers, but as fountains
of life. Awakening from the stupefying effects
of the vice of over-industry and the deadly
apathy of luxury, they are trying as best they
can to mix and enrich their own little ongings
with those of Nature, and to get rid of rust and
disease."

It is to this deep-scated, inner impulse that we
owe the movement to preserve wilderness as we
know them today.

We can all be proud of the excellent job that
has been done in preserving these areas. There
are few of them left to be preserved other than
those that have already been set aside by thi far-
sighted vision of the administrators of the ex-
ecutive agencies which have control of them.
This applies particularly to the U. S. Forest
Service, which has been a leader in this field,
hut also to the National Park Service and to the
U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service as well.

These executive agencies have done a magnifi-
cent job with all too little public support for
their efforts to preserve unspoiled some of the
great outdoor heritage of this nation.

However, growing pressures of population
and demands of industry are making it more
and more difficult to resist encroachments and
invasion of these magnificent areas.
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s of these administrator
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s legislation makes the
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for those who come after us.

-IRA N. GARRIELSON
President, I wildlife Management Institute

I'ormerly Director, U. S. Fish amr
Wildlife Seviki
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